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Missouri Department of Revenue

Introductory

The Introductory Section contains material to familiarize
the reader with the contents of the report, organizational
structure, and operation of the department.




Table of Contents

Introductory Section

TranSMIAl LEHEI ... ..o e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e s e e nstbaaeeeens i
Y1 e 1 o [[oRl o F= o TSP P TS PUPPPPPPPRT ii
OVEBIVIBW ...ttt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e st e e et eeeeee e e e ssbssseeeeeeeeeannbaseeeeeesesassssseeeeens v
Organizational CRart...... ..ot e e e e et e e e e e e e e a e e e e e e aa e aeaens Xii
Principal Department OffiCialS ... Xiii

Financial Section

Management’s Discussion and AnalySis...................ccccooiii i 1

Basic Financial Statements
Department-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Nt ASSEES ......vvveiii e 13
Statement of ACHVITIES ........ovveiiiie e 14
Fund Financial Statements
Major FUNA DeSCHIPHIONS.......ooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 15
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNAS .............oooiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 16
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Governmental FUNS...............ooiiiiiiiiiie e 17
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities................. 18
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds...............ccccoooiiiiii e 19
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Assets - Proprietary FUNAS ... 20
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary FUNds .............cccccoooiiiiiiiiiee e 21
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Agency Funds - Assets and Liabilities..............cccccccoeeiiiiiii s 22
Notes to the Financial Statements...........coooiiiiiii e 23

Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Comparison Schedules
Schedule of Appropriations and Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

LT =T =TI ¥ ] o [ 36
Motor Fuel TaX FUNA ... 37
School District Trust FUNd ... 37
State Highways and Transportation Department Fund......................cccooiii . 38
All Other Budgeted Governmental FuUNds ............cccoooiiiiiiie e 39

Schedule of Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP - General Fund, Motor Fuel Tax
Fund, School District Trust Fund, and All Other - Budgeted
Governmental FUNAS ...........oooiiiii e, 40

Nonmajor Governmental Funds and Combining Schedules

Special Revenue Fund DescCriptions..........oouiiiiiiiiiie et 41
Capital Projects FUNd DeSCription ..........ooiiiiiiieiiie et 46
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds.............c.ccocoiiiiiiiiiiii . 47
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance - Nonmajor Governmental FUuNdS ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiie e 51
Combining Schedule of Appropriations and Expenditures - Budget and Actual

Budgeted Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS ...........cccooiiiiiiii e 55
Agency FUNd DESCHIPHONS ........ooiiiiieiiie et e e e e e e s e eneeeeeeeeae e 58

Combining Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds ......................... 62




Table of Contents

Financial Section (cont.)

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedule By SOUICE.............ooiiii e 71
Schedule by Function and ACHVILY ..o 72
Schedule of Changes by Function and ACtiVity............coooiii e 73

Statistical Section

Expenditures
Expense and Equipment Expenditures By SubClass...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 74
General Governmental Expenditures By DiVISION .............coooiiiiiiiiiieiiiiciee e 75
General Government Expenditures by FUN............coooiiiiiiiiii e 76
Program Specific DistribUtiONS ............ooiiiiiiii e 77
Tax and Fee Collections to Resource Inputs............... 78

Taxes Administered
Introduction of Taxes Administered

Summary of Taxes Administered.......... ..o 79
(O3 o =1 )1 (= 1= D PSR 80
Financial INStULIONS TaX ......oiiiiiiie e 81
LU= = G 82
[ YeT0] 0 a TN 1= 83
[T U] = TaToT = = ) G 84
Local SAlES AN USE TaAX ......... i 86
State Sales aNd USE TaX ....cooooeeieiieeeeeeeeee e 87
OB TaAXES ... e 89
Ten-Year Collection HiStOry ..........c.ooiiiiii e 90
Income Tax, Ten-Year Summary of Activities ...............cccccoiiiii 91
General FUNA RECEIPES ..o, 92
Tax and Fee Distribution - Counties and other Political Subdivisions ........................... 93
Tax and Fee Distribution - Cities....................ccoo e 98

Fees Administered
Introduction of Fees Administered

Summary of Fees Administered ............ccooiiiiiiiiii e 126
All-Terrain VENICIE FEES......... i 127
Court and County Clerk and Recorder FEES ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee 128
DIIVErS LICEBNSE FEES .. ..o 131
MAENE FEES ... 133
MOLOr VENICIE FEES ... 134
L@ 1 1T g T O 138
Drivers License TranSacCtioNS............c.uuuiiiiiiiiieee e 140
Motor Vehicle TranSaCtioNS ...........ooovuiiiiii e 141
Maring TranSaACHIONS...........ueiii e 142
All-Terrain Vehicle TranSactionS ...........coiiiiiiiiiiee e 142

Non-Appropriated Funds - Sources and Application.............................................. 143




Table of Contents

Statistical Section (cont.)

State Treasurer’s Report

Average Fund Balances and Invested Balances............cccooooiii i 152
Time DepOoSitS-GENEIAl ..........ueiiii et e e 153
FUNA BAIANCES .....uiiiiiiiiiiiiii e nssnnes 159
General Obligation BONAS ...t 170
Funds Invested in U.S. SECUNLIES............uvviiiiiiiiiee e 171
Investments of the State Treasurer....... ... 172

MissSoUr INVESIMENT TrUSE ... oo e 173




Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
(CAFR)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
]

Combined Annual Financial Report
of the
Director of Revenue and State Treasurer

Carol Russell Fischer Nancy Farmer
Director of Revenue State Treasurer

Prepared by:

Rebecca J. Imhoff, CPA Nancy D. Holtschneider, CPA Jennifer A. Even
Administrator Fiscal and Administrative Manager Accountant Il
Department of Revenue Department of Revenue Department of Revenue



May 22, 2003

The Honorable Bob Holden and
Members of the General Assembly:

| am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Missouri
Department of Revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

The Department of Revenue report is intended to present fairly the financial position
and results of operations of the Department of Revenue. This report is prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and consists of three
sections.

1. The Introductory Section includes a summary of the Department of Revenue’s
strategic plan, general information, and the organization of the department.

2. The Financial Section includes a management discussion and analysis, the
financial statements, and related footnotes.

3. The Statistical Section includes schedules depicting tax and fee collections and
distributions.

The Department of Revenue is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented and
the completeness and fairness of the presentation.

This report, together with statements prepared by the State Treasurer (attached to this
report) and the Missouri Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Office of
Administration, Division of Accounting (published separately), fulfill the statutory
requirements for financial reporting under Section 32.060, RSMo. 2000.

Sincerely,

Carol Russell Fischer
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Simplify

Mission

Improving what we do to make the government work for you. We:
o (ollect taxes and fees to provide resources to serve the needs of Missouri
o Ensure compliance with driver licensing and related laws to help keep
Missouri’s roads safe
e Provide assurance of ownership needed for buying, selling, and
financing motor vehicles and marine craft

Values

We are dedicated to serving our customers fairly and with the
highest level of integrity. We value our:

Bottom Line
Measuring our performance and communicating results

Front Line
Involving all employees in improving our performance

Customer Line
Asking customers what they want and ensuring the lines of
communication are open so they can tell us




* Missouri Department of Revenue

Outcomes
» Increased customer satisfaction
» Increased voluntary compliance
* Decreased cost of compliance
» Increased quality performance
Strategic Issues

» Improve internal and external communication

» Develop systematic customer complaint and query
management tools

» Expand alternative service delivery methods

» Improve legislative support processes

*  Make the Department of Revenue a great place to work

» Ensure the viability of information technology

» Explore alternative funding sources for the department

» Improve central office support of field operations

» Ensure security and privacy

» Ensure workforce diversity

» Improve and standardize departmental meaures

Continue improvement and achieve targets on key operational
products and key support products




ssouri Department of Revenue

Key Operational Products

Division of Taxation and Collection:

e Individual Income Tax Return

e Sales Tax Return

e Sales Tax Audit

» Corporate Income Tax Return

» Corporate Income Tax Audit

*  Business Tax Collection Case

e Individual Income Tax Collection Case
»  Withholding Tax Return

e  Fuel Tax Return

Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing:
» Field Office Operation

* Driver License - Initial

* Driver License - Renewal

*  Motor Vehicle Title

*  Motor Vehicle Registration

» Insurance Verification

Key Support Products

Division of Administration:

* Criminal Investigation Case

» Performance Management Plan
* Purchasing Process

* Mail Process

General Counsel’s Office:
* Regulations — Taxation and General
* Regulations — Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing

Revenue Technology:
»  Website Plan
*  Network Plan

-iv -



Missouri Department of Revenue

Overview

The Overview provides a description
of the Department of Revenue, an
organization chart, and a list of principal officials.




Overview

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that the reporting entity provide a Management

Discussion and Analysis. This Overview complements the analysis and should be read in conjunction with it. The

Department of Revenue’s Management’'s Discussion and Analysis begins on page 1.

REPORTING ENTITY

The People of Missouri created the Department of
Revenue (department) when they adopted Article 1V,
Section 12, of the 1945 Constitution of Missouri.
The department

The Department of
Revenue serves as the
central collection

serves as the central

collection agency for

agency for state
revenues.

all state revenues.

The primary duties of the department are the
collection of taxes, titling and registration of motor
vehicles, and licensing of drivers throughout the

state.

The Director of Revenue is responsible for all
operations and policies of the department. The
Director is appointed by the Governor with the

advice and consent of the Senate.

Three divisions administer the operations of the
department. They are the Divisions of
Administration, Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing,
and Taxation and Collection. The directors of each
of these divisions are appointed by the Director of

Revenue.

The number of employees authorized by the
legislature for Fiscal Year 2002 was 2,019 with an
operating budget of $94,105,529. The operations of
the Highway Reciprocity Commission (HRC) are
included in the financial statements. HRC was
organized under the department as a "Type I
transfer" as is defined in Appendix B of the
Reorganization Act of 1974 (RSMo). The State Tax

Commission and State Lottery Commission,
although organized within the department, are
administered separately and therefore not included

in the financial statements.

Effective July 12, 2002, pursuant to Executive Order
02-03 and Senate Bill 1202, HRC transferred from
the jurisdiction of the Department of Revenue to the
Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT).
Effective with the transfer, HRC operations are no

longer part of the department’s reporting entity.

The department is subject to Sections 36.031,
36.100, 36.110, 36.120, and 36.130, RSMo relating
to the position classification plan of the State
Personnel Law (Merit System) and also to the pay
plan of the Merit System.

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

Director of Revenue

The Director of Revenue supervises all operations of
the Department of Revenue (department). The
Director formulates general policy and determines

long-term goals for the department.

The number of employees
authorized by the legislature
for Fiscal Year 2002 was

Deputy Director

The Deputy Director

2,019 with an operating
budget of $94.11 million.

has line authority for

operational decision-

making within the department.
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Budget Office

The Budget Office coordinates the preparation of the
department's annual budget request. This office
reviews core budgets to ensure they are consistent
with the department’s strategic plan outcomes,
priorities, and guidelines. The Budget Administrator
serves as the department liaison with the Office of
Administration’s Division of Budget and Planning

and the state legislature.

Center for Performance Excellence

The Center for Performance Excellence facilitates
the improvement of the department’s performance
by developing the department’s strategic plan
around its key products and outcomes, organizing
and leading teams designed to improve
responsiveness to customer wants and needs, and
implementing a department-wide career

development plan and training for employees.

General Counsel

The General Counsel advises the Director on all
legal matters. The attorneys in the General
Counsel's Office represent the Director in tax
litigation and in driving while intoxicated (DWI),
licensing, motor vehicle, and fuel tax hearings. This
office provides legal opinions interpreting the tax and

transportation laws of the state. This office also

adequacy for safeguarding the department's assets.
Internal Audit appraises the effectiveness and
efficiency of resource use and reports findings and

recommendations to department management.

Revenue Technology

Revenue Technology provides leadership, oversight,
and advice in the area of information technology to
help the department accomplish strategic goals and

program objectives.

Office of Legislation and Regulations

The Office of Legislation and Regulations is
responsible for the development and tracking of the
department’s legislative priorities through the
legislative process. The office also develops the
fiscal impact of all legislation that may impact the
operation of the department. In addition, it manages
the publication process for departmental rules and

regulations.

DIVISION OF
ADMINISTRATION

The Division of Administration is responsible for
providing service and administrative support to the
Department of Revenue (department). This includes

providing a quality work environment, maintaining

works closely with the Office of the Attorney

General and local prosecutors in court

The Division of
Administration provides

employee relations, procuring

goods and services, accounting,

service and administrative

proceedings involving state taxation and

transportation laws.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit reviews and evaluates the
department's administrative, operational, and

internal accounting controls to ensure their

support to the department.

finance, technology services,
investigative services, and general
services such as mail processing, warehousing, and
records storage. The division includes four bureaus

and one office.




Criminal Investigation Bureau

The Criminal Investigation Bureau is responsible for
creating and maintaining a climate for voluntary tax
and motor vehicle compliance by investigating
complaints and developing information leading to
prosecution of individuals violating state statutes.
The bureau operates six offices located throughout

the state.

Financial and General Services Bureau

The Financial and General Services Bureau
provides financial and general services to the
department. Accounting Services processes and
records departmental expenditures, prepares the
Department of Revenue Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, monthly spending plans, fiscal
note responses, the division's budget request,
coordinates the preparation of monthly financial
statements, provides control and record keeping of
the department's fixed assets, and monitors
telecommunication costs. Delivery Services
maintains and schedules vehicles and performs
deliveries. The Investment and Cash Management
Office provides deposit and accounting document
approval for all monies received and coordinates
investment and collateralization of nonstate funds
under the department's control. The Mail Service
Center handles incoming and outgoing mail.
Purchasing Services coordinates procurement
activities. Central Stores receives, stores, and
distributes supplies, forms, and new fixed assets.
The Warehouse and Archive Center archives
approximately 50,000 boxes of nonpermanent
department records and provides temporary storage
for overflow supplies and forms. Facilities
coordinates with the Office of Administration

regarding the maintenance and improvement of the

Overview

work environment within the department and

performs telephone moves and installations.

Human Resource Services Bureau

Human Resource Services provides employment
opportunities and employee relations’ services to all
employees within the department. Employment
Services coordinates the department’s payroll,
organizes all aspects of hiring, maintains official
personnel files, and handles workers' compensation
and unemployment claims. The Human Relations
Officer provides informal problem resolution
assistance and consultations to management and
staff and promotes a positive work environment.
The Manager of Human Resource Services
coordinates compensation and classification issues,
revises, creates, and interprets departmental policy,
prepares the Affirmative Action Plan, and oversees

the SAM Il HR system and report generation.

Technology Services Bureau

The Technology Services Bureau provides systems
development and support, production control,
database administration, and technical support

services throughout the department.

Division Director’s Office

The Division Director’s Office is responsible for the
overall administration of the four bureaus described

above.

- Vii -
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DIVISION OF MOTOR
VEHICLE AND DRIVERS
LICENSING

The Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing
is responsible for administering Missouri statutes
that relate to the licensing of drivers and the titling

and registration of motor vehicles, all-terrain

vehicles, trailers,
The Division of Motor Vehicle
and Drivers Licensing
administers Missouri statutes
relating to the licensing of
drivers and titling and
registration of motor vehicles,
all-terrain vehicles, trailers, and
marine craft.

and marinecraft.
This division

consists of three
bureaus and an

administrative

office.

Driver and Vehicle Services Bureau

The Driver and Vehicle Services Bureau is
responsible for the titling and registration of motor
vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, trailers, manufactured
homes, and marine craft in the state and issuing
disabled placards and temporary permits. It is also
responsible for licensing and regulating motor
vehicle and marinecraft dealers and manufacturers

and issuing registration certificates to dealers.

In addition, the bureau is responsible for suspending
and revoking, when applicable, driver licenses,
driving permits, and vehicle registrations. This
bureau processes and maintains records relating to
traffic violation point assessments, the administrative
driving while intoxicated (DWI) and abuse and lose
laws for alcohol/drug offenses, failure to appear in
court for traffic violations, and the safety
responsibility (mandatory insurance) laws for

uninsured motorists.

Customer Assistance Bureau

The Customer Assistance Bureau is responsible for
directing the operations of the 11 branch and 171
agent offices throughout the state. Branch offices
are staffed by state employees. Agent offices,
located in almost every county in Missouri and in
major metropolitan areas of the state, are
independently operated by contractual agents.
Agents have statutory authority to charge customers
service fees ranging from $2.50 to $5.00 for each
motor vehicle or driver license transaction. The
bureau oversees the processing and issuance of all
driver and nondriver licenses and school bus permits
and the certification of third party testers. In
addition, it oversees various phone centers to help

customers with their driver and vehicle transactions.

Information Technology Bureau

The Information Technology Bureau is responsible
for the technical analysis, design, development, and
implementation of the division's data processing

systems.

Division Director's Office

The Division Director’s Office is responsible for the
overall administration of the three bureaus and the
field operations described above. This includes the
preparation of legislative testimony, the review and
analysis of fiscal notes, the development of all
written communications, and the handling of the

divisional accounting and budgeting functions.

- Viii -
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DIVISION OF TAXATION
AND COLLECTION

The Division of Taxation and Collection is
responsible for the administration of Missouri's tax

laws and processes and administers forms and

reports for the
The Division of Taxation and

collection of Collection administers

Missouri’s tax laws.

revenue due the

state and local taxing jurisdictions.

Accounting Services Office

Accounting Services is responsible for cashiering
and depositing tax and fee collections, branch and
agent office accounting and return check collection,
division mail distribution, divisional accounting and
financial statement preparation, document security
enforcement, centralized filing systems, word
processing and microfilming functions, and division

forms and publication orders.

Business Tax

Business Tax (BT) is responsible for the
administration of sales/use, financial institutions,
insurance premiums, franchise, county, excise,
cigarette and other tobacco products, corporate
income, and withholding taxes and fees. BT also
distributes locally imposed sales and use taxes to
local jurisdictions, administers business tax
registration and issues sales/use tax licenses to
taxpayers, handles correspondence and taxpayer
protests, processes amended returns, writes
regulations, and pursues collections from
noncompliant taxpayers through its Nexus

programs.

Customer Assistance

Customer Assistance (CA) is responsible for
contacting individuals and businesses who have
unpaid tax liabilities, pursuing bad checks,
reimbursing prosecuting attorneys for collections
made, submitting fee payments to the recorder of
deeds for filing lien documents, conducting skip
tracing to locate taxpayers and their assets,
certifying files and records for the prosecuting
attorneys, and assisting the prosecuting attorneys
with account analysis to prosecute cases. CA is
also responsible for providing taxpayer assistance to
taxpayers in regional offices within Missouri. This
assistance includes answering questions, registering
taxpayers, issuing sales/use tax licenses,
participating in taxpayer training programs, making
field visits to taxpayers who are delinquent in paying
their taxes, and appearing in court on behalf of the
Director on cases pursued by the prosecuting

attorneys.

Field Audit (In-state and Out-state)

Field Audit is responsible for conducting field audits
of businesses required to pay taxes to the State of
Missouri. The in-state operations perform central
support functions and include eight offices. The out-
state operations include offices in Chicago, Dallas,
and New York.

Information Technology

Information Technology (IT) is responsible for the
technical analysis, design, development,
implementation, and maintenance of the division’s
data processing systems. IT provides quality
assurance, program maintenance, and technical
support for electronic data processing

communications, systems programming, and data
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base administration. IT also provides personal

computer software training, in-house programmer
training, system training to division personnel, and
administers electronic media including an Internet

web site and forms by fax for the division.

Personal Tax

Personal Tax is responsible for administering
individual income, partnership, fiduciary, and estate
taxes and property tax credits. Administrative
functions include tax return receipt and extraction of
incoming mail, tax return analysis, data entry, tax
return error correction, and discovery and collection

of tax liabilities.

Division Director's Office

The Division Director’s Office is responsible for the
overall administration of the areas described above.
This includes preparation of legislative testimony,
fiscal note preparation including administrative
impacts, preparation of the division’s budget
request, tax returns and forms design, and
electronic-commerce.

HIGHWAY RECIPROCITY
COMMISSION

The Missouri Highway Reciprocity Commission
(HRC) is a member of the International Registration
Plan and is authorized to negotiate and enter into

reciprocal agreements or arrangements with other

jurisdictions, the The Highway Reciprocity

Commission enters into
reciprocal agreements with
other states and jurisdictions to
coordinate collection of fuel
taxes and registration and
license fees from commercial
vehicle operators.

District of Columbia,
territories, and
possessions of the
United States and

foreign countries

concerning commercial motor vehicle registration
fees for interstate use of the highways. The HRC is
also a member of the International Fuel Tax
Agreement that enables it to collect fuel taxes under

base state reporting.

SUMMARY OF
BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Department of Revenue’s (department) annual
budget is prepared principally on the cash basis and
represents departmental appropriations
recommended by the Governor and passed by the
state legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal
year. If appropriations are not sufficient for a fiscal
year, the department may request supplemental
amounts during the next legislative session by the
same process it requested original appropriations.
The state legislature appropriates money to the
department at the divisional level. Expenditures
cannot exceed the appropriation amounts at the
General Assembly appropriated level. Also, the
Governor has the authority to reduce the allotments
or appropriations in any fund if it appears that
revenues for the fiscal year will fall below the
estimated revenues. Unexpended appropriations
lapse at the end of each appropriation year. The
budgetary basis differs from generally accepted
accounting principles. Therefore, amounts stated in
the accompanying schedules of appropriation and
expenditures — budget and actual are presented on
the budgetary basis, that is, the cash basis. The

schedules begin on page 36.
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MANAGEMENT
RESPONSIBILITIES AND
REPRESENTATIONS

The financial statements are based on generally
accepted accounting principles considered by
management to present fairly and consistently the
Department of Revenue's (department) financial

position and results of operations.

The department's system of internal accounting
controls is designed to provide reasonable

assurance that (1) transactions are executed in

accordance with The department-wide financial

statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting and
the fund statements are
prepared on the modified
accrual basis in conformity with
generally accepted accounting
principles.

management’s
authorizations; (2)
assets are

protected against

loss from

unauthorized use or disposition; and (3) financial
records are reliable to prepare financial statements
and maintain accountability of assets and

obligations.

PENSION AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Department of Revenue’s (department)
employees are covered under the Missouri State
Employees’ Retirement System (MOSERS). The
Office of Administration makes the contribution to
MOSERS for the department’s employees.
Beginning on page 34 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements is additional information about employee

pensions and other benefits.

AUDIT

The accompanying financial statements have not
been audited by an independent auditor. The

financial statements have been marked unaudited.
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The Financial Section includes the Management Discussion and Analysis, basic
department-wide and fund financial statements, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds
statements, notes to the financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules,
combining fund financial statements, and capital assets schedules.




A
S
S

P gt (@)
* Q7 eskiEpEe, O **
S 25 *

Missouri Department of Revenue

\\\‘\

Ky

NNGASS
\

*C*?
N

Management Discussion and Analysis

* **
W

iy

' * STATE OF
LRy
A \NRES

)
(!

The Management Discussion and Analysis provides a
summary of the Department of Revenue’s
fiscal year financial activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis of the Missouri Department of Revenue’s (department) financial performance

provides a summary of the department’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. Consider the

information presented here in conjunction with additional information in the Introductory Section beginning on

page v and the department’s financial statements beginning on page 13.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The liabilities of the Department of Revenue
(department) exceeded its assets at June 30, 2002,
by $36 million. The department’s total net assets
decreased by $15 million. This decrease is mainly
attributable to an increased distribution amount
owed to cities and counties at June 30, 2002, for

Fiscal Year 2002 motor fuel tax collections.

At June 30, 2002, the governmental funds that the
department deposits to and/or operates from had a
combined ending negative fund balance of $14.8
million, a decrease of $15.8 million compared to
Fiscal Year 2001. This balance includes $1,000
reserved for encumbrances and $3.5 million
reserved for inventory, leaving a negative

unreserved fund balance of $18.4 million.

The department’s negative unreserved fund balance
is due to paying Fiscal Year 2002 liabilities with
Fiscal Year 2003 appropriations (mainly motor fuel
tax collections owed to cities and counties). The
department’s total debt increased by $2 million
during Fiscal Year 2002. The key factor in this
increase was the Article X refund liability of $6

million owed to taxpayers at June 30, 2002.

OVERVIEW OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Department of Revenue’s (department ) basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1)
Department-wide financial statements; 2) Fund
financial statements; and 3) Notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic

financial statements.

DEPARTMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The department-wide financial statements provide a
broad overview of the Department of Revenue’s
(department) finances in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. The Statement of Net
Assets presents information on the department’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the

department is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information
showing how the department’s net assets changed
during the fiscal year. The department records
changes in net assets when the underlying event
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Therefore, some revenues and expenses

reported in this statement will only result in cash




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Unaudited

flows in future fiscal years (for example, uncollected

taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the department-wide financial statements
distinguish between governmental activities and
business-type activities. The department’s
governmental activities are supported by
appropriations and include tax collection and
enforcement, titling and registration of vehicles, and
licensing of drivers. The only business-type

activities of the department is sales of information.

FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The state of Missouri uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with legal
requirements and to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The funds that the Department of
Revenue (department) deposits to or operates from
are divided into three categories: 1) Governmental

funds; 2) Proprietary funds; and 3) Fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds account for the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the
department-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the department-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating the
department’s near-term financing requirements. The
governmental fund financial statements are on

pages 15 through 17.

Because the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the department-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in
the department-wide financial statements. This
comparison shows the long-term impact of the
department’s near-term financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the
governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental

activities.

Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the
governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for
the General Fund, Motor Fuel Tax Fund, School
District Trust Fund, and the State Highway and
Transportation Department Fund. These funds are
major funds. Data from the other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the

combining statements beginning on page 47.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULES

The Department of Revenue (department) receives
an annual appropriated budget from some of the
governmental funds. To demonstrate compliance
with the budget, budgetary comparison schedules
begin on page 36. These schedules provide original
and final appropriations and a comparison to actual

expenditures for the General Fund and major special
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revenue funds. Also included is a reconciliation from
budget basis to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) basis.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Department of Revenue (department)
administers one proprietary fund, the Department of
Revenue Information Fund. The department uses
this fund to account for its sales of information. The
department must receive appropriations to spend
from the fund. The proprietary fund statements
provide the same type of information as the
department-wide financial statements, only in more

detail. They are on pages 19 through 21.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Department of Revenue (department) uses
agency funds, a type of fiduciary fund, to account for
resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
department. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
department-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support
the department. Agency funds use the accrual basis
of accounting. The agency fund financial statement
is found on page 22 and the detail schedule on

pages 62 through 70.

During the year, the department invests, through its
contracted bank, temporary surplus cash from the
various agency funds. The contracted bank pools
most of these funds’ cash balances for investment
purposes. The department invested the surplus
cash in United States Treasury securities and certain
federal agency securities. At June 30, 2002, these

investments consisted of overnight repurchase

agreements in the amount of $166,500,000 and term
securities in the amount of $24,815,803. The
average yield on maturing investments during the
year was 2.4 percent and the amount of interest
earned was $3,467,745.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the department-
wide and fund financial statements. The notes to

the financial statements begin on page 23.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Department of Revenue’s (department) capital
assets consist of furniture and equipment. The
department uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens and are not available for future
spending. Appropriations are needed to repay any
related debt (capital leases) because the capital

assets cannot be liquidated to pay these liabilities.

Following is a summary of the department’s capital

assets net of depreciation.
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SUMMARY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE’S CAPITAL ASSETS

(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 001
Total Capital Assets (net) $ 4,220,641 6,823,464 85,134 129,854 4,305,775 6,953,318

Additional information about the department’s capital assets is in note 4 on page 31.

NET ASSETS

As mentioned earlier in the Financial Highlights, the
Department of Revenue’s (department) net assets
decreased by $15 million during the current fiscal
year. Besides the liability increase for motor fuel tax
collections owed to cities and counties at June 30,
2002, the decrease also represents the decrease in
the department’s investment in capital assets. The
department’s investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business type activities as of
June 30, 2002, amounts to $4.3 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). The total decrease in
the department’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 38 percent. The decrease for
governmental activities was 38 percent, and for

business-type activities it was 34 percent. The

department only purchased $360 thousand more of
capital assets than it surplused during Fiscal Year
2002. The decrease in capital asset investment is

because of depreciation expense.

An additional $3.5 million of the department’s net
assets represents supply inventories that are subject
to restrictions. They cannot be used to pay
liabilities. The negative balance of unrestricted net
assets resulted from the department paying Fiscal
Year 2002 expenses with Fiscal Year 2003
appropriations (mainly motor fuel tax collections
owed to cities and counties). The same situation
held true for the prior fiscal year. A summary of the

department’s net assets follows.

SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE’S NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2002 2002 2002

Current and Other Assets $ 1,116,208,000 418,000 1,116,626,000
Capital Assets (net) 4,220,641 85,134 4,305,775

Total Assets 1,120,428,641 503,134 ~1,120,931,775
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 32,432,284 - T 32,432,284
Other Liabilities 1,123,869,716 290,000 1,124,159,716

Total Liabilities 1,156,302,000 ~ 290,000 ~1,156,592,000
Net Assets: (35,873,359) 213,134 ~ (35,660,225)
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related $ 4,222,641 T 85,134 T 4307,775
Debt
Restricted 3,516,000 159,000 3,675,000
Unrestricted (43,612,000) (31,000) (43,643,000)

Total Net Assets $ (35,873,359) - 213,134 - (35,660,225)
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Governmental activities decreased the department’s accounting for only .2 percent of the total decrease

net assets by $15,156,000, thereby accounting for in the department’s net assets. Changes in net
99.8 percent of the total decrease in the net assets assets are shown below.
of the department. Business-type activities

decreased the department’s net assets by $32,000

SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE’S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2002 2002 2002
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 2,913,000 2,913,000
Operating Grants and Contributions 494,000 494,000
Appropriations 266,025,000 266,025,000
General Revenues:
Corporate Income Tax 136,206,000 136,206,000

Individual Income Tax
Licenses, Permits, and Fees
Motor Fuel Tax

Sales and Use Tax

Other Revenues

3,518,551,000
357,381,000
627,196,000
2,697,618,000
538,438,000

3,518,551,000
357,381,000
627,196,000
2,697,618,000
538,438,000

Total Revenues 8,141,909,000 2,913,000 8,144,822,000
Expenses:
Operating 81,304,000 895,594 82,199,594
Distributions 197,385,000 197,385,000
Depreciation 2,987,117 28,406 3,015,523
Provision for Transmittal to State
Treasury 7,875,389,000 2,021,000 7,877,410,000
Total Expenses and Transmittal 8,157,065,117 2,945,000 8,160,010,117
(Increase) in Net Assets (15,156,117) (32,000) (15,188,117)
Net Assets — June 30, 2001 6,423,000 245,000 6,668,000
Prior Period Adjustment (27,140,000) (27,140,000)
Net Assets — June 30, 2002 (35,873,000) 213,000 (35,660,000)
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DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COLLECTIONS

General Fund collections decreased by $112 million
or 1.5 percent. Most of this decrease is because of
the sluggishness of the Missouri economy compared
to previous years. State money collected by the
Department of Revenue (department) totaled $9.56

billion in Fiscal Year 2002, a decrease of .09 percent
over Fiscal Year 2001. The department collected 97
percent of the state’s General Fund collections. The
department collected 52 percent of all state funds’
collections. The graph below shows the percent of
state of Missouri General Fund collections by
source. The graph on the next page shows

department collections for all state funds.

Licenses, Fees, & Permits
1%

Interest
Inheritance/Estate 1%

2%

County Foreign Insurance
2%

Corporate Income & Franchise Tax
6%

Individual Income Tax
61%

MISSOURI COLLECTIONS BY SOURCE
General Fund
Fiscal Year 2002
(budgetary basis)

Sales, Services, Leases, & Rentals

1%

All Other Receipts
1%

Sales & Use Tax
25%
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STATE OF MISSOURI
STATE COLLECTIONS BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
All Funds
(budgetary basis)
4,600,000
4,100,000 -
4
£ 3,600,000
[<]
2 3,100,000 1
[3)
§ 2,600,000
& 2,100,000
3
= 1,600,000 -
£ 1,100,000
600,000
100,000 ,. y y - y - y -] -] - -
Corporate  Individual Licenses, Motor Fuel Salesand Insurance  Gaming Other
Income and Income Tax Permits, Tax Use Tax Tax Gross Revenues
Franchise and Fees Receipts
Tax Tax
W Fiscal Year 2002
B Fiscal Year 2001 Note: The portion of motor fuel and highway use taxes and fees distributed to cities and counties
are not included in these collections.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
EXPENSES

expenses were mainly because of additional budget
withholdings needed to balance the Missouri budget

The Department of Revenue’s expenses by major as required by the Constitution of Missouri.

category are shown below. Decreases in

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSES FUND STATEMENTS

(in thousands of dollars)

% % Increase/ Decrease
2002 of Total 2001 from 2001
Personal Service $53,028 65% 56,839 (6.7)%
Expense and Equipment 28,629 35 31,773 (9.9)
Total Department of Revenue
Government Expenses $81,657 100% 88,612 (7.8)%
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The Department of Revenue’s business-type

activities’ revenues and expenses are summarized

in the graphs below.

B Expenses

B Program Revenues

3,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

In Thousands of Dollars
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1,000,000 -
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
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Fiscal Year

Motor Vehicle and

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
SALES OF INFORMATION BY DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2002
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Collection
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Administration
14%

B Administration
B Highway Reciprocity

OMotor Vehicle and
Drivers

@ Taxation and
Collection
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF
THE GOVERNMENT FUNDS

As noted earlier, the state of Missouri uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. The
Department of Revenue follows the state’s

accounting practices.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the Department of Revenue’s
(department) governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information
is useful in assessing the department’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance serves as a useful measure of the
department’s net resources available for spending at

the end of the fiscal year.

As mentioned earlier in this Management Discussion
and Analysis, at the end of the current fiscal year,
the department’'s governmental funds reported a
combined ending negative fund balance of $14.8
million, a decrease of $15.8 million over the prior
year. The negative unreserved fund balance is a
result of the department spending Fiscal Year 2003
appropriations to pay for Fiscal Year 2002
expenditures (mainly motor fuel tax distributions to
cities and counties). The positive fund balance is
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed to
liquidate $1,000 of contracts and purchase orders of
the prior period and $3.5 million represents

inventory.

The General Fund and the State Highway and
Transportation Department Fund (SHTDF) are the
chief operating funds of the department. At the end
of the current fiscal year, unreserved negative fund
balance of the General Fund was $1.5 million while
the total negative fund balance was $1.1 million.
The SHTDF’s unreserved negative fund balance
was $1.5 million and its total negative fund balance

was $1.2 million.

The fund balance of the department’s General Fund
increased by $120 thousand during the current fiscal
year. The key factor in this growth was an increase
in the postage inventory the department carried at
the end of Fiscal Year 2002 over Fiscal Year 2001.
The SHTDF fund balance decreased $392
thousand. This decrease is because of the larger
refunds payable and due to the state treasurer
liability balances the department carried at the end
of Fiscal Year 2002.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Department of Revenue’s (department)
proprietary funds statement provides the same type
of business-type activity information in the
department-wide financial statements, but in more
detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Department of
Revenue Information Fund at the end of the year is
a negative $31 thousand. The total decrease in net
assets was $64 thousand. Other factors concerning
the finances of this fund are addressed in the graphs
depicting the department’s business-type activities

on the previous page.
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TRANSFERS

The Department of Revenue Information Fund owed
a $925 thousand transfer to the State Highway and
Transportation Department Fund (SHTDF) at June
30, 2002. The Motor Fuel Tax Fund owed the
SHTDF $46 million at year end and transferred $579
million during the year. Note 9 on page 34

discusses the reasons for these transfers.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Increases between the original budget and the final
amended budget are for refunds and other program
specific distributions. Increases and decreases to
individual operating appropriations are because of
transfers between appropriations. The
appropriations that received an actual increase and

the amount of the increase are listed below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE APPROPRIATION INCREASES
FISCAL YEAR 2002
General Fund
Fees to Counties and Collection Agency Fees $ 51,000
Refunds for Overpayment of Tax 48,341,000
Motor Fuel Tax Refund
Refunds for Aviation Trust Fund 144,000
State Highway and Transportation Department Fund
Refunds of Any Tax or Fee Credited to State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund 241,000
All Other Budgeted Governmental Funds
Refunds of Tobacco and Cigarette Tax 297,000
Refunds — Overpayment and Errors of the Workers’ Compensation
— Second Injury Fund 331,000
Total Appropriation Increases $ 49,405,000

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Department
of Revenue (department) had total debt outstanding

of $32 million. Of this amount,

$802 thousand comprises obligations under
lease/purchase, $26 million is compensated
absences, and $5.9 million is the amount owed for
Article X distributions. A table of current year debt is

shown on the following page.

~10 -
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Obligations Under Lease/Purchase
Compensated Absences

Article X Distributions

Total

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE’S OUTSTANDING DEBT

Governmental Activities

2002
$ 802,284
25,730,000
5,900,000
$ 32,432,284

For additional information about the department’s
long-term debt, refer to the Notes to the Financial

Statements starting on page 32.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The unemployment rate for the state of Missouri at
June 30, 2002 was 5.4 percent, which is an increase
from a rate of 4.1 percent at June 30, 2001. This
compares favorably to the national average
unemployment rate at June 30, 2002, of 6 percent.
However, Missouri’'s 5.4 percent is its highest
unemployment rate since February 1994. Missouri
lost 55,000 jobs this fiscal year, more than any other
state. These factors had an adverse impact on

revenue collections.

Inflationary trends are favorable. In June 2002, the

national rate was .1 percent.

Personal income increased 3.9 percent in calendar
year 2001 over calendar year 2000 to $158 billion.

In calendar year 2002, it increased 3.2 percent to
$164 billion. The national increase was lower at 2.8
percent. The last six months of calendar year 2001
are the first six months of Fiscal Year 2002, and the
first six months of calendar year 2002 are the last six

months of Fiscal Year 2002. Income levels are 8.4

percent above the national average. Per capita
income for the nation is $25,859, and for Missouri it
is $28,029.

Missouri ranks eighteenth out of the 50 states in
personal income. Missouri’s personal income

growth rate ranks thirty-first.

Despite the slowdown in Missouri’'s economy,
according to Standard & Poor’s, “Missouri’'s
economy is diverse and remains stable.” This was
stated in Standard & Poor’s explanation for giving an
August 2002 Missouri general obligation bond issue
the highest rating, AAA.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
RATIOS

Financial Position

Unrestricted Net Assets to Expenses (13)%
Financial Performance

Change in Net Assets to Total Assets  (1)%
Liquidity

Cash, Current Investments, and

Receivables to Current Liabilities 96%

Solvency

Long-Term Debt to Assets 2.9%

-11 -
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REQUESTS FOR
INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of the Department of Revenue’s
(department) finances for all those with an interest in
the department’s finances. Address questions
concerning the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information to the
Financial and General Services Bureau, Missouri
Department of Revenue, P.O. Box 475, Jefferson
City, MO 65105-0475; 573-751-7429; or

Becky_Imhoff@mail.dor.state.mo.us.

-12 -
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Department-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic statements provide the Department of
Revenue’s financial position and operating results.




Missouri Department of Revenue

Department-wide Financial Statements

The department-wide financial statements consolidate and
report on all of the Department of Revenue’s nonfiduciary
financial activities on an accrual basis of accounting.




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1.D. & 3) $ 15,708 43 15,751
Investments (Notes 1.E. & 3) 9,691 7 9,698
Receivables (Note 1.G.) 1,122,648 231 1,122,879
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (Note 1.G.) (176,566) (22) (176,588)
Due From State Treasurer (Note 1.1.) 107,551 925 108,476
Internal Balances (Note 9) 925 (925) 0
Funds in Custody of State Treasurer (Note 1.J.) 32,736 32,736
Postage Inventory (Note 1.K.) 419 159 578
Supply Inventory (Note 1.K.) 605 605
License Plate and Tab Inventory (Note 1.K.) 2,491 2,491
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) (Notes 1.L. & 4) 4,221 85 4,306

Total Assets $ 1,120,429 503 1,120,932
LIABILITIES $
Accounts Payable 6,808 45 6,853
Accrued Payroll 1,614 7 1,621
Refunds Payable (Note 1.M.) 61,396 61,396
Due to Other Entities (Note 1.N.) 48,127 48,127
Due to State Treasurer (Note 1.1.) 546,719 238 546,957
Deferred Revenue (Note 1.P.) 465,908 465,908
Compensated Absences (Notes 1.Q., 6 & 8) 25,730 25,730

Total Liabilities $ 1,156,302 290 1,156,592
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 4,222 85 4,307
Restricted for Inventory 3,517 159 3,676
Unrestricted (43,612) (31) (43,643)

Total Net Assets $ (35,873) 213 (35,660)
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The fund financial statements report Department of Revenue nonfiduciary financial
activity on a modified accrual basis of accounting. Also included is a reconciliation
of the fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the department-wide Statement of Activities.
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Major Funds

Major Fund Descriptions

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the state of Missouri’'s
primary operating fund. The department
receives about half its operational funding from
the General Fund.

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for motor
fuel tax collections and its distributions to the
State Highways and Transportation Department
Fund and the agency fund, Fuel Local Deposit
(FLOYD) Fund.

SCHOOL DISTRICT TRUST FUND

The School District Trust Fund accounts for
education (Proposition C) sales and use tax
collections.

STATE HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT FUND

The State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund accounts for collections that
are derived from highway users as an incident
to their use or right to use the highways of the
state. The department receives about half its
operational funding from this fund.

-15 -



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1.D. & 3) $
Investments (Note 1.E. & 3)

Interest Receivable

Appropriations Receivable

Accounts Receivable (Note 1.G.)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (Note 1.G.)
Due From Other Funds (Notes 1.H. & 9)

Due From State Treasurer (Note 1.1.)

Funds in Custody of State Treasurer (Note 1.J.)
Postage Inventory (Note 1.K.)

Supply Inventory (Note 1.K.)

License Plate and Tab Inventory (Note 1.K.)

Total Assets $
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $

Accrued Payroll

Refunds Payable (Note 1.M.)

Bank Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities (Note 1.N.)

Due to Other Funds (Notes 1.H. & 9)

Due to State Treasurer (Note 1.1.)

Funds Held in Trust (Note 1.0.)

Deferred Revenue (Note 1.P.)
Compensated Absences (Notes 1.Q., 6, & 8)

Total Liabilities $
FUND EQUITY
Fund Balance (Notes 1.R.)
Reserved for Encumbrances $
Reserved for Inventory
Unreserved
Total Fund Equity $
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $

Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

ScHooL STATE HIGHWAY  ALL OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL MOTOR FUEL DISTRICT AND TRANS.  GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TAX FUND TRUST FUND DEPT. FUND FUNDS 2002

3,726 111 1,159 4574 6,138 15,708
5,856 27 1,632 784 1,392 9,691

8 2 1 1 12
©) (40) 28 @1)
853,688 122,785 61,845 5,040 73348 1,116,706
(154,800) (148) (17,689) (3.929)  (176,566)
47,080 47,080

57,787 46,155 3,401 208 107,551
39,224 2 39,226
292 127 419

226 379 605
2,491 2,491

805,998 168,930 46,949 63,837 77,188 1,162,902
534 224 95 853

888 719 7 1,614
57,787 3,401 208 61,396
2 1 1 1 5
32,734 15,393 48,127
46,155 46,155

295,202 122,772 33,339 57,478 37,928 546,719
6,490 6,490
413274 3 13,609 39,022 465,908
214 259 2 475
807,125 184,323 46,949 62,082 77263 1,177,742
1 1

518 2,997 1 3516
(1,645) (15,393) (1,242) an (18,357)
(1.127) (15,393) 0 1,755 (75) (14,840

805,998 168,930 46,949 63,837 77,188

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. $ 4,221
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,

therefore, are deferred in the funds. 5,951
Long-term liabilities not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds. (31,205)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities. $ (35,873)



REVENUES

Appropriations $
Corporate Income Tax

Individual Income Tax

Licenses, Permits, and Fees

Motor Fuel Tax

Sales and Use Tax

Other Revenues

Total (Notes 1.S. & 2.D.) $
Provision for Transmittal to State Treasury $
Net Revenues $
EXPENDITURES
Personal Service $

Expense and Equipment (Note 2.D.)
Article X Distributions (Note 7)
Commercial Drivers License Information System Fees
Payment of Dues to Multi-State Tax Commission
Distributions to Cities of Funds Accruing to the

Motor Fuel Tax Fund
County Stock Insurance Tax
Fees to Counties and Collection Agency Fees
Payment of Fees to Counties for Liens

Total Expenditures (Note 1.T. & 2.D.) $

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures Before Lapsed Balances $

Lapsed Balances (Note 1.U.)
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers In $
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $
Provision for Transfers to Other Funds

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $

(Increase) Decrease in Reserve
for Encumbrances

Net change in Unreserved Fund Balance $
Fund Balance Unreserved - July 1, 2001 (Note 12)

Fund Balance Unreserved
- June 30, 2002 $

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

SCHOOL STATE HIGHWAY  ALL OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL MOTOR FUEL DISTRICT AND TRANS.  GOVERNMENTAL
FUND TAX FUND TRUST FUND DEPT. FUND FUNDS 2002

44,396 188,000 48,570 3,847 284,813
136,206 136,206
3,508,065 10,486 3,518,551
27,923 167,581 161,877 357,381
624,721 2,200 275 627,196

1,728,290 641,586 40,517 287225 2,697,618
143 468 4 98 (6,933) 401,801 538,438
5,588,348 812,725 641,684 251,935 865511 8,160,203
5,543,952 624,725 641,684 203,364 861,664 7,875,389
44,396 188,000 0 48,571 3,847 284,814
26,221 25941 866 53,028
7,684 19,979 966 28,629

0

275 275

232 232
191,285 191,285

0

150 150

2,097 2,097

169 169
36,553 191,285 0 46,195 1,832 275,865
7.843 (3.285) 0 2,376 2,015 8,949
7,966 12,085 2,123 2,069 24,243
(123) (15,370) 0 253 (54) (15,294)

925 925

0

0 0 0 925 0 925

925 925

(123) (15,370) 0 253 (54) (15,294)

0 0 0 0 0 0

(123) (15,370) 0 253 (54) (15,294)
(1,522) (23) (1,495) (23) (3,063)
(1,645) (15,393) 0 (1,242) @) (18,357)




Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHNAGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMNETAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (page 14) are
different because of the items listed below:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17) $ (15,294)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (1,352)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 5,949

The issuance of long-term debt (leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt. 0

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (4,459)

Change in net assets of governmental activites (page 14) 3$ (15,156)




Missouri Department of Revenue

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Fund Description

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE (DOR)
INFORMATION FUND

The Department of Revenue Information Fund, as authorized by Section
32.067, RSMo, receives fees that the Department of Revenue (department)
charges for its information and publications sold to individuals, businesses,
federal, state, and local governments. In accordance with Section 33.080,
RSMo, at the end of each odd-numbered fiscal year, the department trans-
fers the fund balance exceeding $25,000 related to general revenue activi-
ties to the General Fund. In accordance with Section 32.067, RSMo, at the
end of each fiscal year, the department transfers the fund balance, which is
not related to general revenue activities to the State Highways and Trans-
portation Department Fund.

Proprietary funds account for business-type activities
on an accrual basis of accounting. The DOR Information
Fund is the Department of Revenue’s only proprietary fund.




Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
INFORMATION FUND

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1.D. & 3) $ 43
Accounts Receivable (Note 1.G.) 210
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (Note 1.G.) (22)
Investments (Notes 1.E. & 3) 7
Other Current Assets 1,105
Total Current Assets $ 1,343
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets: (Notes 1.L. & 4)
Equipment $ 396
Less Accumulated Depreciation (311)
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 85
Total Assets $ 1,428
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $ 290
Due to Other Funds (Notes 1.H. & 9) 925
Total Current Liabilities $ 1,215

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 0
Total Liabilities $ 1,215

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets $ 85
Reserved for Inventory (Note 1.R.) 159
Unrestricted (Deficit) (Note 1.R.) (31)

Total Net Assets $ 213



DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of Information
Sales and Use Tax

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services
Expense and Equipment
Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Appropriations (less lapse balance)
Intergovernmental

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Transfers to Other Funds (Note 9)

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
INFORMATION FUND

$

2,026
()

2,021
399
497

28

924

1,097

892

(1,096)

(204)
(925)
(32)

245
213



DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
INFORMATION FUND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Sales of Information

Cash Received from Sales and Use Tax

Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers

Lapse Balance (Note 1.U.)

Net Increase in Use of Subsequent Year Appropriation (Note 1.R.)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Capital Lease Payments (and Interest)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activites

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Net Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Assets
Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

«h|en

2,045
41
(414)
(478)
(37)
2

1,159

(925)

(925)

234

234

1,097
28
(64)

98

1,159



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Missouri Department of Revenue

Fiduciary Funds

The Department of Revenue’s (department) fiduciary funds
are all agency funds. The agency funds account for money
that the department collects for other entities.




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
STATEMENT OF AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Investments, at Fair Value:

U.S. Treasury Securities

U.S. Agency Securities

Safety Responsibility Securities

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Bank Service Charges Payable
Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

JUNE 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

AGENCY

FUNDS

16,876

256

167,495
(29,384)

44,113
137,384
2,564

339,304

22
339,282

339,304




Missouri Department of Revenue

Notes to the Financial Statements
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The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a summary of
significant accounting policies and other disclosures required
for a fair presentation of the basic financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Department of Revenue
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Year Ended June 30, 2002

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the Department of Revenue (department)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities. The following
notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the department’'s Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report.

NOTE 1.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Department of Revenue (department) is a
component unit of the state of Missouri. The
reporting entity includes divisions and one
commission for which the Director of Revenue is
financially accountable. Exclusion of such
divisions and commission would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading and incomplete. In Fiscal Year
2002, the department excluded the State Lottery
Commission and State Tax Commission from its
reporting entity. These commissions are not
financially accountable to the Director of
Revenue and therefore are fiscally independent.
The state of Missouri blends the department’s
financial data into the primary government’s
financial statements.

B. Department-Wide and Fund Financial
Statements

The department-wide financial statements (i.e.,
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Changes in Net Assets) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
Department of Revenue (department). The
effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Department activities
are supported by appropriations. These are
reported separately from business-type
activities. The department’s business-type
activities are reported in one fund which
receives fees for sales of information.

Program revenues on the Statement of
Activities include charges to customers for sales
of information, grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function, and
appropriations. Taxes and fees that the
department collects are reported as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are
excluded from the department-wide and fund
financial statements. Major individual funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of
Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The department-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

The fund financial statements are reported
using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be
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Unaudited

available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose,
the Department of Revenue (department)
considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting except for the
following:

1. Fixed assets are reported as
expenditures when acquired;

2. Long-term compensated absence
obligations (accumulated vacation and
compensatory time) and sick pay are
recorded as expenditures when paid;

3. Inventories are recorded as expenditures
when purchased; and

4. Lease purchase payments are recorded
as expenditures when paid.

In the fund financial statements, corporate and
individual income tax, some licenses, permits,
and fees, motor fuel tax, sales and use tax, and
some other revenue are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of fiscal year 2002
even though the department may have collected
them during the lapse period of fiscal year 2003.
All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the
department receives the cash.

The department reports the General Fund,
Motor Fuel Tax Fund, School District Trust
Fund, and State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund as major funds. These are
classified as governmental funds.

The department has one proprietary fund, the
Department of Revenue (DOR) Information
Fund. It receives fees the department charges
for the sales of its information and publications.
These fees are classified as operating revenue
in the financial statements. Operating expenses
consists of sales and service, administrative
costs, and depreciation expense on capital
assets. Nonoperating expenses are transfers to

the State Highway and Transportation
Department Fund.

The other fund type the department reports is
fiduciary funds which are all agency funds. The
department’s agency funds account for
collections made for other states and provinces,
Missouri cities, counties, and school districts,
and other organizations.

The department follows private-sector
accounting and financial reporting standards
issued prior to December 1, 1989, for both the
department-wide and DOR Information Fund
financial statements if those standards do not
conflict with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) guidance. The
department follows GASB, and not private-
sector, standards issued after December 1,
1989.

The department reports all revenue it collects
(taxes and licenses, permits, and fees) as
general revenue in the department-wide
Statement of Activity. Upon collection, the
department transmits all revenues to the
Missouri State Treasury. The department does
not have authority to use these revenues to
support department operations.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money held
in cash management accounts, collection
system accounts, and float.

E. Investments

Cash resources in the agency funds are
combined to form a pool for investment
purposes. These are stated at fair value. The
Department of Revenue’s (department)
contracted bank manages the investments in
accordance with an agreement entered into in
July 1998. (The department entered into a new
contract in September 2002.) The department's
contracted bank distributes interest income
earned as a result of pooling to the appropriate
funds based on each fund's equity in the pooled
investments.
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According to generally accepted accounting
principles, the department reports the portions
of agency fund assets held at June 30 for other
agency and governmental funds in those funds.

F. Interest Receivable

Interest receivable represents accrued interest
on investment securities.

G. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are derived primarily from
taxes and interest and penalties or additions to
tax. Receivables are reported gross of
allowances for doubtful accounts. Allowances
for doubtful accounts are presented separately
in the financial statements.

Estimates of withholding, sales and use, and
motor fuel and special fuel taxes due to the
Department of Revenue (department) are
computer or manually generated based on the
taxpayer's past liability when the taxpayer fails
to file a return when due. Estimates of
individual and corporate taxes are based on
matching with federal tax returns. It is uncertain
whether a liability exists at the time the estimate
is generated, therefore, the actual tax receivable
is not measurable. Thus, estimates are not
included in the receivables or revenues shown
on the financial statements. At June 30, 2002,
the tax revenue estimate was approximately
$482 million.

Receivables to the General Fund are 23 percent
corporate income tax, 42 percent individual
income tax, 23 percent sales and use tax, and
12 percent all other revenue. Receivables to
the Motor Fuel Tax Fund are all motor fuel tax.
Receivables to the School District Trust Fund
are all sales and use tax. Receivables to the
State Highway and Transportation Department
Fund are 25 percent sales and use tax, 74
percent license, permits, and fees, and the rest
are due from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund and DOR
Information Fund. The remaining receivables in
the nonmajor governmental funds are 11
percent licenses, permits, and fees, 80 percent
sales and use tax, and 9 percent all other
revenue.

H. Internal Balances/Due To and Due
From Other Funds

The internal balances reported on the
department-wide Statement of Activity
represents the amount the DOR Information
Fund owes the General Fund and/or the State
Highways and Transportation Department Fund.

Due to and due from other funds reported in the
fund financial statements represent interfund
payables and receivables that arise from
interfund transfers required by Missouri statutes.

I. Due To and Due From State Treasurer

Amounts reported as due to the state treasurer
represent the Department of Revenue’s
obligation to transfer accounts receivable (less
allowances and deferred revenues) to the state
treasurer when received. Amounts reported as
due from the state treasurer represent
payments received from taxpayers in excess of
their computed tax liability.

J. Funds in Custody of State Treasurer

Funds in custody of the state treasurer are sales
tax bonds, transient employer bonds, and
protested income and sales and use tax. The
corresponding liabilities are funds held in trust
(protested taxes) and due to other entities
(bonds).

K. Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, postage, license
plates, and tabs. Supply inventories consist
primarily of office supplies and bureau-specific
forms. Inventories are valued at actual cost
using the first-in, first-out method of inventory
valuation. In the department-wide statements,
inventories are expensed as used. In the fund
financial statements they are recognized as
expenditures when purchased using the
purchase method.

Inventories on-hand at fiscal year end are
recorded on the fund financial statements as a
reserve of fund balance.
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L. Capital Assets

Capital assets include furniture and equipment.
They are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column
of the department-wide Statement of Net
Assets. The Department of Revenue
(department) follows the Missouri State
Auditor’s definition of a capital asset, which is
an asset that costs more than $1,000 with a
useful life of more than one year. The
department depreciates capital assets using the
straight line method over the estimated useful
lives stated below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES

Assets Years
Vehicles 5
Furniture 10
Office Equipment 5
Computer Equipment 3

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or
estimated historical cost when actual historical
cost is unknown. In the fund financial
statements, capital assets are reported as
expenditures when purchased.

M. Refunds Payable

Refunds payable consist of amounts owed for
overpayment of individual and corporate income
tax, corporate franchise tax, sales and use tax,
insurance premium tax, estate tax, motor fuel
tax, workers’ compensation, overpayments, and
errors.

N. Due to Other Entities

The due to other entities amount includes cash
and transient employer bonds held by the state
treasury, fees owed for collection services, and
motor fuel tax distributions owed to local
governments.

O. Funds Held In Trust

Funds held in trust in the General Fund
represent income tax and the 3 percent General
Fund portion of sales and use tax paid under

protest. Protested sales and use taxes and
income taxes are either returned to the taxpayer
or remitted to the state based upon decisions
reached by the Administrative Hearing
Commission or various courts.

P. Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues are accounts receivable that
have met asset recognition criteria but have not
met revenue recognition criteria. Therefore,
such amounts are reported within the
accompanying financial statements as an asset
and offset by a deferred revenue account (net of
allowances). As the revenue recognition criteria
is met in subsequent periods, the liability for
deferred revenues is removed and revenue is
recoghized. On the fund statements revenues
have been offset $568,073,985 within the
General Fund, $150,483 within the Motor Fuel
Tax Fund, $31,298,094 within the School
District Trust Fund, $0 within the State Highway
and Transportation Department Fund, and
$42,959,088 in all other funds.

Q. Long-Term Debt

Long-term obligations of the Department of
Revenue consist of compensated absences,
lease/purchase obligations, and Article X
distributions.

Compensated absences represent
accumulated unpaid vacation and
compensatory time in the department-wide and
DOR Information Fund financial statements, and
it is accrued when incurred. In the fund
statements, the liability represents only the
amount matured because of employee
resignations, retirements, or request for
payment of compensatory time.

Lease/purchase obligations include the
present value of net minimum future lease
payments paid from the General Fund and/or
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund. They are reported as
liabilities in the department-wide statements and
other financing sources in the fund statements.
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Article X of the Missouri Constitution
establishes a revenue limit for the state.
Revenues exceeding the limit are distributed to
taxpayers in accordance with the Constitution.
The distributions are initially made from the
General Fund. Various other funds reimburse
the General Fund for their share through
operating transfers appropriated by the state
legislature.

R. Fund Equity

The negative unreserved fund balances in the
fund statements represent liabilities that were
paid from Fiscal Year 2003 appropriations. The
reserved fund balances represent the portion of
fund equity not available for expenditure. The
amounts presented as negative fund balances
at June 30, 2002, resulted from the liabilities as
shown in the next column.

The reserved fund balance includes the
following two accounts.

Reserved for Encumbrances is an account
used to segregate a portion of fund balance for
amounts paid from current year appropriations
for the subsequent year's obligation.

Reserved for Inventory is an account to
segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate
that inventory does not represent available,
spendable resources even though it is a
component of assets.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

(in thousands of dollars)

General Fund

Travel $24
Supplies 3
Comm. Services & Supplies 47
Business & Professional Services 56

Maintenance & Repair Services 9

Program Distributions 404
Accrued Payroll 888
Compensated Absences 214
Total $1,645
State Highways & Transportation
Department Fund
Travel $20
Supplies 5
Comm. Services & Supplies 92
Business & Professional Services 77
Maintenance & Repair Services 67

Rent/Lease 3

Accrued Payroll 719
Compensated Absences 259
Total $1,242
Motor Fuel Tax Fund
Motor Fuel Tax Distributions $15,393
All Other Funds $77

S. Revenues/Refunds

Revenues are reported net of uncollectible
accounts of $176,587,720 on the department-
wide Statement of Activity and in the fund
statements, $154,799,689 in the General Fund,
$147,719 for the Motor Fuel Tax Fund,
$17,689,409 for the School District Trust Fund,
$0 for the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund, and $3,929,274 for all other
funds. In addition, revenues are reported net of
refunds of $938,060,051 on the department-
wide Statement of Activities and in the fund
statements, $898,898,999 for the General Fund,
$34,523,735 for the Motor Fuel Tax Fund, $0 for
the School District Trust Fund, $2,307,457 for
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund, and $2,329,860 for all other
funds.
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T. Expenditures/Refunds

Expenditures are reported net of revenue
overcollections (refunds).

U. Lapsed Balances

Lapsed balances is a budgetary account. It
represents unspent department appropriations
on the fund financial statements. The
department does not have authority to spend
funds representing lapsed balances.

NOTE 2.
RECONCILIATION OF
DEPARTMENT-WIDE TO FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
BUDGETARY TO GAAP BASIS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences
Between the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet and the Department-
Wide Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes
a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets —
governmental activities as reported in the
department-wide Statement of Net Assets. One
element of that reconciliation explains that long-
term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds. The details of this $31,205,000
difference are listed below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

$25,255,000
5,950,000

Compensated Absences
Article X Distributions

Net Long-Term Liability
Adjustment to Reduce Fund
Balance-Total
Governmental Funds To
Arrive at Net Assets—
Governmental Activities

$31,205,000

B. Explanation of Certain Differences
Between the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances and the Department-Wide
Statement of Activities

The governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
include a reconciliation between net changes in
fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities
as reported in the department-wide Statement
of Activities. One element of that reconciliation
explains that governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures, but the Statement of
Activities allocates the cost of those assets over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. The details of this $1,351,937
difference are listed below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CAPITAL OUTLAY LESS
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

Depreciation Expense
Capital Outlay

Net Capital Outlay
Adjustment to Increase Net
Changes in Fund Balances
— Total Governmental
Funds to Arrive at Changes
in Net Assets of
Governmental Activities

$ 2,987,117
(1,635,180)

$1,351,937

Another element of that reconciliation states that
some expenses reported in the Statement of
Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not
reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Compensated absences of ($1,886,121),
inventory usage of $394,937, and Article X
distributions of $5,950,000 make up the
difference.

C. Budgetary Data

The Department of Revenue’s (department)
annual budget is prepared principally on the
cash basis and represents appropriations
requested by the department and recommended
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by the Governor. The Governor submits his
budget to the state legislature for approval. The
state legislature returns the approved budget bill
to the Governor for his signature or veto.

The state legislature appropriates money to the
department at the divisional level, the legal level
of budgetary control. Expenditures cannot
exceed the appropriation amounts at the
individual appropriation level and are monitored
through the use of allotments. The Governor
has the authority to reduce the allotments or
appropriations in any fund if it appears that
revenues for the fiscal year will fall below the
estimated revenues. Unexpended
appropriations lapse at the end of each
appropriation year.

The department may increase certain estimated
original appropriation amounts as necessary. If
the department requires supplemental
appropriations for an appropriation year, the
state legislature enacts them during the next
legislative session by the same process used
for original appropriations.

D. Budgetary to GAAP Basis
Reconciliation

The Schedule of Reconciliation of Budget to
GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles) on page 40 provides a reconciliation
of appropriations and expenditures shown on
the Schedules of Appropriations and
Expenditures - Budget to Actual on pages 36,
37, 38, and 39 to revenues and expenditures
reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Governmental Funds.

NOTE 3.
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Deposits

Article 1V, Section 15 of the Constitution of
Missouri requires the Department of Revenue
(department) to hold nonstate funds. For
reporting purposes, deposits include cash
management bank account balances the

department maintains at its contracted bank and
collection system bank account balances. All
department deposits are insured by the FDIC up
to $100,000. The balance is secured by
collateral pledged to the department.

Department collateral securities are either held
in a Federal Reserve Bank joint custody
account or by a third party custodian.
Administrative Rule 12 CSR 1-43.030 governs
the type of collateral securities the department
may accept. At June 30, 2002, agency fund
cash and cash equivalents were secured with
collateral as shown on the next page.

B. Investments

All investments in repurchase agreements and
securities are 100 percent secured by the
underlying United States Treasury or agency
securities. The Department of Revenue’s
(department) contracted bank guarantees no
loss of principal or interest to the department.
At June 30, 2002, agency fund investments
consisted of amounts as shown on the next

page.

Department investment securities are held in a
joint custody account with the department's
contracted bank at the Federal Reserve Bank of
Boston. The joint custody account requires that
department personnel release securities. The
type of securities the department may invest is
governed by Administrative Rule 12 CSR 10-
43.020.

Allowable investment securities are United
States Treasury bills, notes, and bonds, and
securities of the Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA), Student Loan Marketing
Association (SLMA), Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, (FHLMC), and Federal Home Loan
Credit System and repurchase and reverse
repurchase agreements secured by one of the
securities listed previously.

Safety responsibility securities (amounts shown
on the next page) are proof of financial
responsibility that owners of motor vehicles
pledge to the department in lieu of automobile
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insurance as provided by Section 303.240,
RSMo. The department secures the securities
in the State Treasurer’s Office safe.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Balance
Sheet also includes $32,045,000 for sales and
use tax bonds, $2,584,000 for protested income
tax, $3,906,000 for protested sales and use tax,
and $689,000 for transient employer bonds in
the General Fund. The Statement of Net Assets
amount is offset by the $6,490,000

Funds Held In Trust shown on the Balance
Sheet for a net asset value of $32,736,000.
Because these amounts are under the custody
and control of the State Treasurer, responsibility
for investing and securing these funds rests with
that office. At June 30, 2002, these funds were
invested as shown on the next page. The State
Treasurer's investments were secured with
securities held by the State Treasurer or by his
agent in the State Treasurer's name.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
TOTAL DEPOSITS

Carrying Bank Collateral
Amount Balance Value
Deposits:
Insured (FDIC) $25,036,374 $23,708,209 $23,708,209
Uninsured:
Collateral Held by Department’s
Agent in Department’s Name 7,547,626 5,726,721 24,973,500
Total Deposits $32,584,000 $29,434,930 $48,681,709

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Investments:

Overnight Repurchase Agreements:
Securities Held by the Federal Reserve in
the Department’'s Name

United States Treasury Notes
Agency Securities
Term Securities:
Securities Held by the Federal Reserve in
the Department’'s Name
Agency Discount Notes
Safety Responsibility Securities:
Securities Held by the Department in
the Investor's Name
Total Investments

Purchase Principal/

Original Value Market Value

$ 46,500,000 $ 46,507,011
120,000,000 120,018,950
24,815,803 24,973,500
2,506,664 2,564,050

$193,822,467 $194,063,511

Note: Market value includes accrued interest. Accrued interest is reported as Interest Receivable in

the Statements.
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STATE TREASURER INVESTMENTS

Carrying Amount Market Value
Certificates of Deposit $ 4,746,104 $ 4,746,104
Repurchase Agreements 6,824,976 6,824,976
U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities 27,652,920 27,652,920
Total $39,224,000 $39,224,000

NOTE 4.
CAPITAL ASSETS

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the
year ended June 30, 2002, follows.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS
(in thousands of dollars)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Furniture and $ 22,220 5,658 (5,274) 22,604
Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation (15,397) (2,986) 0 (18,383)
Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 6,823 2,672 (5,274) 4,221
DOR Information Fund Activities:
Capital Assets, Furniture and Equipment  $ 412 99 (115) 396
Less Accumulated Depreciation (282) (29) 0 (311)
Business Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 130 70 (115) 85

Depreciation expense by fund is shown below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental Activities:

General Fund $ 1,283
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 0
School District Trust Fund 0
State Highway and Transportation Dept. Fund 1,652
All Other Governmental Funds 51
Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental Activities $ 2,986
DOR Information Fund Activities: $ 28
Total Depreciation Expense — Business-Type Activities $ 28
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NOTE 5.
LEASING OBLIGATIONS

A. Capital Leases

The Department of Revenue (department)
entered into various lease/ purchase
agreements for the acquisition of office
equipment. FASB Statement No. 13,
“Accounting for Leases” requires a lease that
transfers substantially all of the benefits and
risks of ownership to the lessee to be accounted
for as the acquisition of a fixed asset and the
incurrence of an obligation of the lessee (a
capital lease). Therefore, the liability represents
the net present value of the remaining
lease/purchase agreements.

The General Fund and/or the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund supply
funds for payment of these lease obligations.
The use of the leased equipment and the
availability of monies in each fund dictates
which fund pays for specific leased equipment.

The assets acquired through capital leases are
shown below.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CAPITAL LEASE ASSETS
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental
Activities

Asset:
325 Dell PCs $346
340 Gateway PCs 490
240 IBM Laptops 425
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (644)
Total Capital Lease Assets $617

A summary of the future minimum lease
payments for capital leases is shown in the next
column.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FUTURE
MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental
June 30, Activities
2003 $494
2004 256
2005 52
2006 0
2007 0
2003-2008 0
2008-2013 0
Total Minimum Lease
Payments $802
Less: Amount
Representing Interest (56)
NPV of Minimum Lease
Payments $746

The department’s business activities did not
have any capital leases at June 30, 2002.

B. Operating Leases

The Department of Revenue (department),
through the Office of Administration (OA) enters
into various operating leases for land and
buildings. Each lease contains a fiscal funding
clause indicating that continuation of the lease
is subject to annual funding by the legislature.
The department expects that in the normal
course of business it will renew most of the
leases or replace them with similar leases. OA
has responsibilities for the payment of most
lease obligations.

NOTE 6.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The State of Missouri’s policy for vacation pay
allows employees to take time off with pay, to
accumulate this leave to a specified maximum
and to receive accumulated leave on
termination. A normal year's accumulation for
the Department of Revenue (department) is
approximately 31,611 days. At June 30, 2002,
accumulated leave was 31,682 days. This
would require approximately $3,168,200 to
satisfy at salary rates then in effect (excluding
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the state's share of social security, retirement
and insurance).

Employees who are eligible under the Fair
Labor Standards Act earn compensatory leave.
The department's policy allows the department
to provide for any combination of compensatory
time off and overtime payment. Accumulated
compensatory time at June 30, 2002, was 480
days. This would require approximately
$48,000 to satisfy at salary rates then in effect
(excluding the state's share of social security,
retirement, and insurance).

Accumulated sick leave is not paid upon
employee termination and does not represent a
liability to the department. The department will
pay the majority of compensated absences from
the General Fund and the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund.

NOTE 7.
ARTICLE X

Article X of the Missouri Constitution establishes
a revenue limit for the state. Revenues
exceeding the limit are distributed to taxpayers
in accordance with the Constitution. Between
Fiscal Years 1998 and 2000, the department
distributed $952.9 million relating to Fiscal
Years 1995, 1996, 1997, and 1998. In March
2001, the Missouri Supreme Court ruled in
Missouri Merchants and Manufacturers
Association v. State of Missouri (Case
Numbers: SC83199 and SC 83200) that the
state must alter the total state revenue formula
for the past fiscal years because of the Court’s
decision in Conservation Federation of Missouri
v. Hanson, 994 S.W. 2d27 (Mo. Banc. 1999).
Recalculation of total state revenue created an
additional amount of $5.9 million owed to
taxpayers. The department distributed the $5.9
million in the second quarter of Fiscal Year
2003.

NOTE 8.
CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITY

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liability for the year ended June 30, 2002.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITY

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance

July 1, 2001 Increases Decreases June 30, 2002
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $27,141 31,610 33,021 25,730
Capital Leases 1,355 3 556 802
Article X Distributions 0 5,950 0 5,950
Governmental
Activities Long-term $28,496 37,563 33,577 32,482
Liabilities
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NOTE 9.
INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
A summary of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2002, is shown below.
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Interfund Balances
June 30, 2002
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund DOR Information Fund $ 925,000
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 46,155,000
Total Interfund Balances $ 47,080,000

Section 32.067, RSMo requires the Department
of Revenue (department) to transfer from the
DOR Information Fund to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund moneys
derived from highway related sales of
information. Section 226.200, RSMo requires
the department to transfer taxes on motor
vehicle fuels to the State Highway and
Transportation Department Fund. The
department deposits motor fuel taxes to the
Motor Fuel Tax Fund initially.

NOTE 10.
RISK MANAGEMENT

In accordance with Section 105.711, RSMo, the
State Legal Expense Fund provides for the
payment of any claim against the state of
Missouri or any of its agencies pursuant to
Section 5637.600 RSMo.

NOTE 11.
EMPLOYEE FRINGE BENEFITS

Employees are covered by the Missouri State
Employees' Retirement System (MOSERS), the
Social Security System (OASDHI), and the
Missouri Consolidated Health Care Plan
(MCHCP). The state of Missouri pays pension
costs, life and disability insurance costs, the

state's portion of social security taxes, and the
state's contribution to the medical benefit plan
from the same fund as the related payrolls. The
state legislature appropriates Office of
Administration (OA) the money to pay the
Department of Revenue’s (department)
employees' fringe benefit costs and, therefore,
such costs are not included in the department's
financial statements. For the year ended June
30, 2002, the cost to the state of Missouri for the
department employees' fringe benefits was
approximately $17,073,532. Of this amount,
$12,522,260 represented the amount
contributed by OA for the MOSERS retirement
plan.

MOSERS, authorized by Chapter 104, RSMo, is
a noncontributing, defined benefit plan. To be
eligible to participate in the MOSERS plan,
employees must be employed in a position
normally requiring them to work at least 1,000
hours a year and must not be accumulating
benefits in another retirement system to which
the state is contributing. An employee is vested
once they have five years of service. Normal
retirement age is 65. Employees may retire at
age 55 and receive reduced benefits.
Employees may retire at age 50 with full
benefits if their combined age and years of
service equal 80. Fiscal Year 2002 payroll for
all employees of the department was
$53,427,000. Of this amount, $53,025,004 was
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covered payroll for the MOSERS retirement
plan.

MCHCP, authorized by Chapter 103, RSMo, is
a self-funded medical benefit plan paid by state
and member contributions. Active state
employees covered by MOSERS or members of
the Public School Retirement System may enroll
in the plan and qualifying vested employees
may continue medical coverage after leaving
the department. Employees may also
participate in the state's deferred compensation,
cafeteria, dental, and vision plans. Created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section
457, the Missouri State Public Employees
Deferred Compensation Plan permits
employees to defer a portion of their current
salary to future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. The state also
provides the Deferred Compensation Incentive
Plan. Employees are eligible to participate in
the incentive plan if they have been employed
by the state for 12 consecutive months
preceding the state’s contributions to the
incentive plan and are making continuous
monthly deferrals of at least $25 to the deferred
compensation plan. The state’s contribution is
$25 per eligible employee.

The cafeteria plan is a flexible compensation
program created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 125. This plan permits
employees to reduce their salaries in exchange
for nontaxable benefits, creating tax savings
that are used to pay or reimburse certain
expenses elected by the employees. The
options available to employees are medical
expense reimbursement, dependent care
reimbursement, and premium payment for state
health, life, dental, and vision insurance.

NOTE 12.
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Fiscal Year 2002 beginning balances for all
statements, schedules, and notes are the
ending balances for Fiscal Year 2001 as
reported in the Fiscal Year 2001

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). The balances have not been adjusted
for Governmental Accounting Standards Boards
(GASB) Statement 34 requirements. However,
cash and cash equivalents, investments, and
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation
are included in beginning assets. All Fiscal
Year 2002 activity and ending balances are
recorded according to GASB 34.
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Missouri Department of Revenue

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedules

The Budgetary Comparison Schedules provide original and final appropriations
and a comparison to actual expenditures for the General Fund, other major funds,
and all other budgeted governmental funds. Also included is a reconciliation

from budget basis to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) basis.
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DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET TO GAAP
GENERAL FUND, MOTOR FUEL TAX, SCHOOL DISTRICT TRUST,
STATE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, AND

ALL OTHER BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Appropriations from the Schedules
of Appropriations and Expenditures $

Fiscal Year 2002 Cash Collections

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Add (Deduct) net change in:
Receivables
Deduct:
Deferred Revenues and Related Allowances
Refunds
Fiscal Year 2002 Revenues as Reported on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $

Uses/Outflows
Expenditures from the Schedules of $
Appropriations and Expenditures

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Add (Deduct) net change in:
Encumbrances
Compensated Absences
Current Year Expenditures Paid From
Subsequent Year's Appropriation
Fiscal Year 2002 Expenditures as Reported
on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  $

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

School State Highway All Other

General Motor Fuel District and Transportation Governmental

Fund Tax Fund Trust Fund Department Fund Funds
44,396 188,000 48,570 3,847
7,085,986 674,240 667,782 204,778 895,661
(75,060) (14,841) 5,200 894 10,835
568,074 150 31,298 42,504
898,900 34,524 2,307 2,328
5,588,348 812,725 641,684 251,935 865,511
36,430 175,915 46,448 1,776
1
123 15,370 (253) 55
36,553 191,285 0 46,195 1,832




Missouri Department of Revenue

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds.

The Combining Statements provide detail information about the individual
funds that are included in the Other Governmental Funds column
on the basic governmental fund financial statements.




Unaudited

Special Revenue Funds

Nonmajor
Special Revenue Fund Descriptions

AVIATION TRUST FUND

The Aviation Trust Fund, as authorized by
Section 155.090, RSMo, receives collections
from a use tax imposed on each gallon of
aviation fuel used in propelling aircraft with
reciprocating engines. It also receives sales
and use tax imposed on aviation fuel, as
authorized by Section 144.805, RSMo.

BLIND PENSION FUND

The Blind Pension Fund, as authorized by
Section 209.130, RSMo, receives collections
of a 3 cent tax on each $100 valuation of
taxable property in the State of Missouri.
Also, as authorized by Section 137.1021,
RSMo, this fund receives six-tenths of 1
percent of the County Private Car Tax Trust
Fund balance.

BLINDNESS EDUCATION, SCREENING,
AND TREATMENT PROGRAM FUND

The Blindness Education, Screening, and
Treatment Program Fund, as authorized by
Section 301.020 and 302.171, RSMo,
receives monetary donations from motor
vehicle registrants and drivers’ license
applicants. The Missouri Department of
Health and Senior Services receives funds
collected for the purpose of blindness
education, screening, and treatment.

BOLL WEEVIL SUPPRESSION AND
ERADICATION FUND

The Boll Weevil Suppression and Eradication
Fund, as authorized by Section 263.537,
RSMo, receives a one percent collection fee
from assessments levied on cotton growers by
the Missouri Department of Agriculture. The
Department of Agriculture uses these funds to
administer the Boll Weevil Suppression and
Eradication Program.

CHILDREN'S TRUST FUND

The Children’s Trust Fund, as authorized by
Section 451.151, RSMo, receives a $15
portion of fees that county recorders of deeds
charge for the issuance of marriage licenses
and a $7 portion of fees charged for a certified
copy of a marriage license. The fund also
receives contributions from individuals
conducting motor vehicle transactions, as
authorized by Section 301.463, RSMo, and
contributions of $2 or more that taxpayers
designate on their income tax return, as
authorized by Section 210.174, RSMo.

CONSERVATION COMMISSION FUND

The Conservation Commission Fund, as
authorized by Article 1V, Section 43(a),
Constitution of Missouri, receives the one-
eighth of 1 percent sales/use tax collections.

CRIME VICTIMS' COMPENSATION
FUND

The Crime Victims’ Compensation Fund, as
authorized by Section 595.045, RSMo,
receives the following:

1. Seventy-five percent of $4 of each $5 fee
assessed as costs in each court proceeding
filed in any court in the state (except
municipal courts) for violation of any
criminal law of the state after the
department deposits the maximum amount
into the State Forensic Laboratory Fund,

2. Seventy-five percent of $4.75 of each $5
fee assessed as costs in each municipal
court proceeding filed in the state for
violation of any criminal law of the state;
and

3. One hundred percent of the judgment

amounts entered by the courts for various
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Special Revenue Funds

Unaudited

convictions. These judgment amounts are
as follows:

A. Sixty-eight dollars for the conviction of
a Class A or B felony;

B. Forty-six dollars for the conviction of a
Class C or D felony; and

Ten dollars for the conviction of
various misdemeanors.

C.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
FEDERAL FUND

The Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers
Licensing, the Criminal Investigation Bureau,
and the General Counsel's Office have
entered into contracts for federal grants from
the Federal Highway Administration and the
National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration. These grants are for various
drivers licensing programs and highway use
tax compliance. All Department of Revenue
(department) appropriations pertaining to
grant expenditures are charged to this fund.
Consequently, the department transmits all
reimbursement receipts to this fund.

DIVISION OF AGING-ELDERLY HOME
DELIVERED MEALS TRUST FUND

The Division of Aging-Elderly Home Delivered
Meals Trust Fund, as authorized by Section
660.078, RSMo, receives contributions of $2
or more that taxpayers designate on income
tax returns. An individual or corporation
entitled to a tax refund may designate a
portion of the refund due for credit to this fund.

DOMESTIC RELATIONS RESOLUTION
FUND

The Domestic Relations Resolution Fund, as
authorized by Section 452.552, RSMo,
receives collections of a $3 surcharge that is
charged by courts for filing an action for the
dissolution of marriage.

FAIR SHARE FUND

The Fair Share Fund, as authorized by
Section 149.015, RSMo, receives collections
of an additional 2 mills per cigarette tax (4
cents per pack of 20 cigarettes).

GAMING COMMISSION FUND

The Gaming Commission Fund, as authorized
by Sections 313.820 and 313.835, RSMo,
receives 50 percent of the $2 admission fee
that the Department of Revenue collects from
gaming boats for each person embarking on
an excursion gambling boat.

GAMING PROCEEDS FOR EDUCATION
FUND

The Gaming Proceeds for Education Fund, as
authorized by Section 313.822, RSMo,
receives 90 percent of the collections of a 20
percent tax on the adjusted gross gaming
receipts of gambling boats.

HEALTH INITIATIVES FUND

The Health Initiatives Fund, as authorized by
Section 149.015 and 149.160, RSMo,
receives collections of an additional 2 mills per
cigarette tax (4 cents per pack of 20
cigarettes) and a 10 percent tax on tobacco
products other than cigarettes.

INDEPENDENT LIVING CENTER FUND

The Independent Living Center Fund, as
authorized by Sections 178.653 and 561.035,
RSMo, receives receipts that county clerks
collect for drug-related offenses and
intoxication-related traffic offenses.

LOCAL RECORDS PRESERVATION
FUND

The Local Records Preservation Fund, as
authorized by Section 59.319, RSMo, receives
25 percent of a $4 user fee that county
recorders of deeds charge for the recording of
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Special Revenue Funds

any instrument. The Secretary of State uses
the money for preservation of local records.

MISSOURI CASA FUND

The Missouri CASA Fund, as authorized by
Section 488.636, RSMo, receives collections
of a $2 surcharge collected by associate and
circuit courts for each domestic relations
petition filed.

MISSOURI COMMUNITY COLLEGE JOB
TRAINING PROGRAM FUND

The Missouri Community College Job Training
Program Fund, as authorized by Section
178.896, RSMo, receives a portion of
withholding taxes remitted by an employer
who has entered into a project agreement with
a junior college district to provide education
and training for the creation of jobs. The
Missouri Department of Economic
Development must approve the project
agreement.

MISSOURI HOUSING TRUST FUND

The Missouri Housing Trust Fund, as
authorized by Section 59.319, RSMo, receives
fees that county recorders of deeds charge for
the recording of any instrument.

MISSOURI OFFICE OF PROSECUTION
SERVICES FUND

The Missouri Office of Prosecution Services
Fund, as authorized by Section 56.765,
RSMo, receives one-half of a $1 surcharge
assessed as costs in each criminal court
proceeding filed in the state except when the
court dismisses a proceeding or defendant or
when the state, county, or municipality must
pay the costs.

MOTOR VEHICLE COMMISSION FUND

The Motor Vehicle Commission Fund, as
authorized by Section 301.560, RSMo,
receives fees that the Department of Revenue

collects from manufacturers, motor vehicle
dealers, and boat dealers.

MOTORCYCLE SAFETY TRUST FUND

The Motorcycle Safety Trust Fund, as
authorized by Section 302.137, RSMo,
receives fees assessed as additional court
costs for violations of Missouri laws, municipal
ordinances, or county ordinances involving a
motorcycle or motortricycle.

ORGAN DONOR PROGRAM FUND

The Organ Donor Program Fund, as
authorized by Section 194.297, RSMo,
receives monetary donations from drivers’
license applicants. The Department of Health
and Senior Services uses money from the
fund for implementation of organ donation
awareness programs.

PARKS SALES TAX FUND

The Parks Sales Tax Fund, as authorized by
Article IV, Sections 47(a) and 47(b) of the
Missouri Constitution, receives 50 percent of
the one-tenth of 1 percent sales and use and
motor vehicle sales tax collections.

PETROLEUM INSPECTION FUND

The Petroleum Inspection Fund, as authorized
by Section 414.082, RSMo, receives fees for
the inspection of motor fuels used in spark-
ignition internal combustion engines.

PETROLEUM STORAGE TANK
INSURANCE FUND

The Petroleum Storage Tank Insurance Fund,
as authorized by Section 319.129, RSMo,
receives fees that the Department of Revenue
collects from owners and operators of
underground and aboveground storage tanks.
This fund supercedes the Underground
Storage Tank Insurance Fund.
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SCHOOL BUILDING REVOLVING FUND

The School Building Revolving Fund, as
authorized by Sections 166.131 and 166.300,
RSMo, receives collections of forfeitures for
any breach of penal law collected by county
treasurers.

SERVICES TO VICTIMS FUND

The Services to Victims Fund, as authorized
by Section 595.100, RSMo, receives the
following:

1. Twenty-five percent of $4 of each $5 fee
assessed as costs in each court
proceeding filed in any court in the state
(except municipal courts) for violation of
any criminal law of the state after the
Department of Revenue deposits the
maximum amount into the State Forensic
Laboratory Fund; and

2. Twenty-five percent of $4.75 of each $5
fee assessed as costs in each municipal
court proceeding filed in the state for
violation of any criminal law of the state.

SOIL AND WATER SALES TAX FUND

The Soil and Water Sales Tax Fund, as
authorized by Article 1V, Sections 47(a) and
47(b), Constitution of Missouri, receives 50
percent of the one-tenth of 1 percent sales
and use and motor vehicle sales tax
collections.

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND

The Solid Waste Management Fund, as
authorized by Section 260.273, RSMo,
receives 96 percent of collections from fees
imposed on the purchase of tires.

SPINAL CORD INJURY FUND

The Spinal Cord Injury Fund, as authorized by
Section 304.027, RSMo, receives a $2
surcharge assessed as costs in all criminal
cases involving violations of any county

ordinance or any violation of criminal or traffic
laws of this state.

STATE FORENSIC LABORATORY
FUND

The State Forensic Laboratory Fund, as
authorized by Section 595.045, RSMo,
receives $4 of each $5 fee assessed as costs
in each court proceeding filed in any

court in the state (except municipal courts) for
violation of any criminal law of the state up to
a maximum of $250,000 annually.

STATE HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT
GRADE CROSSING SAFETY ACCOUNT
FUND

The State Highways and Transportation
Department Grade Crossing Safety Account
Fund, as authorized by Section 389.612,
RSMo, receives collections of a grade
crossing safety fee that is charged to owners
of motor vehicles and owners of railroad
rolling stock and flanged wheel equipment or
private cars. The state uses money from the
fund for the installation, construction, or
reconstruction of automatic signals or other
safety devices or improvements at railroad
crossings, public roads, streets, or highways.

STATE LAND SURVEY PROGRAM
FUND

The State Land Survey Program Fund, as
authorized by Section 59.319, RSMo, receives
25 percent of a $4 user fee that county
recorders of deeds charge for the recording of
any instrument.

STATE SCHOOL MONEY FUND

The State School Money Fund, as authorized
by Section 149.065, RSMo, receives the
collections of the 4 1/2 mills per cigarette tax
(9 cents per pack of 20 cigarettes).
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STATE TRANSPORTATION FUND

The State Transportation Fund, as authorized
by Article IV, Section 30(b) of the Constitution
of Missouri, receives a portion of motor
vehicle sales taxes.

STATEWIDE COURT AUTOMATION
FUND

The Statewide Court Automation Fund, as
authorized by Section 476.053, RSMo,
receives fees that are assessed as costs in
each circuit and associate circuit court
proceeding.

STATUTORY COUNTY RECORDER’S
FUND

The Statutory County Recorder’s Fund, as
authorized by Section 59.800, RSMo, receives
$2 of an additional $5 fee charged by county
recorders of deeds for the recording of any
instrument.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND
AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION-
SECOND INJURY FUND

The Workers’ Compensation Fund and
Workers’ Compensation Second Injury Funds,
as authorized by Section 287.660 through
287.720, RSMo, receive insurance tax
receipts. During an abatement year, the
Second Injury Fund receives 100 percent of
both the collected workers' compensation tax
and workers' compensation-second injury tax.
During a non-abatement year, the Workers'
Compensation Fund receives 100 percent of
workers' compensation tax and the Second
Injury Fund receives 100 percent of the
workers' compensation-second injury tax. The
Department of Insurance determines when an
abatement year occurs.

WORLD WAR Il MEMORIAL TRUST
FUND

The World War Il Memorial Trust Fund, as
authorized by Section 301.3031, RSMo,

receives monetary donations from drivers’
license applicants. The Missouri Veterans’
Commission uses money from the fund to
participate in the funding of the National World
War Il Memorial in Washington, D.C.
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Capital Projects Fund Description

STATE ROAD FUND

The State Road Fund, as authorized by Article
IV, Section 39(b), Constitution of Missouri,
receives state revenue derived from highway
users including state license fees and taxes
upon motor vehicles, trailers, and motor fuel.
The Department of Revenue does not receive
appropriations from this fund.
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DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES--BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND JUNE 30, 2001

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

2002 2001

Original Final Governor's Actual Lapsed Original Final Governor's

Actual

Lapsed

Appropriation Appropriation Reserve  Expenditure Balances Appropriation Appropriation Reserve Expenditure Balances

CONSERVATION COMMISSION FUND

Division of Taxation and Collection

Personal Service $ 457 457 457 0 453 453 453
Expense and Equipment 49 49 48 1 49 49 40 9
Conservation Commission Fund Total $ 506 506 0 505 1 502 502 0 493 9
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FEDERAL FUND
Division of Administration
Expense and Equipment $ 70 29 29 0 70 20 20
Total $ 70 29 0 29 0 70 20 0 20 0
Division of MV/DL Excl. Branch Offices
Personal Service $ 166 14 14 0 165
Expense and Equipment 2,295 451 451 0 399 153 153
Total $ 2,461 465 0 465 0 564 153 0 153 0
Department of Revenue
Federal Fund Total $ 2,531 494 0 494 0 634 173 0 173 0
DIVISION OF AGING-ELDERLY HOME
DELIVERED MEALS TRUST FUND
Division of Administration
Expense and Equipment $ 11 11 11 11 11 11 0
Total $ 11 11 0 11 0 11 11 0 11 0
Division of Taxation and Collection
Personal Service $ 11 11 0 11 11 11 11 0
Total $ 11 11 0 0 11 11 11 0 11 0
Division of Aging-Elderly Home
Delivered Meals Trust Fund Total $ 22 22 0 11 11 22 22 0 22 0
FAIR SHARE FUND
Refunds of Tobacco and Cigarette Tax $ 1M1 E 86 E 85 1 1M1 E 1 9 2
Fair Share Fund Total $ 11 86 0 85 1 11 11 0 9 2
FEDERAL AND OTHER FUNDS
Refunds of Taxes and Fees Credited to
Federal and Other Funds $ 500 E 500 E 405 95 500 E 500 22 478
Federal and Other Funds Total $ 500 500 0 405 95 500 500 0 22 478

Appropriations designated with an "E" represent open-ended appropriations. (continued on next page)



Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES--BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND JUNE 30, 2001

(in thousands of dollars)
2002 2001
Original Final Governor's Actual Lapsed Original Final Governor's  Actual Lapsed
Appropriation Appropriation Reserve  Expenditure Balances Appropriation Appropriation Reserve Expenditure Balances

(continued from previous page)
HEALTH INITIATIVES FUND

Division of Administration
Expense and Equipment $ 4 4 4 0 4 4 2 2

Total $ 4 4 0 4 0 4 4 0 2 2

Division of Taxation and Collection

Personal Service $ 41 41 1 40 0 41 41 1 40
Expense and Equipment 4 4 4 0 4 4 4 0
Total $ 45 45 1 44 0 45 45 1 44 0
Refunds of Tobacco and Cigarette Tax $ 50 E 105 E 2 86 17 50 E 50 2 10 38
Health Initiatives Fund Total $ 99 154 & 134 17 99 99 8 56 40

MOTOR VEHICLE COMMISSION FUND

Division of Administration

Personal Service $ 70 70 70 0 70 70 58 12
Expense and Equipment 30 30 28 2 30 30 30
Total $ 100 100 0 98 2 100 100 0 88 12

Division of MV/DL Excl. Branch Offices

Personal Service $ 248 248 248 0 246 246 246
Expense and Equipment 319 319 319 0 319 319 319
Total $ 567 567 0 567 0 565 565 0 565 0

Refunds of Fees Credited to Motor
Vehicle Commission Fund $ 12 E 12E 7 5 12 12 8 4

Motor Vehicle Commission Fund Total $ 679 679 0 672 7 677 677 0 661 16

PETROLEUM INSPECTION FUND

Division of Taxation and Collection

Personal Service $ 28 28 27 1 28 28 28

Expense and Equipment 3 3 3 0 3 3 3
Total $ 31 31 0 30 1 31 31 0 31 0
Petroleum Inspection Fund Total $ 31 31 0 30 1 31 31 0 31 0

Appropriations designated with an "E" represent open-ended appropriations. (continued on next page)



Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES--BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND JUNE 30, 2001

(in thousands of dollars)
2002 2001
Original Final Governor's Actual Lapsed Original Final Governor's  Actual Lapsed
Appropriation Appropriation Reserve  Expenditure Balances Appropriation Appropriation Reserve Expenditure Balances

(continued from previous page)
PETROLEUM STORAGE TANK
INSURANCE FUND

Division of Administration
Expense and Equipment $ 15 15 15

Total $ 15 15 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0

Division of Taxation and Collection

Personal Service $ 23 23 22 1 22 22 22
Expense and Equipment 1 1 1 0 1 1 1
Total $ 24 24 0 23 1 23 23 0 23 0

Petroleum Storage Tank
Insurance Fund Total $ 39 39 0 23 16 23 23 0 23 0

STATE SCHOOL MONEY FUND

Refunds of Tobacco and Cigarette Tax $ 25 E 192E 192 0 25 E 25 21 4

State School Money Fund Total $ 25 192 0 192 0 25 25 0 21 4

WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND

Refunds - Overpayment and Errors of the

Workers' Compensation Fund $ 1172 E 1172 E 526 646 283 E 1,670 1,670 0
Refunds - Overpayment and Errors of the

Workers' Compensation-Second Injury Fund 499 E 830 E 701 129 134 E 149 149 0
Workers' Compensation Fund Total $ 1,671 2,002 0 1,227 775 417 1,819 0 1,819 0

TOTAL BUDGETED NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 6,114 4,705 3 3,778 924 2,941 3,882 3 3,330 549

Appropriations designated with an "E" represent open-ended appropriations.



Missouri Department of Revenue

Agency Funds

The Agency Funds are used to account for
assets held by the Department of Revenue
as agent for other governments.




Unaudited

Agency Funds

Agency Fund Descriptions

BASE STATE REGISTRATION FUND

The Base State Registration Fund, as
authorized by Section 622.095, RSMo, receives
registration, administration, and license fees
that are collected by the Department of
Economic Development, Division of Motor
Carrier and Railroad Safety on behalf of other
jurisdictions under the Base State Registration
Plan. The Division of Motor Carrier and
Railroad Safety (transferred to the Missouri
Department of Transportation in Fiscal Year
2003) directs the payment of the fees collected
to the appropriate jurisdictions. The
Department of Revenue exercises
administrative control over the fund.

CABARET SALES TAX FUND

The Cabaret Sales Tax Fund received
escrowed collections of a cabaret sales tax as
directed by the Circuit Court of Cole County.
The Department of Revenue began distributing
the money, as directed by the court, to cities
and counties in Fiscal Year 2002 through the
Local Sales Tax Fund.

CIGARETTE TAX FUND

The Cigarette Tax Fund, as authorized by
Sections 66.340, 66.350, and 210.320, RSMo,
receives cigarette tax money the Department of
Revenue (department) collects for Jackson
County and St. Louis County. Both counties
impose a 2 Y2 mills per cigarette tax (5 cents
per pack of 20 cigarettes) on cigarette sales.
The department disburses the tax collections
back to Jackson County and the political
subdivision within St. Louis County.

CIGARETTE AND OTHER TOBACCO
PRODUCTS BOND FUND

The Cigarette and Other Tobacco Products
Bond Fund, as authorized by Section 149.035,
RSMo, receives cash bonds that are posted by
tobacco product wholesaler licensees. The

Department of Revenue refunds the bonds to
the licensee when the licensee discontinues
operations. The licensee forfeits the bond to
the state if he/she becomes delinquent in
paying his/her taxes.

COUNTY PRIVATE CAR TAX TRUST
FUND

The County Private Car Tax Trust Fund, as
authorized by Section 137.1021, RSMo,
receives taxes imposed on freight line
companies. Six-tenths of 1 percent is
transferred to the Blind Pension Fund and a 1
percent collection fee is transferred to the
General Fund. The remaining proceeds are
distributed to counties. The distribution is
based on each county’s percentage of main
track line to the aggregate total of the state.

COUNTY STOCK INSURANCE FUND

The County Stock Insurance Fund, as
authorized by Section 148.330, RSMo, receives
premium tax from domestic stock insurance
companies and distributes the money to the
State Treasurer, counties, and school districts.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
CHECK-OFF FUND

The Department of Agriculture Check-Off Fund,
as authorized by Section 275.350, RSMo,
receives commodity merchandising program
fees collected by the Department of Agriculture.
At the direction of the Department of
Agriculture, the Department of Revenue
distributes these fees to individual commodity
councils or transfers them to the state’s
commodity council merchandising fund.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS TAX FUND

The Financial Institutions Tax Fund, as
authorized by Chapter 148, RSMo, receives
collections of a tax on the net income of
financial institutions. The Department of

- 58 -



Agency Funds

Unaudited

Revenue collects the tax and disburses it back
to the counties.

FUEL LOCAL DEPOSIT (FLOYD) FUND

The Fuel Local Deposit (FLOYD) Fund receives
highway use taxes and fees and distributes the
money to local political subdivisions monthly.

INTERNATIONAL FUEL TAX
AGREEMENT FUND

The Highway Reciprocity Commission
(transferred to the Missouri Department of
Transportation in Fiscal Year 2003) established
the International Fuel Tax Agreement Fund to
hold and disburse fuel tax revenue due to other
jurisdictions or carriers generated under the
International Fuel Tax Agreement. Missouri
became a member of this agreement on
January 1, 1990, under authority granted by
Section 142.617, RSMo.

INTERNATIONAL FUEL TAX
AGREEMENT BOND FUND

The Highway Reciprocity Commission
(transferred to the Missouri Department of
Transportation in Fiscal Year 2003) established
the International Fuel Tax Agreement Bond
Fund to hold fuel tax cash bonds to cover
revenue generated under the International Fuel
Tax Agreement. The Highway Reciprocity
Commission refunds the bond to the taxpayer
when the taxpayer discontinues business
operations or deposits the bond proceeds in the
Motor Fuel Tax Fund if the taxpayer forfeits the
bond.

INTERNATIONAL REGISTRATION PLAN
FUND

As authorized by Section 301.277, RSMo, the
Highway Reciprocity Commission (transferred
to the Missouri Department of Transportation in
Fiscal Year 2003) collects license plate fees
due to other jurisdictions. The Highway
Reciprocity Commission collects these fees and
remits them to and disburses them from the
International Registration Plan Fund.

LOCAL OPTION USE TAX FUND

The Local Option Use Tax Fund, as authorized
by Section 144.757, RSMo, receives collections
generated by a local use tax with a rate equal to
the rate of the local sales tax in effect. The tax
is imposed on all transactions, which are
subject to taxes under Sections 144.600 to
144.745, RSMo. The Department of Revenue
distributes this money to the taxing jurisdictions.

LOCAL SALES TAX FUND

The Local Sales Tax Fund receives various
types of local political subdivision sales tax
collections and subsequently, distributes the
collections to the local political subdivisions.
Numerous Missouri Revised Statute Sections
authorize the local political subdivisions to
enact local sales taxes if approved by a percent
of the voters. One of the main statutes
providing authorization is Chapter 94, RSMo.

LOCAL USE TAX FUND

The Local Use Tax Fund, as authorized by
Section 144.748, RSMo, received collections
from a 174 percent use tax imposed by political
subdivisions on the value of tangible personal
property not subject to sales tax. The
Department of Revenue (department)
distributed the money to the political
subdivisions. During Fiscal Year 1996, the
Missouri Supreme Court determined that the
tax was unconstitutional and, therefore, the
department ceased collecting the tax. The
department began issuing refunds in Fiscal
Year 1998.

MISSOURI COTTON GROWERS
ORGANIZATION FUND

The Missouri Cotton Growers Organization
Fund, as authorized by Section 263.527,
RSMo, receives assessments levied by the
Missouri Department of Agriculture on cotton
growers. Ninety-nine percent of these
collections are distributed to the Missouri
Cotton Growers Organization. The remaining 1
percent is deposited into the state’s Boll Weevil
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Agency Funds

Suppression and Eradication Fund as an
administrative fee for use by the Missouri
Department of Agriculture.

MOTOR FUEL BOND FUND

The Motor Fuel Bond Fund, as authorized by
Section 142.462, RSMo, receives cash bonds
from taxpayers. The Department of Revenue
refunds the bond to the taxpayer when the
taxpayer discontinues business operations or
deposits the bond proceeds in the Motor Fuel
Tax Fund if the taxpayer forfeits the bond.

MOTOR FUEL POOL BOND FUND

The Motor Fuel Pool Bond Fund, as authorized
by Section 142.896, RSMo, receives payments
from fuel distributors that have three years of
satisfactory tax compliance, and therefore, may
participate in a pool bond. The Department of
Revenue uses the pool bond to cover motor
fuel tax delinquencies.

MOTOR VEHICLE PROTEST FUND

The Motor Vehicle Protest Fund, as authorized
by Section 144.700, RSMo, receives motor
vehicle sales and use tax paid under protest.
The Department of Revenue (department)
transmits the general revenue portion of the
taxes paid under protest to the General Fund
and deposits the remainder into this fund. The
department either returns the protested taxes to
the taxpayer or remits the taxes to the state and
appropriate political subdivisions based on
decisions reached by the Administrative
Hearing Commission or various courts.

PROTESTED SALES AND USE TAX
FUND

The Protested Sales and Use Tax Fund, as
authorized by Section 144.700, RSMo, receives
sales and use taxes that taxpayers pay under
protest. The Department of Revenue
(department) transmits the 3 percent general
revenue portion of state sales and use taxes
paid under protest to the General Fund. The
department deposits all other state and local
sales and use taxes paid under protest into this

fund. The department either returns the
protested sales and use taxes to the taxpayer
or remits them to the state and the appropriate
political subdivisions based on decisions
reached by the Administrative Hearing
Commission or various courts.

RIVERBOAT GAMING FUND

The Riverboat Gaming Fund is a combination of
the following collections.

* Riverboat Gaming Admission Fees
As authorized by Sections 313.820 and
313.835, RSMo, the Department of
Revenue collects a $2 admission fee from
gaming boats for each person embarking on
a boat. The department transfers 50
percent of these fees to the Gaming
Commission Fund and distributes 50
percent to the home dock cities and
counties.

* Riverboat Gaming Gross Receipts Tax
As authorized by Section 313.822, RSMo,
the Department of Revenue (department)
collects gaming gross receipts tax from
boats conducting gaming activities. The
department transfers 90 percent of these
taxes to the Gaming Proceeds for Education
Fund and distributes 10 percent to home
dock cities and counties.

SAFETY RESPONSIBILITY CUSTODY
FUND

The Safety Responsibility Custody Fund, as
authorized by Section 303.030, RSMo, receives
deposits from uninsured motorists involved in
motor vehicle accidents. The Department of
Revenue makes disbursements from this fund
to pay claims by other parties involved in the
accident or refunds deposits to depositors one
year or more after the accident date if the
uninsured motorist has fulfilled all legal
requirements.
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Agency Funds Unaudited

SECRETARY OF STATE UCC
COLLECTION FUND

The Secretary of State UCC Collection Fund,
as authorized by Section 400.9-525, RSMo,
receives $7 of a fee that the Secretary of
State’s Office assesses for filing and indexing a
record. The Secretary of State’s Office
distributes the money to the County Employees’
Retirement Fund pursuant to Section 50.1010,
RSMo, or to those counties whose employees
are not members of the County Employees’
Retirement Fund.

ST. LOUIS 3/8% HOLDING FUND

The St. Louis 3/8% Holding Fund received
contested local sales tax due St. Louis City.
Due to the expiration of the appeal period, the
Department of Revenue (department) has
distributed most of the tax to St. Louis City.
The department will transfer the balance of the
fund to the General Fund and/or distribute it to
St. Louis City.
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DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
BASE STATE REGISTRATION FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 229 3,972 (3,929) 272
Interest Receivable 2 7 (8) 1
Total Assets $ 231 3,979 (3,937) 273
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 1 (1) 0
Due to Other Entities 231 3,979 (3,937) 273
Total Liabilities $ 231 3,980 (3.938) 273
CABARET SALES TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 25 48 (73) 0
Interest Receivable 1 1 (2) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 190 0 (190) 0
Total Assets $ 216 49 (265) 0
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 216 49 (265) 0
Total Liabilities $ 216 49 (265) 0
CIGARETTE TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 89 7,023 (7,079) 33
Interest Receivable 2 14 (15) 1
Investments, at Fair Value 510 7,215 (7,190) 535
Total Assets $ 601 14,252 (14,284) 569
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 2 (2) 0
Due to Other Entities 601 7,022 (7,054) 569

Total Liabilities $ 601 7,024 (7,056) 569




Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002

CIGARETTE AND OTHER TOBACCO PRODUCTS BOND FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 88 19 (8) 99
Interest Receivable 0 1 (1) 0
Total Assets $ 88 20 (9) 99
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 88 20 (9) 99
Total Liabilities $ 88 20 (9) 99

COUNTY PRIVATE CAR TAX FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3 2,772 (2,760) 15
Interest Receivable 0 2 (2) 0
Total Assets $ 3 2,774 (2,762) 15
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 3 2,774 (2,762) 15
Total Liabilities $ 3 2,774 (2,762) 15

COUNTY STOCK INSURANCE FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 20 121 (115) 26
Accounts Receivable 2,337 0 (383) 1,954
Interest Receivable 22 71 (87) 6
Investments, at Fair Value 5,210 4,665 (5,265) 4,610
Total Assets $ 7,589 4,857 (5,850) 6,596
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 1 5 (5) 1
Due to Other Entities 7,588 4,387 (5,380) 6,595

Total Liabilities $ 7,589 4,392 (5,385) 6,596




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

DEPT OF AGRICULTURE CHECK-OFF FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS TAX

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

FUEL LOCAL DEPOSIT (FLOYD) FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets

Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable
Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
$ 53 2,086 (2,098) 41
2 9 (10) 1
450 7,345 (7,330) 465
$ 505 9,440 (9,438) 507
$ 0 1 1) 0
505 9,430 (9,428) 507
$ 505 9,431 (9,429) 507

FUND

$ 77 255 (265) 67
4,517 0 (491) 4,026
58 256 (299) 15
13,587 16,955 (19,527) 11,015
$ 18,239 17,466 (20,582) 15,123
$ 2 16 (16) 2
18,237 17,200 (20,316) 15,121
$ 18,239 17,216 (20,332) 15,123
$ 1,957 213,975 (214,083) 1,849
26,428 3,349 (0) 29,777
30 210 (231) 9
7,201 107,013 (107,752) 6,462
$ 35,616 324,547 (322,066) 38,097
$ 2 26 (26) 2
35,614 324,201 (321,720) 38,095
$ 35,616 324,227 (321,746) 38,097




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

INTERNATIONAL FUEL TAX AGREEMENT FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

INTERNATIONAL FUEL TAX AGREEMENT BOND FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

INTERNATIONAL REGISTRATION PLAN FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable

Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
$ 1,074 11,456 (12,008) 522
2 1 ) 1
31 91 (115) 7
1,651 35,272 (35,758) 1,165
$ 2,758 46,820 (47,883) 1,695
$ 1 7 7) 1
2,757 43,054 (44,117) 1,694
$ 2,758 43,061 (44,124) 1,695
$ 61 45 (91) 15
1 6 @) 0
235 0 (45) 190
$ 297 51 (143) 205
$ 0 1 1 0
297 51 (143) 205
$ 297 52 (144) 205
$ 1,902 409 (402) 1,909
13 10 (13) 10
4 118 (120) 2
756 40,997 (40,758) 995
$ 2,675 41,534 (41,293) 2,916
$ 0 10 (10) 0
2,675 37,679 (37,438) 2,916
$ 2,675 37,689 (37,448) 2,916




Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
LOCAL OPTION USE TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 61 12,529 (12,488) 102
Accounts Receivable 4,888 0 (492) 4,396
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (16) (0) 1 (15)
Interest Receivable 11 63 (68) 6
Investments, at Fair Value 2,574 70,307 (68,675) 4,206
Total Assets $ 7,518 82,899 81,722 8,695
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 7 (7) 0
Due to Other Entities 7,518 82,338 (81,161) 8,695
Total Liabilities $ 7,518 82,345 (81,168) 8,695
LOCAL SALES TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,379 439,106 (433,065) 11,420
Accounts Receivable 146,797 0 (19,466) 127,331
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (28,219) (1,150) 0 (29,369)
Interest Receivable 566 1,588 (1,961) 193
Investments, at Fair Value 133,974 1,805,521 (1,798,131) 141,364
Total Assets $ 258,497 2,245,065 2,252,623 250,939
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 11 155 (153) 13
Due to Other Entities 258,486 2,228,985 (2,236,545) 250,926
Total Liabilities $ 258,497 2,229,140 (2,236,698) 250,939
LOCAL USE TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 32 0 1) 31
Interest Receivable 1 8 9) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 145 0 (0) 145
Total Assets $ 178 8 (10) 176
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 0 (0) 0
Due to Other Entities 178 0 (2) 176

Total Liabilities $ 178 0 (2) 176




Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
MISSOURI COTTON GROWERS FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 0 3,975 (3,972) 3
Interest Receivable 0 8 (8) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 0 6,740 (6,740) 0
Total Assets $ 0 10,723 (10,720) 3
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 1 (1) 0
Due to Other Entities 0 3,974 (3,971) 3
Total Liabilities $ 0 3,975 (3,972) 3
MOTOR FUEL BOND FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 26 109 (110) 25
Interest Receivable 2 9 (10) 1
Investments, at Fair Value 325 110 (100) 335
Total Assets $ 353 228 (220) 361
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 1 (1) 0
Due to Other Entities 353 108 (100) 361
Total Liabilities $ 353 109 (101) 361
MOTOR FUEL POOL BOND FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 35 30 1) 64
Interest Receivable 0 10 (10) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 0 10 (10) 0
Total Assets
$ 35 50 (21) 64
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 35 30 (1) 64

Total Liabilities $ 35 30 1) 64




Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
MOTOR VEHICLE PROTEST FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7 1 (7) 1
Total Assets $ 7 1 (7) 1
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 7 1 (7) 1
Total Liabilities $ 7 1 (7) 1
PROTESTED SALES AND USE TAX FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 35 39 (15) 59
Interest Receivable 48 221 (263) 6
Investments, at Fair Value 11,455 665 (7,995) 4,125
Total Assets $ 11,538 925 (8,273) 4,190
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 1 13 (13) 1
Due to Other Entities 11,537 662 (8,010) 4,189
Total Liabilities $ 11,538 675 (8,023) 4,190
RIVERBOAT GAMING FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 40 270,371 (270,374) 37
Interest Receivable 23 126 (141) 8
Investments, at Fair Value 5,495 68,315 (68,195) 5,615
Total Assets $ 5,558 338,812 (338,710) 5,660
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 1 15 (15) 1
Due to Other Entities 5,657 338,670 (338,568) 5,659

Total Liabilities $ 5,558 338,685 (338,583) 5,660




Unaudited

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002

SAFETY RESPONSIBILITY CUSTODY FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9 167 (174) 2
Interest Receivable 1 2 3) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 2,557 772 (765) 2,564
Total Assets $ 2,567 941 (942) 2,566
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 2,567 941 (942) 2,566
Total Liabilities $ 2,567 941 (942) 2,566

SECRETARY OF STATE UCC COLLECTION FUND

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 0 3,088 (2,832) 256
Interest Receivable 0 1 1) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 0 290 (90) 200
Total Assets $ 0 3,379 (2,923) 456
Liabilities
Bank Service Charges Payable $ 0 9 (8) 1
Due to Other Entities 0 3,371 (2,916) 455
Total Liabilities $ 0 3,380 (2,924) 456
ST. LOUIS CITY 3/8% HOLDING FUND
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 25 3 (0) 28
Interest Receivable 1 2 3) 0
Investments, at Fair Value 70 0 (0) 70
Total Assets $ 96 5 3) 98
Liabilities
Due to Other Entities $ 96 2 (0) 98

Total Liabilities $ 96 2 (0) 98




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

Totals - All Agency Funds (Memorandum Only)

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Interest Receivable
Investments, at Fair Value

Total Assets
Liabilities

Bank Service Charges Payable
Due to Other Entities

Total Liabilities

$

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
11,227 971,599 (965,950) 16,876
184,982 3,360 (20,847) 167,495
(28,235) (1,150) 1 (29,384)
806 2,824 (3,374) 256
186,385 2,172,192 (2,174,516) 184,061
355,165 3,148,825 3,164,686 339,304
19 270 (267) 22
355,146 3,108,928 (3,124,792) 339,282
355,165 3,109,198 (3,125,059) 339,304

Note: To comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, this schedule's basis of
accounting is full accrual. In prior years, this schedule was reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

To meet full accrual requirements, accounts receivables and allowances are included, amounts owed to other funds are
allocated to those funds, and investments are reported at fair value.



Capital Assets Used in the Operation
of Governmental Funds

The Capital Asset Section provides information about the source,
function, activity, and changes in the capital assets
of the Department of Revenue.




DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE BY SOURCE

JUNE 30,

Governmental Funds Capital Assets
EDP Equipment $
Other Equipment and Furniture

Total Govermental Funds Capital Assets $

Investments In Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source
General Fund $
Kansas City School District
Special Revenue Funds:

Conservation Commission
Department of Revenue Federal
Department of Revenue Information
Health Initiatives
Highway Revenue Generating
Motor Vehicle Commission
Petroleum Inspection
State Highways and Transportation
Department

Division of Youth

Special Revenue Funds Total

Total Investment In Governmental Funds Capital Assets $

Unaudited

(in thousands of dollars)

2002

17,335

5,665

23,000

8,942

48
472
396

12

17

21

13,090

14,058

23,000

2001

16,488
6,144

22,632

9,033

68
538
412

12

19

33

12,511

13,596

22,632



DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
JUNE 30, 2002

Division of Administration

Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing -
Excluding Branch Offices

Branch Offices

Division of Taxation and Collection

Highway Reciprocity Commission

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

(in thousands of dollars)

Unaudited

Other
EDP Equipment
Equipment and Furniture TOTAL

$ 3,924 2,214 6,138
5,004 1,511 6,515

1,017 190 1,207

7,078 1,661 8,739

312 89 401

$ 17,335 5,665 23,000




Unaudited
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
Capital Assets Capital Assets

July 1, 2001 Additions  Deletions  Adjustments  June 30, 2002

Division of Administration $ 6,600 968 (1,430) 6,138

Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers Licensing -

Excluding Branch Offices 6,382 2,184 (2,059) 8 6,515
Branch Offices 1,257 21 (71) 1,207
Division of Taxation and Collection 7,948 2,513 (1,722) 8,739
Highway Reciprocity Commission 445 63 (107) 401

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 22,632 5,749 (5,389) 8 23,000




Missouri Department of Revenue

Statistical

The Statistical Section contains data relating to expenditures, tax
and fee collections and distributions, state of Missouri General
fund receipts, and activities of the Office of the State Treasurer.




Missouri Department of Revenue

Expenditures

The following schedules provide comparative data on Department of Revenue
general government expenditures by fund, budget subclass, and division.
Additional comparative data is provided on program specific

distributions and collections to resource inputs.
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Missouri Department of Revenue

Taxes Administered

The introduction of Taxes Administered provides a brief description of the
tax and a breakdown of the types of collections included in each tax. The
schedules that follow depict comparative data on taxes administered by the
Department of Revenue and distributions made to political subdivisions.
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Unaudited Taxes Administered
Percent

FY 02 Amount FY 01 Amount Increase/

Collected Collected* Decrease

Cigarette Tax $113,827,189 115,390,098 -1.4 %
Financial Institutions Tax 11,842,756 11,665,071 1.5
Fuel Tax 701,786,105 692,049,876 1.4
Income Tax 4,940,485,270 5,032,357,668 -1.8
Insurance Tax 208,704,183 188,543,740 10.7
Local Sales and Use Tax 1,693,645,832 1,595,547,370 6.1
State Sales and Use Tax 2,875,985,621 2,820,905,536 2.0
Other Taxes 402,040,699 387,776,547 3.7

Total Collections $10,948,317,655 10,844,235,906 1.0 %

Percentage of Fiscal Year 2002 Collections

3.7%

1.9%

1.0% 0.1%

6.4%

B Cigarette Tax
B Financial Institutions Tax
OFuel Tax
BElIncome Tax

B Insurance Tax
ELocal Sales and Use Tax
O State Sales and Use Tax
45.1%| @ Other Taxes

*Fiscal Year 2001 was restated by reclassifying $71,862,774 of franchise tax from Other Taxes to Income Tax, and
moving $28,093 of property tax from Insurance Tax to Other Taxes.
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Taxes Administered

CIGARETTE TAX

Cigarette Tax

This is a tax on the sale of cigarettes paid by
the wholesaler and passed on to the final
purchaser. The tax is authorized by Section
149.015, RSMo. The tax rate is 8 %2 mills per
cigarette or 17 cents per pack of 20.
Disposition of the tax is to the State School
Money Fund (4 2 mills per cigarette), the Fair
Share Fund (2 mills per cigarette), and the
Health Initiatives Fund (2 mills per cigarette).

St. Louis County Cigarette Tax

This is a tax on the sale of cigarettes paid by
the wholesaler and passed on to the final
purchaser. The tax is authorized by Section
66.340, RSMo. The tax rate is 2 %2 mills per
cigarette or 5 cents per pack of 20.
Disposition of the tax is 99 percent to St.
Louis County and municipalities within the
county and 1 percent to the General Fund.

Jackson County Cigarette Tax

This is a tax on the sale of cigarettes paid by
the wholesaler and passed on to the final
purchaser. The tax is authorized by Section
210.320, RSMo. The tax rate is 2 %2 mills per
cigarette or 5 cents per pack of 20.
Disposition of the tax is 99 percent to Jackson
County and 1 percent to the General Fund.

Other Tobacco Products Tax

This is a tax levied upon the first sale of
tobacco products, other than cigarettes, within
the state. The tax is authorized by Section
149.160, RSMo. The tax rate is 10 percent of
the manufacturer’s invoice price. Disposition
of the tax is to the Health Initiatives Fund.

Unaudited
Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FYO01
Cigarette $97,272,540 2.2 %
St. Louis County 4,316,244 -4.0
Jackson County 2,692,779 -1.7
Tobacco Products 9,545,626 9.4
Total Collections $113,827,189 -1.4 %
5 Year History of Collections
140+
120+
100+
[72]
C
2 80
= 0
40,
20,
0,
FYoO8 FY®® FYO0O FYO1 FYO2
B Cigarette B St. Louis OJackson @ Tobacco
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Unaudited

Taxes Administered

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS TAX

Banks

This is a tax for the privilege of operating a
bank in Missouri. The tax is authorized by
Section 148.030, RSMo. The tax rate is 7
percent of net income. Disposition of the tax
is 98 percent to home political subdivisions
and 2 percent to the General Fund.

Credit Institutions

This is a tax for the privilege of operating a
consumer credit or loan business in Missouri.
The tax is authorized by Section 148.140,
RSMo. The tax rate is 7 percent of net
income. Disposition of the tax is 98 percent to
home political subdivisions and 2 percent to
the General Fund.

Savings and Loan Associations

This is a tax for the privilege of operating a
savings and loan association in Missouri. The
tax is authorized by Section 148.620, RSMo.
The tax rate is 7 percent of net income.
Disposition of the tax is 98 percent to home
political subdivisions and 2 percent to the
General Fund.

Credit Unions

This is a tax for the privilege of operating a
credit union in Missouri. The tax is authorized
by Section 148.620, RSMo. The tax rate is 7
percent of net income. Disposition of the tax
is 98 percent to home political subdivisions
and 2 percent to the General Fund.

Farmers Cooperative Credit
Associations

This is an intangible property tax on

cooperative accounts. The tax is authorized
by Section 148.540, RSMo. The tax rate is 2
percent of taxable dividends credited to each
account. Disposition of the tax is 98 percent

Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FYO01
Banks $7,265,954 8.0 %
Credit Inst. 620,300 -2.3
Savings & Loan 3,500,482 -9.5
Credit Unions 456,020 5.8
Farmers Coop. 0 -100.0
Total Collections $11,842,756 1.5 %
5 Year History of Collections

—
'y

— —
Q™

Millions
@

FYs8 FY® FY00 FYO1

FYo2

B Banks B Credit Inst. O Savings & Loan B Credit Unions

to home political subdivisions and 2 percent to the

General Fund.
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Taxes Administered Unaudited
Aviation Fuel
Percent

This is a use tax on each gallon of aviation FY02 Increase/
fuel used in propelling aircraft with Amount Decrease
reciprocating engines. The tax is authorized Tax Type Collected From FYO1
by Sections 155.080 and 155.090, RSMo.
The tax rate is 9 cents per gallon. Disposition . o
of the tax is to the Aviation Trust Fund. Aviation Fuel $429,032 -10.5 %

Motor Fuel Motor Fuel 701 ,357,073 1.4
This is a tax on the sale of motor fuel Total Collections $701,786,105 1.4 %

(gasoline, diesel, and blends) paid by the fuel
supplier and passed on to the final consumer.
The tax is authorized by Section 142.803,
RSMo. The tax rate is 17 cents per gallon.
Disposition of the tax is through the Motor
Fuel Tax Fund to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund and to the
agency fund Fuel Local Deposit (FLOYD)
Fund for distribution to all counties and
incorporated cities.

5 Year History of Collections

Millions

FY®8 FY® FYO0 FYOl  FYO2

B Motor Fuel B Aviation Fuel
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Unaudited

Taxes Administered

INCOME TAX

Individual

This is a tax on the taxable income of Missouri
residents and on taxable income earned in
Missouri by non-residents. The tax is
authorized by Section 143.011, RSMo. The
tax rate is from 12 percent to 6 percent of
taxable income. Disposition of the tax is to
the General Fund except for $10,486,439,
which the Department of Revenue deposited
to the Missouri Community College Job
Training Program Fund.

Corporation/Franchise

The corporate tax, authorized by Section
143.071, RSMo, is a tax on a corporation’s
taxable income from Missouri sources. The
rate is 6% percent of taxable income.
Disposition of the tax is to the General Fund.

The franchise tax, authorized by Chapter 147,
RSMo, is a tax on all in- and out-of-state
corporations based on assets apportioned to
Missouri. The tax rate is .0333 percent of
total assets or capital stock of a corporation.
Disposition of the tax is to the General Fund.

Declaration, as defined by Section
143.521, RSMo, is the amount the
taxpayer estimates to be his income tax
for the taxable year.

Fiduciary, as defined by Section 143.501,
RSMo, is the income tax filed by a person
charged with the care of another’s
property due to a death or disability.

Return, as defined by Section 143.511,
RSMo, is the tax owed as determined by
completing the appropriate income tax
form for the taxpayer’s taxable year.

Withholding, as defined by Section
143.191, RSMo, is the tax an employer
deducts and withholds from an
employees’ wages each pay period.

Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FYO01
Individual
Declarations $604,627,491 -15.9 %
Fiduciary 46,128,666 -4.5
Returns 463,152,636 -22.8
Withholding 3,346,311,719 4.1
College Job Cr 10,486,439 -10.3
Subtotal $4,470,706,951 2.7 %
Corporation/Franchise
Declarations $271,223,497 1.2 %
Returns* 198,554,822 16.9
Subtotal $469,778,319 7.3 %
Total Collections $4,940,485,270 -1.8 %
5 Year History of Collections

Millions

FYe8 FY® FYOO  FYO!

B Individual B Corporation/Franchise

Fyo2

*Franchise tax is classified as Corporation/ Franchise in Fiscal
Year 2002. In Fiscal Year 2001 and prior years it was classified as

Other Taxes.
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Taxes Administered

INSURANCE TAX

Premium Tax (Foreign)

This is a tax on direct premiums received in
Missouri by companies not organized under
the laws of Missouri. Retaliatory tax is
included. The tax is authorized by Sections
148.310-148.461, RSMo. The tax rate is 2
percent of net premiums collected.
Disposition of the tax is to the General Fund.

Premium Tax (Domestic)

This is a tax on direct premiums received in
Missouri by companies organized under the
laws of Missouri. The tax is authorized by
Sections 148.310-148.461, RSMo. The tax
rate is 2 percent of net premiums collected.
Disposition of the tax is through the agency
fund County Stock Insurance Fund to school
districts and the General Fund.

Surplus Lines of Insurance Tax
Interest and Penalties

The collections shown for surplus lines of
insurance tax are interest and penalties
collected by the Department of Revenue. The
Department of Insurance collects the surplus
lines of insurance tax. It is a tax on brokers
for the privilege of doing business in Missouri.
The tax is authorized by Section 384.051,
RSMo. The tax rate is 5 percent of net
premiums. Disposition of the interest and
penalties is to the General Fund.

See next page for additional tax types and collection
amounts.

Unaudited
Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FY01
Premium Foreign $160,589,220 15.3 %
Premium Domestic 4,679,046 -15.7
Surplus Lines 12,253 -68.3
Workers Comp. 2,221,514 -38.9
Second Injury 41,202,150 3.0
Total Collections $208,704,183 10.7 %

Workers’ Compensation Insurance

This is a tax on net premiums or net deposits on
insurance companies and self-insurers. The tax is
authorized by Section 287.690, RSMo. The tax rate,
not to exceed 2 percent, is set by the Director of the
Division of Workers’ Compensation. The Director set
the tax rate at 1 percent for calendar year 2002.
Disposition of the tax is to the Workers’ Compensation
Fund and the Second Injury Fund for support of the
Division of Workers’ Compensation.
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Unaudited

Taxes Administered

INSURANCE TAX

(continued)

Second Injury

This is a surcharge on insurance companies
and self-insurers for the purpose of providing
revenue for the Second Injury Fund. The tax
is authorized by Section 287.715, RSMo. The
tax rate is set at and calculated against a
percentage of the policyholder’s or self-
insurer's workers’ compensation net deposits,
net premiums, or net assessments of the
previous year. The Director of the Division of
Workers’ Compensation set the rate at 2.5
percent for calendar year 2002.

5 Year History of Collections

150+

Millions

100+

50

0,

FYs8 FY99 FY0  FYO1 FY02

B Prem. Foreign B Prem. Domestic B Second Injury O Workers Comp. ‘
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Taxes Administered

LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX

Local Sales Tax

This is a local political subdivision sales tax
with a base the same as the state sales tax.
Numerous revised statute sections authorize
the local political subdivisions to enact local
sales taxes if approved by a certain
percentage of the voters. Chapters 67, 92,
and 94, RSMo, are some of the main statutes
providing authorization. The tax rate varies.
Disposition of the tax is 99 percent to the
taxing jurisdiction and 1 percent to the
General Fund.

Local Option Use Tax

This is a local use tax with a rate equal to the
rate of the local sales tax in effect. The tax is
authorized by Section 144.757, RSMo.
Disposition of the tax is 99 percent to the
taxing jurisdiction and 1 percent to the
General Fund.

Local Use Tax

This was a local use tax with a base the same
as the state use tax. The tax was authorized
by Section 144.748, RSMo. The tax rate was
1%z percent. Disposition of the tax was 99
percent to the taxing jurisdiction and 1 percent
to the General Fund. On March 26, 1996, the
Missouri Supreme Court ruled the local use
tax invalid. The Department of Revenue
(department) ceased collecting the tax with
the April 1996 returns. The state legislature
approved a new local option use tax effective
in Fiscal Year 1997.

Unaudited
Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FYO01
Local Sales $1,630,054,577 4.7 %
Local Option Use 63,599,822 63.3
Local Use (8,567) 97.8
Total Collections $1,693,645,832 6.1 %

5 Year History of Collections

Millions

FY®8 FY®9 FY00 FYOl

FYo2

B Local Sales B Local Option |
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Unaudited

Taxes Administered

STATE SALES AND USE TAX

General Sales and Use Tax

General Sales Tax

Authorized by Section 144.020, RSMo, this is
a 3 percent tax on the purchase price of
tangible personal property or service sold at
retail, excluding exemptions. Disposition of
the tax is to the General Fund. Retail sales of
food is exempt from this 3 percent tax.

General Use Tax

Authorized by Section 144.610, RSMo, this is
a 3 percent tax on the value of tangible
personal property purchased outside the state
for the privilege of storing, using, or
consuming that property within the state,
excluding exemptions. Disposition of the tax
is to the General Fund.

Aviation Jet Fuel Sales Tax

This is a tax paid by common carriers as a
result of exemptions to the 3 percent general
revenue sales tax. These exemptions are a
result of direct-pay agreements between
common carriers and the Department of
Revenue. The tax is authorized by Section
144.805, RSMo. Disposition of the tax is to
the Aviation Trust Fund.

Conservation Sales and Use Tax

This is an additional state sales and use and
motor vehicle sales tax. The tax is authorized
by Article IV, Section 43, Missouri
Constitution. The tax rate is one-eighth of 1
percent. Disposition of the tax is to the
Conservation Commission Fund.

See next page for additional tax types and collection
amounts.

5Yeer Hstay o Gledias
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Education Sales and Use Tax

This is an additional (“Proposition C”) state sales and
use and motor vehicle sales tax. The tax is authorized
by Section 144.701, RSMo. The tax rate is 1 percent.
Disposition of the general education sales and use tax
is 100 percent to the School District Trust Fund.
According to Article 1V, Section 30 (b) 2, Missouri
Constitution, disposition of the motor vehicle education
sales tax is 50 percent to the School District Trust
Fund and 50 percent to funds dedicated for highway
and transportation use. These highway and
transportation funds are the State Road Fund (74
percent), the State Transportation Fund (1 percent),
and the agency fund, Fuel Local Deposit (FLOYD) (25
percent). The FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to
cities and counties.
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Taxes Administered Unaudited

STATE SALES AND USE TAX

(continued)

Highway Use Tax

This is a tax on vehicles purchased out of the
state and titled in Missouri or a tax on the sale 5 Year History of Collections
of a vehicle between individuals within
Missouri. The tax is authorized by Section
144.440, RSMo. The tax rate is 4 percent.
Disposition of the tax is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund (3
percent original tax) and various funds
dedicated for highway and transportation use
(1 percent tax increase). These highway and
transportation funds are the State Road Fund
(75 percent), and the agency fund, FLOYD
Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD Fund
distributes its portion to cities and counties.

Millions

Parks, Soils, and Water

Conservation Sales and Use Tax Fys8 FY® FYO FYOl FYo?
B General B Conservation O Education

This is an additional state sales and use and O Highway Use B Vehicle @ Parks & Soils
motor vehicle sales tax. The tax is authorized

by Article IV, Section 47, Missouri
Constitution. The tax rate is one-tenth of 1
percent. Disposition of the tax is 50 percent
to the Parks State Sales Tax Fund and 50
percent to the Soils and Water State Sales
Tax Fund.

Vehicle Sales Tax

This is a tax on the purchase of any new or
used motor vehicle or trailer. The tax is
authorized by Section 144.070, RSMo. The
tax rate is 3 percent. Disposition of the tax is
50 percent to the General Fund and 50
percent to funds dedicated for highway and
transportation use. These highway and
transportation funds are the State Road Fund
(74 percent), the State Transportation Fund (1
percent), and the agency fund, Fuel Local
Deposit (FLOYD) (25 percent). The FLOYD
Fund distributes its portion to cities and
counties.
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Unaudited

Taxes Administered

OTHER TAXES

County Private Car Tax

This is a tax imposed on freight line
companies. The tax is authorized by Chapter
137, RSMo. Disposition of the tax is to the
counties in the state based on each county’s
percentage of main line track mileage to the
aggregate total of the state. Seventy percent
is distributed to the school districts within each
county and 30 percent to the county general
revenue fund. Prior to the county distribution,
six-tenths of 1 percent of the County Private
Car Trust Fund is transferred to the Blind
Pension Fund.

Estate Tax

This is a tax on minimum credit for state death
taxes allowed by the Internal Revenue Code
Section 2011 (or Section 2015), against
Federal Estate Tax. The tax is authorized by
Chapter 145, RSMo. There is no statutory tax
rate. Disposition of the tax is to the General
Fund.

Gaming Gross Receipts Tax

This is a tax imposed on gaming riverboats.
The tax is authorized by Section 313.822,
RSMo. The tax rate is 20 percent of the
adjusted gross receipts that gaming boats
receive from gambling games. Disposition of
the tax is 90 percent to the Gaming Proceeds
for Education Fund and 10 percent to the
home dock cities and counties.

Property Tax

This is a tax to provide a fund for payment of
pensions for the blind. The tax is authorized
by Section 209.130, RSMo. The tax rate is 3
cents on each $100 valuation of taxable
property in the State of Missouri. Disposition
of the tax is to the Blind Pension Fund.

Percent
FY02 Increase/
Amount Decrease
Tax Type Collected From FYO01
County Private Car $2,770,020 -3.8 %
Estate 136,954,927 -12.7
Gaming Receipts 241,344,112 15.7
Property 20,971,640 7.9
Total Collections $402,040,699 3.7 %

5 Year History of Collections

Millions
338888883

FYs8 FY99 FYOO FYO1  FYO2

W Estate @ Property O Gaming Repts. B Cnty. Private Car
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Missouri Department of Revenue

General Fund Receipts

This schedule depicts General Fund receipts
for the past ten years in addition to

Fiscal Year 2003 and Fiscal Year 2002
original estimated receipts.
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Missouri Department of Revenue

Tax and Fee Distributions

Counties and Other Political Subdivisions

This schedule provides fiscal year data on the various tax and fee
distributions made by the Department of Revenue to counties and
other political subdivisions throughout the State of Missouri.
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Missouri Department of Revenue

Tax and Fee Distributions

Cities

This schedule provides fiscal year data on the various
tax and fee distributions made by the Department of
Revenue to cities throughout the state of Missouri.




(sbed 1xau uo panujjuod)

8/6'8 0 0 0 8/6'8 0 0 0 0 Aingsy
986°€Z 0 0 £¥6'0Z £Y0's 0 0 0 0 300y Moy
109°¢ 0 0 0 109'e 0 0 0 0 abey|IA Julod mouy
015'806'G 0 0 G8L'rLL'G Gzl'€6. 0 0 0 0 ploury
65Z'ZL 0 0 0 652'ZL 0 0 0 0 Buosswy
106' 0 0 0 106' 0 0 0 0 a0y
8e.'9lL 0 0 vLl'6 ¥20'L 0 0 0 0 alABay
1zv'e 0 0 0 12¥' 0 0 0 0 e|ooly
Zrs'eL 0 0 0£0'¥ ZIS've 0 0 0 0 alyory
080°c8 0 0 GE6'8S Svl've 0 0 0 0 elpeoly
8€9°LG 0 0 805'82 ogL'ez 0 0 0 0 pihauy
6£9'L 0 0 0 6£9'L 0 0 0 0 efeqly
118'681 0 0 9G.'9¢gl LzL'es 0 0 0 0 A0 uoje|ddy
ovL'LL 0 0 0 ovL'LL 0 0 0 0 uojsiuuy
028'LY 0 0 0.6'€E 0s8'el 0 0 0 0 sljodeuuy
' 0 0 0 ' 0 0 0 0 epeuuy
606'0€€ 0 0 G66'€92 ¥16'99 0 0 0 0 uosiapuy
15T 0 0 086'01L 195'01L 0 0 0 0 wepJejswy
699'8 0 0 0 699'8 0 0 0 0 jJeI0WY
G6Y'S 0 0 0 G6Y'S 0 0 0 0 Awy
126'01 0 0 0 126'0lL 0 0 0 0 ejuozewy
£16'202 0 0 119'v/L 968'/2 0 0 0 0 uoyy
0zG'LL 0 0 0 0zG'LL 0 0 0 0 Binquayy
182'8 0 0 0 182'8 0 0 0 0 juoweyy
89¢€'/1L 0 0 0 89¢' /1L 0 0 0 0 ewly
10S'€ 0 0 0 106'e 0 0 0 0 SIS
00€'2 0 0 0 00€' 0 0 0 0 alepus|ly
ale‘lz 0 0 veL'0l z85'0lL 0 0 0 0 elpuexa|y
G60'C 0 0 0 G60'S 0 0 0 0 uoupIY
289'80€ 0 0 0v8'8zz zv8'6l 0 0 0 0 Aueqiy
alLL'ee 0 0 2.9'7) 'Lz 0 0 0 0 eqy
216'292 0 0 lvz'eee Gz1'62 0 0 0 0 aAuQ Hoduly
6.¥'G2 0 0 0 8.¥'S2 0 0 0 0 Kousby
6.1'GSE 0 128'6 ££9'962 6lLL'8Y 0 0 0 0 soUBApY
90¥'0.2 0 0 121'102 6/9'89 0 0 0 0 uelpy
(Aluo (r1°B) (F'u‘b) (r'e4y) (B*9) (6°p) (6*0) (6°q) (B%e) Ao
wnpuelowsaly) S99 B saxe] Xe] asn Xe] sajeg 994 pue Xe] ‘jsu| sinoT 1S Xe] Xe|
|ejol Bujwen uondQ [e207 |eo07] xe] |an4 |eloueuld 1o} aoueinsu| led ajeAld apasebin
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4

S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

€/8'y 0 0 0 €/8'y 0 0 0 0 1syieg
ZG€'096 0 0 009°'G€e8 z8L'veL 0 0 0 0 Aueyieg
€62°'62 0 0 0 €62'62 0 0 0 0 pueijeg
€9/'022 0 0 66E‘OVL v9€'v. 0 0 0 0 sluleg
0€L LLL L 0 0 6€.'G99 GG9'6SY 0 0 0 9€.'sy Keeieg
Lov'olL 0 0 €L0°L 8Z€'6 0 0 0 0 Jebiog
19€'S 0 0 0 19€'S 0 0 0 0 A0 uojueg
€9v'9/L 0 0 1G8'6Y zlo'ez 0 0 0 0 uojusg
601 'v¥Z'S 0 0 868°0eY'v Lz'els 0 0 0 0 uojeg
ozl'see 0 0 0.,8°L¥2 8¢e6'eel 0 0 0 gLe'el obpiy-leg
€65°281 0 199'9 6£8'86 SLL'oL 0 0 0 2.6'9 JON-lieg
6L6'LY 0 0 LelL've 86lL'LL 0 0 0 0 Jamojjjieg
790°'LL 0 0 0 g90'0lL 0 0 0 666 oaAlg|ieg
G8LllelL’L 0 0 zLz'ee9 /2GSy 0 0 0 9v0'Sy ‘ubleN sulejuojeljeg
9€0'85¢2 0 0 zL9's02 ¥9€'es 0 0 0 0 9leg
66008 0 616°C LLE'EY G0.'0¢ 0 0 0 ¥50'€ Ell'A elleg
oLl'ee 0 0 EV0'vL 19061 0 0 0 0 10 Ileg
7866771 0 0 08.'0L ¥0Z'6. 0 0 0 0 pleysineg
0St'sylL 0 129'GL v..'02L G00'6 0 0 0 0 A0 sereg
1G9'8 0 0 0 169'8 0 0 0 0 hsuieg
/g0'01L 0 0 0 /€0'01L 0 0 0 0 pleuleg
€10, 0 0 0 €10, 0 0 0 0 Bueg
G80'G6.'E 0 0 LLL'Lvp'e 069'L€T'L 0 0 0 vez'eel umjeg
68€'Y 0 0 0 68€'y 0 0 0 0 Sed uimpleg
16522 0 0 go/s'olL zes'Ll 0 0 0 0 plsys.iaxeq
188'0L 0 0 862'L 68G'c 0 0 0 0 llsubeg
Z65'8¢ 0 0 LG9l gelL'ee 0 0 0 0 S[EPUOAY
608°S 0 0 0 608'S 0 0 0 0 elliay
8L 16/ 0 96€'€2 121'S¥9 gzo'zel 0 0 0 0 =\
8/8'/2L 0 0 11926 Loz'se 0 0 0 0 8sseAxny
€ZG I8yl 0 0 ¥€0'902°1 681's.2 0 0 0 0 eloiny
Z60°'L6 0 0 98l°L8 906'6 0 0 0 0 epsnbny
rGe'ze 0 0 €GL'vL 10921 0 0 0 0 ejuepy
6Z1'99¢ 0 0 6v8°20¢ 08Z'€9 0 0 0 0 puejysy
6LL'9LC 0 zLo'8 8/0°0S1 680'2S 0 0 0 0 $ 8A0I9 ysy
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

Gges'le 0 0 gzL'el 0€8'/L 0 0 0 0 abpuusoaig
lL's6 0 0 €9€'8S 8/.'9¢ 0 0 0 0 JswAelg
96Z°ClL 0 0 0 9622l 0 0 0 0 Jeayseig
zo8‘ove’l 0 0 gol'eee’L ¥€9'L 0 0 0 0 IS8\ uosuelg
T.G'8G6°L1L 0 0 8Lz 19/'L1L ¥Ge'L6L 0 0 0 0 uosuelg
0869 0 0 0 086'9 0 0 0 0 9||iAspuelg
z6L'9 0 0 0 z6L'9 0 0 0 0 Ao bbeig
€65'168 0 0 ZLL'v9L Lev'/gL 0 0 0 0 usal9 Bujimog
L1Z'vle 0 0 €zv'eee ¥6.'1S 0 0 0 0 uoginog
0z9'vL 0 0 0 0z9'vlL 0 0 0 0 yHomsog
16L'/¥9'e ovr'180°C 0 680'¥SZ’L zoz'ele 0 0 0 0 8||lauocog
EV6LES 0 0 0€0°0.9 €L6'19L 0 0 0 0 8lls| suuog
026°'29Z°¢ 0 0 G08'/€6'C sLL'gze 0 0 0 0 JeAljog
Loo‘0L 0 0 0 1000l 0 0 0 0 Mo>dj0g
Lov'6 0 0 0 Lov'6 0 0 0 0 psebog
€816 0 0 0 €8lL'6 0 0 0 0 slepayiiig
8zZ6'L9v‘0lL 0 0 11G'€99°8 LGe'e6.'L 0 0 0 0 sbupds enig
60€'S 0 0 0 60€'S 0 0 0 0 a3 enig
LLL'YS 0 0 696'8¢ 8v.'SlL 0 0 0 0 8lepswoolg
6G0°961 0 Gl zze'sllL zzL'el 0 0 0 0 piaijwoolg
1056 0 0 0 10S'6 0 0 0 0 nebpoig
lglL'ss 0 0 80.°'0S €lL0'sz 0 0 0 0 puelg
z69'9L 0 0 €96°6 62L'9 0 0 0 0 umossiielg
6.6°L1 0 0 8ve'6 Le9's 0 0 0 0 Isyemyoelg
8GG'61 0 0 00v'L 851zl 0 0 0 0 uingxoelg
61289 0 6vl'se €69'09¢ 20l 'v92 0 0 0 §Lz'oe Yoer yoelg
¥9zZ'e6l 0 0 z99'oel 209'29 0 0 0 0 Yosewslig
rez'ol 0 0 062°.L rv6's 0 0 0 0 weybuiwg
L¥8'60L 0 0 8L9'v8 622'se 0 0 0 0 8al] youig
98Z°L0L 0 0 €118 €LG'ZYy 0 0 0 0 sbulliig
4 0 0 0 'l 0 0 0 0 mojebig
reL'9 0 0 0 veL'9 0 0 0 0 ayeT big
vrL's 0 0 9ee's 80t 0 0 0 0 ajysig
056'88 0 0 S¥0'L9 G06'.C 0 0 0 0 Jsineg
80808 0 0 ¥8Z'8S G766 0 0 0 6.5 $ Sl Alieneg
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

1€0'8.6°} 0 0 ¥6€°0L9°) 1€9'20¢€ 0 0 0 0 uosswe)
£6e'vee'e 0 0 Loz'stlz z61'601 0 0 0 0 uojuspwed
ovy'LL 0 0 0 ovy'LL 0 0 0 0 julod uspwed
z61'6 0 0 0 z6l'6 0 0 0 0 uspwey
GGL'€9 0 0 0 evy'LG 0 0 0 zLL's ied uopaned
GLo'le 0 0 €08'8 zL8'Cl 0 0 0 0 Oe||eQ
1/2'68S 0 0 €8/'9el 88y'ZGL 0 0 0 0 EluIojl|e]
¥86'7€ 0 0 Sv.'Gl 6€2'61 0 0 0 0 unoyjed
LzL'gl 0 0 166°L1 0clL'g 0 0 0 0 Ejuopsjed
LLL'LL 0 0 0 V22 0 0 0 0 olle)
2€5'Gl 0 0 0 2€5'Gl 0 0 0 0 SjliAsuled
oLL'zsy 0 0 Lge'Loe 65€'G8 0 0 0 0 |00QEeD
868781 0 0 ovL'v0L z61'08 0 0 0 0 N seuIAg
yS0'ElL 0 0 0 ¥S0'€l 0 0 0 0 pesRNg
G6v°'0CL ) 0 0 29066 €eL'0LL 0 0 0 0 J8hng
ov6°GZ 0 0 0 9v6'GC 0 0 0 0 Jounr uoybullng
zsv'e 0 0 0 zsv'e 0 0 0 0 ssabing
zse'ee 0 0 05991 20.'9l 0 0 0 0 Jaxung
414" 0 0 0 Zl'vl 0 0 0 0 uojaoung
oLv'el 0 0 8/9'G zelL'.L 0 0 0 0 abe||IA ¥e819 |Ing
9Ly'Ged 0 0 65628 160'901 0 0 0 0 ofejyng
Lov'aLe 0 ov8'sl Lzy'vie ovL'GLL 0 0 0 0 Jauong
086°19 0 G08‘L zLlL'oe €ov'ee 0 0 0 0 uipiong
ovl'ayl 0 0 ZL0'vol 8zl Ly 0 0 0 0 Yoimsunig
068'01 0 0 €91’/ lzl'e 0 0 0 0 Kejunuig
4 AN 4 0 0 0 L'y 0 0 0 0 uojbulumolg
82.'6e 0 080°} €ge'llL G6z'cl 0 0 0 0 Bujumosg
626'y 0 0 0 626'y 0 0 0 0 'S}BH uhjyooig
7€9'62 0 0 Loz'LL eev'zl 0 0 0 0 aulpjoolg
LLy'esh'l 0 Zv6'68 005°G9L ‘) 620'861 0 0 0 0 pIayxoo.g
10€'6 0 0 0 10€'6 0 0 0 0 ybneuo.g
9/.°C 0 0 0 9/1'2 0 0 0 0 uosuwiug
8LC'VLIV'Y 0 0 8//'12l'e eV 789 0 0 0 990'89 uoyebpug
008°600'1 0 0 LLe'aro'e 891 ‘gze 0 0 0 Lze'se poomjuaig
1z8'qsy 0 82561 695'v2C 982'502 0 0 0 8EY'9e $ sliIH ebpuuaxoalg
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

ov8'slLlL 0 0 0 €oL'solL 0 0 0 le1'01 Ke|leA uosse|
¥00'€lL 0 0 0 ¥00'€lL 0 0 0 0 S|epsyJe|n
Sv6'LL 0 0 £v6'C 200'st 0 0 0 0 Bungsxie|o
z8s'ol 0 0 0 z88'0l 0 0 0 0 piLle)
¥68'0L1 0 0 966'0. 868'6¢ 0 0 0 0 souale|n
6L, 0 0 0 6L, 0 0 0 0 e|nyo
[ AN 0 0 920'v9.‘z 806'€9¢ 0 0 0 0 8oy
LLL'ze 0 0 16681 rlo'el 0 0 0 0 aamoy|iyg
676°169°9 0 0 098°689‘t Loe'Lze'l 0 0 0 88/'081 pleisIsayd
G0Z'v98 0 0 L9299 ¥95'102 0 0 0 0 uojss|ieyd
186'EYL 0 0 9z5'08 zzL'LS 0 0 0 €€.'s Yoeeyy
L1S 0 0 0 (A4 0 0 0 Ly dweyo
voZ'Ly 0 0 99922 8€G'8L 0 0 0 0 sloweyo
862'¢ 0 0 0 862' 0 0 0 0 $}00Y jo uleyo
098'% 0 0 0 098'v 0 0 0 0 sa)eq-O-uleyd
188'vGE 0 0 86.'62C €80'GCL 0 0 0 0 a9j4eyo
60€'695 0 0 eov'ezy 906'9vL 0 0 0 0 elesus)
z8LLL 0 0 L¥S'6 Geg's 0 0 0 0 9||InLjus)
0St'6 0 0 0 0St'6 0 0 0 0 MBIAIBIUS]
9/0'0¢ 0 0 Sov'ee 129'CL 0 0 0 0 umopsiued
90129 0 0 869°/€ 80Y'¥C 0 0 0 0 Isjued
Zre's 0 0 0 zve's 0 0 0 0 sa)eT ||IH 41epe)
890°¢ 0 0 0 890'¢ 0 0 0 0 uonjed
86.'¢6l°L 0 0 96G6'980°L zye'LoL 0 0 0 0 9|liAsse)
ozy'L 0 0 0 9zv'L 0 0 0 0 umoikien
olLs'sgz'e 060°692°L 0 ¥20'92. Zr9'062 0 0 0 0 9||iAsiaLnied
9€.'€8G'e 0 0 800°90L ‘€ 8zZL'L1Y 0 0 0 0 abeype)
669802 0 olLe's L¥0'LZL Zre'el 0 0 0 0 9|!Alepe]
00682/ 0 0 9z8°'eSs v,0'S/L 0 0 0 0 uoyjjjoled
19/'G6¥% 0 0 €,0'v0¢ 769161 0 0 0 0 uonounr [1eg
€612 0 0 16002 zov'ee 0 0 0 0 lIe@Mpied
09v'08¥'9L 0 0 1€G°050°GL €z6'62y'L 0 0 0 0 nespJello eded
6LL'GLE 0 0 766802 Gzz'ool 0 0 0 0 uojuep
L€9'¢l 0 0 0 1€9'¢l 0 0 0 0 nojeue)
GLL'/6L 0 0 LSY'pLL roz'es 0 0 0 0 $ llsqdwe)
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200z ‘0€ INNC A3AN3 ¥VIA HOA4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed 1xau uo panuijuod)

19/'661 0 096°CL Lgg'eel 9G2'€S 0 0 0 0 suel)
088°/2 0 0 LIyl cov'el 0 0 0 0 Breso
6ee0lL 0 0 0 6€€'0l 0 0 0 0 [11BmoD
GZl'y 0 0 0 zsL'e 0 0 0 €. seuoy 8j1 Aijunod
G160 0 0 G16'0€ 0 0 0 0 0 abe|iiA qnio Aunod
ovy'6ElL 0 0 100'8. 888'GS 0 0 0 16S'S slliH aniD Aunog
¥69'€L 0 0 0 ¥69'¢. 0 0 0 0 qn|o Ajunog
169°2.2 0 0 1€9'8zC 990't¥ 0 0 0 0 SllICtiicie]
98¢'G 0 0 0 98¢€'s 0 0 0 0 Agso)
10€°C 0 0 0 10€'2 0 0 0 0 Buiuiod
081°6¢ 0 vel'y €0.'GlL €G.'8l 0 0 0 0 J8plo)
L.z2'8l 0 0 0 L/2'8l 0 0 0 0 18)000
GGP 9SG 0 0 0 pre’ls 0 0 0 LLL's As|leA 100D
G89'GLL 0 0 769°/8 166'L2 0 0 0 0 Kemuop
zlS'e 0 0 0 zls'e 0 0 0 0 pueys| Aeuo9
€28'0vL 0 0 9Ly 89 10%'26 0 0 0 0 EIpJodu0)
€106 0 0 0 €10'6 0 0 0 0 “Jounp uondsouo)
698°G 0 0 0 698'G 0 0 0 0 8dJawwo)
zes'viv'ee 0 0 vyl'zye'oe 880°zel'e 0 0 0 0 elqunjod
8€8°€9 0 8/6°C 8€L'vS 228’9 0 0 0 0 suljjod
LIL¥0LL 0 0 €zl'lzL v69'CY 0 0 0 0 dwe) sj09
4R 0 0 0 142K 0 0 0 0 Kegoo
051'6 0 0 0 051'6 0 0 0 0 Jeqod
896'C 0 0 0 896'C 0 0 0 0 8pAlD
VA7 kA4 0 9v0°691 €10°06G'¢ 881'89¢ 0 0 0 0 uojulig
629'G 0 0 €L gls'e 0 0 0 0 sbuuds xeuw|y
el 0 0 0 eV 0 0 0 0 II'H uoylio
0S0'L 0 0 0 0S0'L 0 0 0 0 abeliIA 11D
98/'G0L 0 0 Gl9€L LlL'ee 0 0 0 0 18A31D
9¢€'65 0 0 626°9¢ L0¥'2e 0 0 0 0 pue@As|Q
€8y’ 0 0 0 €8y'L 0 0 0 0 juoues|p
ozy'loe'e 0 0 299°0€9° G¥6'69G 0 0 0 €18'00L uoyke|n
98509 0 0 0 985'09 0 0 0 0 owooke|n
9/1°20L 0 0 Lge‘zs Gz8'6Y 0 0 0 0 uopiie|n
8.6y 0 0 188'62 198'61 0 0 0 0 S|lIAsYIe|D
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

LISV 0 0 0 LISV 0 0 0 0 Janog
€89°LG 0 0 09z'9z €zy'se 0 0 0 0 Sjplooqg
00£°2S9 0 0 GY8°LLS GSY'vL 0 0 0 0 ueydjuog
v11°96C 0 0 €05°161 129'v9 0 0 0 0 uoxig
618'GZ 0 0 6257l 0se'LL 0 0 0 0 sulbbig
z62'9 0 0 0 z62'9 0 0 0 0 peis|yald
820'¢c. 0 0 4l ¥8€'Ze 0 0 0 0 puowei@
zezesiy'e 0 0 G6S0LLZ 121'v0¢€ 0 0 0 0 J8xe
269'vry L 0 0 166°192°) GeL'z8l 0 0 0 0 abojseq
18¥'9€L'e 0 oeegole €66°0€G6°C GZ0'vse 0 0 0 €/1'Ge salad se(Q
29’ 0 0 0 z9e'L 0 0 0 0 Iy seg
0z6'L 0 0 0 0z6'L 0 0 0 0 JanusQq
80.L't 0 0 0 80L'Y 0 0 0 0 $810Y sluusQ
vLLL9 0 0 L16'LY £v.'6l 0 0 0 0 = Ele]
¥8.°0G. 0 0 VA4 4% zol'sle 0 0 0 g/e'le poomjie@
8..'6 0 0 0 8..'6 0 0 0 0 qiexaq
062'¢ 0 0 0 062'¢ 0 0 0 0 pIeseQ
118°¢€€ 0 0 zes'rl GGE'6L 0 0 0 0 Jeyemdsaq
9Zy'0s 0 0 18.'6Z 6¥9'0C 0 0 0 0 uioglesqg
920'G 0 0 0 920's 0 0 0 0 WM aa
189091 0 0 €69'202'L ¥€0'€52 0 0 0 0 0jJos 8@
LEV'Y 0 0 0 LEV'Y 0 0 0 0 uojbuipeq
0z.'L6 0 0 0 0z.'L6 0 0 0 0 slleld suspleq
re'l 0 0 0 vre'l 0 0 0 0 uojeqg
¥60'6 0 0 0 ¥60'6 0 0 0 0 3|liAspeq
199'v1 0 0 8Sl'Y €050l 0 0 0 0 8linkung
029°ze6 0 0 661°GL8 Ley'LLlL 0 0 0 0 eqn)
ZLo'GlL 0 0 8/0'C €6'Cl 0 0 0 0 saxe [eyshi)
zzl'ey 0 0 616°/C Leg'sl 0 0 0 z.6'L Sied exeT [eyship
650092} 0 0 €27'680°1 z€9'0LL 0 0 0 0 Ao reyshin
GLe'L 0 0 0 GLz'L 0 0 0 0 SJaquil] ssoiQ
ov8'ocl 0 0 266°¢6 88z'ey 0 0 0 0 18X2040
8/6°LLL'E 0 0 089°09¢'C 9v8°889 0 0 0 25789 dN80) 8AaI)
600‘cEY'y 0 0 €16'6/8'¢ 880°L0G 0 0 0 80%'0S poomisal)
¥6.'62 0 0 60€°LL G8y'zl 0 0 0 0 $ uoyybie1n
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

vie'zy 0 0 ZLL'SL 209'92 0 0 0 0 181X
€€6'G62'E 0 9€0'9/1 295°689' Gee'vey 0 0 0 0 sbundg Joisjeox3
L10°LL 0 0 0 L1011 0 0 0 0 $8j€e}s3 J0Is|adx]
0L9'tY 0 0 ¥19'Ge 966'81 0 0 0 0 Buim3
929'92 0 0 y9e'cl 29z'cl 0 0 0 0 uopaAl
L¥6'892°C 0 0 9€6'€66'L £92'052 0 0 0 29.'ve exaing
860y 0 0 0 860 0 0 0 0 [EOIE]
128'L€ 0 0 00Z'91 129'le 0 0 0 0 Xxass3
LoL'ee 0 0 zee'2e 6/8'91 0 0 0 0 03
600'02 0 0 80L'LL 106'8 0 0 0 0 eww3
vee'vel 0 0 orL'LLL ¥61'€C 0 0 0 0 adusulwg
295'8 0 0 0 295'8 0 0 0 0 yoesg pjesswy
009°GLE 0 L.6'0l 6v¢€'vee 089'08 0 0 0 0 Kusgs|3
¥80'.L 0 0 0 ¥80'.L 0 0 0 0 ow3
zoL'e 0 0 0 zoL'e 0 0 0 0 equwig
Gog'e 0 0 0 Gog'e 0 0 0 0 Baulg
662'29 0 0 SlLG'op ¥81'Gl 0 0 0 0 alouis||3
ZrL'6L6°) 0 0 095°0¥S'L 956've 0 0 0 9z2've
100°eve 0 0 8/2'10¢ 62L'Ly 0 0 0 0 uobug
19/°718'L 0 0 1zy'Lz9'L 9ve'061 0 0 0 0 uop|3
869°.2. 0 0 16L°'L1G 106'G5L 0 0 0 0 sbuuds opeloq 3
sLeziy 0 eyl 206°95¢ 6.2'0v 0 0 0 0L0'y uospunwp3
6L9CLL 0 0 G00°LZl 719'LS 0 0 0 0 eulp3
80.L'8Y 0 0 [AAN T4 9e5'2C 0 0 0 0 uopebp3
8Lzl 0 0 168°CL lze'8 0 0 0 0 sbuuds Jebp3
v1G'8l 0 0 195'8 €100l 0 0 0 0 uojseq
LgL'Lze 0 0 Lee'L6l ore'oel 0 0 0 0 Slleld jse3
Zrsioe 0 0 A 850'C) 0 0 0 0 8uuA yse3
G8Z'GYrlL 0 0 zzl'eel €912l 0 0 0 0 a||ine|be]
960°01 0 0 S96'9 1Gl'e 0 0 0 0 umoyoing
z6.'681 0 0 oLv'izL Zre'es 0 0 0 0 ausanbng
ezlzel 0 0 V1116 6v€'0v 0 0 0 0 Bemuenq
vol Gy 0 0 80.'¢ce oSy L1 0 0 0 0 Kelpn@
ove'vLL 0 0 168°CEL 6ve' LY 0 0 0 0 [9xaiqg
Lev'sl 0 0 0 Lev'sl 0 0 0 0 $ Buiumoq
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B%9) (B°p) (6*2) (B‘q) (B%e) STEe)
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

8G09S 0 0 066'Ge 89¥'02 0 0 0 0 uewsa.4
90€'e9l 0 0 elv'sylL €e8'/l 0 0 0 0 Binges.4
Gre'vee 0 0 6.8'299 Q9r'LolL 0 0 0 0 UmopjoLspal 4
ZLL'YL 0 0 z69'8 080'9 0 0 0 0 uipjueld
006'6Z 0 0 £vs'ol 16€'G1L 0 0 0 0 plopjuel
86€°96¢ 0 0 190'06€ Le€'9y 0 0 0 0 suosesg Ino4
GEO'V 0 0 0 Ge0'v 0 0 0 0 $8XeT N ulejuno4
166'S 0 0 0 166'S 0 0 0 0 181804
z86'L 0 0 0 z86'L 0 0 0 0 8NOS8l0
696'8€S 0 0 006'081 690'8S 0 0 0 0 Uisio4
16S'6ET 0 zLL'62 166'002 897'6 0 0 0 0 li¥skio4
0€8'8Z 0 0 0/0'vL 09/'vl 0 0 0 0 Ay0 yseu04
L9v'6S 0 0 €06've 86S'vC 0 0 0 0 puejpJo4
eLL'gl 0 0 8vL'ol G96'L 0 0 0 0 Asjo4
1/€'616'9 0 0 0€5°129'v 199'v¥L'e 0 0 0 vil'ele juesslo|4
6L 10l 0 80.'¢ GE9'VS 8/6'8¢ 0 0 0 €/8'c SIIIH l1epJol4
G¥8'/6 0 0 066'G8 s6z'cl 0 0 0 0 II'H 34
6¥¥'S 0 0 0 6¥¥'S 0 0 0 0 uojbulwa| 4
€/1's 0 0 0 €/1's 0 0 0 0 Buiws|4
144 0 0 144 0 0 0 0 0 IBNIY Yeld
Zr6'Ls 0 0 L6.'se LGL'ol 0 0 0 0 3sid
619'6 0 0 0 619'6 0 0 0 0 aJowiid
196'6 0 0 0 196'6 0 0 0 0 Avjepi4
G9l'/6Y'y 0 0 618'vEL'Y ove'zoe 0 0 0 0 snjsa
8L8'LYy 0 0 9/1'6l Zv9'ee 0 0 0 0 M3lA[BLIB
zoe'esy'e 0 0 0LG'9p¥'L G18'Gl6 0 0 0 116'06 uosnbie 4
Gov'L€0°e 0 0 GL0'298'c 195'6S1 0 0 0 €28'Gl uojus4
6Ll L0¢ 0 0 959'v8l €z5'9llL 0 0 0 0 apehed
G89'OVS 'y 0 0 192'920'v 8L¥'0Zs 0 0 0 0 uoybujuLe 4
890'6 0 0 0 890'6 0 0 0 0 Keped
GE6'6C 0 0 6€6'ClL 966'91 0 0 0 0 J8qie
€96'02 0 0 898'Cl S60'vL 0 0 0 0 Mmalnled
¥GE'S9 0 0 €6/'/¢ 109'.2 0 0 0 0 Xepled
900°ey 0 0 9se'se 0S9°L1L 0 0 0 0 Reid e
S xAR4 0 0 Lee'LLL ZLe'Ly 0 0 0 0 $ aA0Ig Jled
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4

S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

ov9'LL 0 0 ze0'e 809'6 0 0 0 0 Ulpueig
zLL'e 0 0 0 zlL'e 0 0 0 0 Ssed pueio
1G9’ 0 0 0 169'y 0 0 0 0 eze|d s|ed pueio
Gz6°L0¢ 0 0 G6.'vee ocL'es 0 0 0 0 Aquein
89G'710°L 0 0 9v8'9/8 zzl'lel 0 0 0 0 Kellep urelo
60L'8 0 0 0 60L'8 0 0 0 0 weyelo
L0v°CTLL 0 Loo'ez 90€'G6 00L'vS 0 0 0 0 Jamo9
Z69'Sl 0 0 0 269'G1L 0 0 0 0 9||lAucplo9
0zo‘LoL 0 0 9SS ¥9G'9y 0 0 0 0 Uewpoo9
8ve‘L0L 0 0 090'¢. 88Z'v¢e 0 0 0 0 Auo usplog
yAZN ] 0 0 0 yAZN ] 0 0 0 0 poomus|
L€1°09. 0 668°ze L0z'eLy 90zZ'ove 0 0 0 698'cC 8lepus|9
Ge8'y 0 0 0 688’y 0 0 0 0 us|leus|o
GlLo'ez 0 0 0 glo'ez 0 0 0 0 aleus|
GLL'8 0 0 0 926'L 0 0 0 68/ Yied oydo3q us|9
08e‘ele 0 0 GZ6'091 §G¥'2S 0 0 0 0 mobse|n
968°'/¥6°L 0 0 066'698'9 9v6',10'L 0 0 0 0 suoispe|
/6l°ee 0 0 Zve'LlL 668'Gl 0 0 0 0 Auo vewno
Lee'el 0 0 zZle'y 610'6 0 0 0 0
rLl'08 0 0 269'v¢ zzr'sy 0 0 0 0 uospl
L98'e 0 0 0 L98'e 0 0 0 0 $qQI9
8€e'e 0 0 961 Zrs'l 0 0 0 0 18is1e9
196261 0 0 €80°LSL ¥88'LY 0 0 0 0 pless9
6EL'Y 0 0 0 BEL'Y 0 0 0 0 Auen
10Z'SL 0 0 996t Lr9'ol 0 0 0 0 Speuodsen
0zZ.'902 0 0 BLL'LSL L¥G'sS 0 0 0 0 Ayo uspien
2Ll 0 0 0 2Ll 0 0 0 0 eo
1€8'861 0 1€9'LL zszellL Zv6'v. 0 0 0 0 uie|eo
16Z'6€ 0 0 988'le Sov'LL 0 0 0 0 eus|en
89/°081 0 0 z8Z'vs1 98¥'92 0 0 0 0 9||IAsaulen
z9e'ses'e 0 0 £€25'e8Y'T 6€8°LSY 0 0 0 0 uoyn4
616268 0 0 ozL'lel 86L°LylL 0 0 0 Sz0'vl oeuUSjuUO.
G€0'6 0 0 0 G€0'6 0 0 0 0 euyol4
90v'se 0 9eg°L 08’8l 06€'Sl 0 0 0 0 S||IH juowsal4
€G1°L 0 0 0 €G1'L 0 0 0 0 $ nesiald
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

JNNIATY 40 LNINLYVd3IA
papneun



(sbed 1xau uo panuijuod)

1€0'8ez’e 0 09¢°66€ yOL'Er9’l v16°280°L 0 0 0 650801 poom|azeH
vie'ol 0 0 0 rie'ol 0 0 0 0 Ao poomAeH
151°GS 0 0 €26'02 veZ've 0 0 0 0 siybleH nAeH
6.6'699 0 0 £96'9¢€S 9lo'eel 0 0 0 0 nhey
0L¥'9S 0 0 JARWAS €606l 0 0 0 0 juiod YmeH
199'¢ 0 0 0 199'¢ 0 0 0 0 poomieH
vzl oel 0 0 12901 olLv'ee 0 0 0 0 3|lIALeH
v.0'Cl 0 0 1GL'L €26'Y 0 0 0 0 BingspeH
622°€99°C 0 0 zos‘eze’s 199'6€€ 0 0 0 0 8|jlauosLlIeH
Gze've 0 0 80L°LL L12'L 0 0 0 0 Bingsuuey
6€C'Y 0 0 0 6€C'Y 0 0 0 0 SlueH
vz Ly 0 0 0v'2e 0z8've 0 0 0 0 uipleH
GY.'6GL'S 0 0 yeg'ozy'y L'ees 0 0 0 0 |eqiuueH
6.¥°00L 0 0 0 €6£'16 0 0 0 980'6 siiH Asjuey
v8l'zve 0 0 8L1'0LL 999'2/ 0 0 0 0 uojjiweH
44w 0 0 0 429 0 0 0 0 umoyjieH
165°G6 0 0 0€8'95 19/'8¢ 0 0 0 0 S|lIAs|[eH
S0l 0 0 0 S0L'. 0 0 0 0 KemyjeH
266°G9 0 0 GL0'oY 1€5'61 0 0 0 0 8leH
zs0'e 0 0 0 zs0'e 0 0 0 0 AyD uung
G69'¢ 0 0 0 G69'c 0 0 0 0 piojiiny
8EY'G6S 0 0 6v5'88Y 688901 0 0 0 0 poomusaigy
862°18 0 0 9ll'e9 z81'8l 0 0 0 0 9||lAusaI9
9€6°9¢ 0 0 8/¥'6l 8GY' /1 0 0 0 0 dojusain
68G'GLL 0 0 6.9'8LL 016'9S 0 0 0 0 peyusaly
6vl'ce 0 0 0 €51'0¢ 0 0 0 966'C 8lepusai9
oez'sy 0 0 0v8'62 06€'8lL 0 0 0 0 abpry usain
ov6‘Lze 0 0 0z9'sle G81'20L 0 0 0 LyL'ol Yled usaig
1/2'G6 0 0 ovy'L9 Leg'Lz 0 0 0 0 Ay ussig
8GY'L L 0 0 0 8SY'L 1 0 0 0 0 8jised usalH
9zs '8y 0 0 Le'zy §12'9 0 0 0 0 S|IIIN SloAelD
110'G6 0 l18¥'¢ 90€'LS £79'0¢ 0 0 0 Lv9'e poomjue.oy
89261 0 0 19/'6. 105'6€ 0 0 0 0 Ano ein
€12'e 0 0 0 €12'e 0 0 0 0 Jebuein
009°68.'9 0 0 968°/9.'S v.'120'L 0 0 0 0 $ MaIApUBID
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (B%e) STEe)
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

659'6 0 0 086'¢ 619'G 0 0 0 0 AepnH
€Lz'6 0 0 0 €12'6 0 0 0 0 pug|pinH
LLL'zel 0 0 86/'89 €66'€9 0 0 0 0 9[|IAsjunHy
ovL'gl 0 0 0 G89'71 0 0 0 Lov'L ybrepuny
ve6'El 0 0 €08t leL'e 0 0 0 0 lemauuny
162'S 0 0 0 162'S 0 0 0 0 skaiydwny
[ AR 0 0 0 €€.'Cl 0 0 0 0 swnH
€LG'6LL 0 0 192'21 2SL'Ly 0 0 0 0 8jjiasuewiny
LeL'L 0 0 0 LeL'L 0 0 0 0 ajiInsaybny
161'02 0 161 eV’ €clL'gl 0 0 0 0 3[lIApIeEMOH
oy LL 0 0 0 2247 0 0 0 0 ElUO}SNOH
050'C) 0 0 0 0502l 0 0 0 0 8)e7 UoysnoH
016°289 0 0 L¥S'€09 €9¢'v8 0 0 0 0 uoisnoH
607°€S 0 0 ¥25'92 G88'9Z 0 0 0 0 S|lIAsIsuloy
vr9'ee 0 0 0 vv9'ee 0 0 0 0 supjdoy
169’6 0 0 GLL'L 9/¥'8 0 0 0 0 UMO}SaWoH
zee'.L 0 0 0 zee'. 0 0 0 0 pesjsswoH
982719 0 ik GZE€'00S 60%'901 0 0 0 0 jluwng sjoH
G66'801L 0 0 GZr'v6 0/S'VL 0 0 0 0 JIoH
96/.'zTl') 0 0 910°16G°) ovL'LEL 0 0 0 0 19)SI|oH
€0S'S 0 0 0 €0S'S 0 0 0 0 KepijloH
888'6 0 0 0 888'6 0 0 0 0 puejioH
€ZY'LLY 0 €0z'ee 6G6°€GE Loz'ool 0 0 0 0 UuspjoH
61965 0 0 969'v¢ €96 ' 0 0 0 0 quiodjoH
2052 0 0 0 20S'C 0 0 0 0 BisqoH
96€'8.L1 0 0 259001 60,0 0 0 0 6€0'.L Sleps|I'H
v8L6lY 0 0 €19'16¢ 116'29 0 0 0 0 0lJogsiiiH
108°LG 0 0 00€'se 106'2€ 0 0 0 0 a||iApue|ybiH
689'LL 0 0 708'8 G88'8 0 0 0 0 IH UbiH
98216171 0 0 G59'656 LEL'Z6L 0 0 0 0 allAsuIbBIH
29.'vS 0 0 £88'8C 6.8'GC 0 0 0 0 8agbIH
oLe'ssl 0 6vy'L 8€€'8G1 €25'61 0 0 0 0 abejwisH
691862 0 0 L¥8°9r9 zze'LLL 0 0 0 0 uueusH
G6G°89G 0 0 €ee'qoy 292'€0L 0 0 0 0 wnaue|ndJsH
zle'8¢ 0 0 €19'02 6G.'L1 0 0 0 0 $ EjsliusH
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

0651 0 0 0 06S'L1 0 0 0 0 uoysBury|
800'7GE 0 0 £YZ'6Ye Gol'y 0 0 0 0 AyD wopbury
960'€el 0 0 ovL'z6 9l6'0v 0 0 0 0 Aj0 Bury
8259/ 0 0 06L°LL 8el'y 0 0 0 0 SoImsuwiuy
£01°029 0 0 110'265 920'8. 0 0 0 0 Auo Buisquury
£99°0% 0 0 v0zZ'0¢ 657'01 0 0 0 0 Jappiy
v1622 0 0 0 v16'22 0 0 0 0 a||lAsa}hey
9v5‘/69°) 0 0 8€6°20Z°) 809'vG1 0 0 0 0 Hauusy
059°€9 0 0 zL0Cy 8/6'12 0 0 0 0 os|ey
0.9'229'L 0 0 viv'8vy'L 962'6.1 0 0 0 0 Reusesy
995'696°/G1 61568981 6058087 9€9'616'96 206°166'L1L 0 0 0 0 A0 sesuey
£58'092 0 0 866G/ L G58'06 0 0 0 0 eyoyey
gzz'el 0 0 0 Gzz'el 0 0 0 0 Ay uopounp
098°S1 0 0 G68'G G96'6 0 0 0 0 a||lAydasor
9zh'ele Ll 0 0 168°109'GL GES‘LLL'L 0 0 0 0 ujidor
AL AT 0 0 LOv'66 180'/2 0 0 0 0 Bingsauor
95e°0l 0 0 0 96e'0lL 0 0 0 0 sbupdg oouer
ze0'L18'L 0 0 202's0L°L G£0'2P9 0 0 0 G6.'€9 sbujuusp
96L°LLLEL 0 0 622281 'ZL 195'5€6'L 0 0 0 0 Ayo uosiager
Sly'orl 0 0 9v£'66 690°'LY 0 0 0 0 Jadser
£ve'cl 0 0 0 £v8'el 0 0 0 0 umojsewer
67608 0 0 8%8°85 L0122 0 0 0 0 yodsewer
¥vS's 0 0 0 ¥vS's 0 0 0 0 uosawer
¥v9's 0 0 0 ¥v9's 0 0 0 0 a||lAuosoeP
£80°996'C 0 0 0€5'¥€5'C £S5 LEY 0 0 0 0 uosoer
162'c9Y 0 0 £e5° L0V 85/'19 0 0 0 0 uojuoy|
60.'8l 0 0 0 60.'8l 0 0 0 0 8[epuoy|
980°/2 0 0 0 980'/2 0 0 0 0 aye "W\ uoy|
Gl8'y 0 0 0 Gl8'y 0 0 0 0 ejuo
86l ‘et 0 0 668'82 662171 0 0 0 0 ooigsuul
Ziv'iez 0 0 glo'olz 96.'02 0 0 0 0 julod uelpu
1ST'1GE'VE 0 0 ZLy'seL'6e G829y 0 0 0 0 souspuadapul
¥S 0 0 ¥S 0 0 0 0 0 A0 poos-ow||
0028 0 0 2€6'9G ) 89/'6Z 0 0 0 0 elsq
290 0 0 0 290 0 0 0 0 $ ueje|
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(Aluo (r1°B) (F'u‘b) (r'e4y) (B*9) (6°p) (6*0) (6°q) (B%e) Ao
wnpuelowsaly) S99 ¥ saxe] Xe] asn Xe] sajes 294 pue Xe] "jsuj s|inoT 1S xej] xej]
|ejol Bujwen uondQ [e207 |esoT] Xe] [on4 |eloueul 10} dsueinsuj le) ajeAlld apasebin
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

6ES°LYE 0 0 62.'192 018'G8 0 0 0 0 uosmer]
868°G6S 0 0 €60°2.LS G08'€z 0 0 0 0 aunen
6elL'e 0 0 0 6EL'e 0 0 0 0 Jnoje’
8.¥°1GC 0 0 LLL'8LL 10€'6. 0 0 0 0 douyye
G/2Z'6 0 0 0 G/Z'6 0 0 0 0 opaleT
¥00°/6 0 0 19/2'G9 eve'Le 0 0 0 0 Jajseoue
£v8°'9¢ 0 0 GG0'8L 88.'8l 0 0 0 0 uebeue
686°L 0 0 0 686'L 0 0 0 0 'Si6H Jewer]
8007911 0 0 961886 zL8'GlL 0 0 0 0 Jewe]
G812 0 0 1y9 8€S'L 0 0 0 0 SpisaxeT
ovL'v9 0 0 0 L¥E'8S 0 0 0 66.1'S allysaxe
yr9'ee 0 0 0 yr9'ee 0 0 0 0 oBegauuip exen
656°6€ 0 0 0 656'6€ 0 0 0 0 SIwoNepA 8Xen
ehp've 0 0 0 ehy've 0 0 0 0 obuimede exeT
11€'6G1°) 0 0 vyy66. €€6'6G€ 0 0 0 0 SINo7 1S 8%eT
G9L'9/6 0 0 0€9°226 GESG'ES 0 0 0 0 YiezQ axe’
128'L1 0 0 0 1/8'LL 0 0 0 0 saMA axeT
ze5'C8 0 0 0 z€5'28 0 0 0 0 EueMejOT] 8)en
Gly'Tl 0 0 0 Slv'ClL 0 0 0 0 apeheje axe
1GG'e 0 0 0 16S'9 0 0 0 0 S}suuy 8xeT
o0V vLL L 0 0 eze'leL 166'16¢ 0 0 0 925'Ge anpeT
6LE'6Y 0 0 0S.'ve 69572 0 0 0 0 ejuoppe]
10691 0 0 0 L06'9l 0 0 0 0 Spsjoen
8cL'g 0 0 0 8elL's 0 0 0 0 [18ssny e
LGOIyl 0 0 286'L8 690'65 0 0 0 0 Ele|d e
96Y'ELL 0 0 11€'1. 6LL'Ch 0 0 0 0 SJUO B
¥10'20S°) LLG'eor'l 0 Gle'ss 88l 'ch 0 0 0 0 sbuel e
61699 0 0 GG8'/€ 090'62 0 0 0 0 djleg €1
ze6'LL 0 0 189'6 L6z'e 0 0 0 0 Buouosysoy
286'6 0 0 0 286'6 0 0 0 0 Ay xouy
109°LLY 0 968°0¢€ G 062 995'96 0 0 0 0 JS]SON qouy
690°996°G 0 765801 0L.'zoz'y ove' Lyl L 0 0 0 6L¥'ELL poOMNITY
ozyosy'y 0 0 61908.°¢ 108'669 0 0 0 0 S[IIASYINY
GLL'9LL 0 0 ¥6€'20L 9v0',9 0 0 0 Gel'9 yoojury
800°L L 0 0 0 800'L 1 0 0 0 0 $ a|liasbury
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed 1xau uo panujjuod)

061'¢ 0 0 0 061'¢ 0 0 0 0 Aeam
ov'L 0 0 0 vov'L 0 0 0 0 sndn
0el'L 0 0 0 0€lL'L 0 0 0 0 MmojpnT
G88°'c 0 0 0 G88'c 0 0 0 0 auJsonT
06L'L1 0 €108 8¥0'0F 62.'62 0 0 0 0 Ao famo
LIy vy8 0 G6LLS 069°2€9 ZLS5'09L 0 0 0 0 euelsinoT
ree's 0 0 0 vee's 0 0 0 0 BingsinoT
v8L'e 0 0 0 veL'e 0 0 0 0 umoybuon
¥28'99 0 0 0zlL'sy ¥0.'81 0 0 0 0 3oef suo
G189 0 0 88L'ey 189'v1L 0 0 0 0 Epul] ewor
€860 0 0 0 €8G'9 0 0 0 0 uewyor]
gog‘lzlL 0 Zro'y 991'9/ 169'LY 0 0 0 0 POOMXD0T
695'C 0 0 0 695'C 0 0 0 0 sBuuds %007
L6’y 0 0 0 L€6'Y 0 0 0 0 BIUOAIN
9L0's1L 0 0 0 910'SlL 0 0 0 0 snauun
8.z'88l 0 z68'8l 9v6'8S1L ovv'ol 0 0 0 0 @81 uur
LLB'L¥T 0 0 798°961 L¥0'LS 0 0 0 0 uun
880°/91 0 €916l 9GLELL 69.'8¢ 0 0 0 0 ujooury
zLL'80L 0 zel'l 1G6G°2S €20'SS 0 0 0 0 uinoq
9er'0.Le 0 0 vez'ele zoz'.S 0 0 0 0 Buiyor
1GG'€CL'L 0 0 0L0°€/L‘9 /8¥'056 0 0 0 0 Aueqry
8629 0 0 LoL'ze 118'6Z 0 0 0 0 [esaqi
z1L9'ze6 0 0 LLE" LY. G6Z'L6L 0 0 0 0 uojbuixen
oze'le 0 0 0 oze'le 0 0 0 0 umoisime]
zL0'9 0 0 0 2.0'9 0 0 0 0 YJE|D g simaT
rLL'ylL 0 0 966°G 8lLL'e 0 0 0 0 Asene
08S'v 0 0 0 08S'v 0 0 0 0 al|se
€zz'e 0 0 0 €zz'e 0 0 0 0 pleuosT
€G66°'€9 0 0 206°L€ Lgo'se 0 0 0 0 uoyee
66Z°,02'vZ 0 0 988'ces'Le 60v'cLe'T 0 0 0 0 jwwng s.ge7
1€8°/19'G 0 0 765’991 ‘S €8Z'LSY 0 0 0 0 uouega
vey'ee 0 0 0 vZy'ee 0 0 0 0 poomesT
¥0S°CL 0 0 0 ¥0S'CL 0 0 0 0 Bingses
68.'08 0 0 89¢e’Le Lzv'ey 0 0 0 0 poompesT
160°6GE 0 L¥B'ElL 608°zee gee's 0 0 0 0 uojbuipes]
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

622'c 0 0 0 622'c 0 0 0 0 uimisiy
G8LLS 0 0 099'0lL Gzl'se 0 0 0 0 SPOOAA WeLISA
Sro'el 0 0 0 Gro'el 0 0 0 0 J8dJe|\
€0G'8 0 0 0 €0G'8 0 0 0 0 uopusiy
€eg'zee 0 0 0Ge‘L¥T €gl'se 0 0 0 0 siydwaly
9e9'olL 0 0 0 9€9'ol 0 0 0 0 dlliApesi
128'c 0 0 0 128'c 0 0 0 0 OURIMON
789'G 0 0 0 ¥89'S 0 0 0 0 Ie4oN
LLL'ol 0 0 0 LiL'ol 0 0 0 0 pusg pioJdoN
956 0 0 0 966 0 0 0 0 sulegon
ozLLL 0 0 0 9zL'LL 0 0 0 0 MmaInkeN
€9¥'0S1 0 0 99610l 168'8Y 0 0 0 0 allinskep
[4ANYAN 0 0 zel'ovl 066'v2 0 0 0 0 smayne
velL'el6'e 0 0 169°'/€S°C LEV'SEY 0 0 0 0 alinkiey
L1e'206'02 €6e'/ze'slL 0 806'026° z98'8v0°L 0 0 0 8810l 'siBH puelhiepy
€69'ty 0 0 ¥60°0€ 66G'ElL 0 0 0 0 Bingsuipe
LLe'e6 0 L¥9'9 6.8'09 Gg.'o¢e 0 0 0 0 9|liAseypeN
vE6'SYL 0 899°clL 9lLg'solL 06.'92 0 0 0 0 uojsiepy
£€9'0ey’L 0 0 16Z°LeT’L 9/€'s02 0 0 0 0 pIeyysiep
¥Z9'/86°L 0 0 0G0yl v/G'SLS 0 0 0 0 lleysiepy
L1022 0 0 LLL'LL 0/8'0L 0 0 0 0 puenbuepy
16566 0 0 0 /Z¥'s8 0 0 0 ocL'ol ybnoiogpely
881°60¢ 0 0 €6.'9z2 GeY'ee 0 0 0 0 9||lAucLie\
008°z8e 0 0 180'0/2 6L2'90L 0 0 0 0 suljole
8EY'/6¢ 0 0 Goo‘/ee €/€'09 0 0 0 0 IH 8|qleN
vZzZ'69.°L 0 6L9°20L 62.'502°L 190'v6€ 0 0 0 G18'99 pooma|deyy
6z9'ceT 0 0 ZLo'9/L L1028 0 0 0 0 pieysuep
lve'ell'e 0 0 888°Gz6°L €er'sL. 0 0 0 020',. Isyssyoue
0.2, 0 0 L0z'9 690°'LL 0 0 0 0 pusg eye
09Z°c98 0 0 G06'659 6Ge'e0e 0 0 0 0 uspley
Les'el 0 0 0 Le6'el 0 0 0 0 puepiepy
6.Z'6Y 0 0 0€L'9Z 6522 0 0 0 0 uosipep
€26'9v6 0 0 €€z'6lL. 069,22 0 0 0 0 uodep
089°'Le 0 0 66501 1G0'LL 0 0 0 0 3o81] sHoe|\
ver'9 0 0 0 z68's 0 0 0 288 $ slzusxoe
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

610°G 0 0 0 610'G 0 0 0 0 UBLIO\ JUNO
8SY'y 0 0 0 8SY'y 0 0 0 0 pieuosT Junop
020°G 0 0 0 020'S 0 0 0 0 S||IApunoiy
6€8°091 0 0 9LzoLlL €29'0S 0 0 0 0 A9 punopy
90Z‘6EY 0 0 0.¥'G8¢ 9¢/'€S 0 0 0 0 S|IIIN MOISON
LGL'GLL 0 0 692901 288'8 0 0 0 0
866°CL 0 0 0 866'C1 0 0 0 0
8le'cl 0 0 8€G°.L ov8's 0 0 0 0 UOSLIO
zs6'cy 0 0 Sv8'Cl L01'0¢€ 0 0 0 0 Aepopy
olv'esL 0 0 zL9'0¢ 47847 0 0 0 0 SSnNoyalop
G88'c 0 0 0 G88'c 0 0 0 0 S|lIAsaJooN
8v6°LG 0 0 Loe‘or 18G'LL 0 0 0 0 SSOJUON
zel'y 0 0 0 zel'y 0 0 0 0 O||SouUo
€00'7¥S 0 0 €6g'LvY 019'96 0 0 0 0 Ay AswoBuopy
810'6ES 0 0 805°0EY 016'80L 0 0 0 0 Aj9 soiuopy
228899 0 0 eLy'vee'e 607'82 0 0 0 0 JSUoN
pSLiLzl 0 0 0 02011 0 0 0 05601 $8J0Y SUllo
126'02 0 0 65C'cl 299'L 0 0 0 0 SuB)O
LLL'ove's 0 0 G00‘€0L'y 90.'€vS 0 0 0 0 Ausqopy
gez'el 0 0 0 gez'el 0 0 0 0 A9 unossipy
£z8'e 0 0 0 €28'¢ 0 0 0 0 ied eonbBiwely
Lee'sl 0 0 0 Lee'slt 0 0 0 0 julod [essully
z26°L€8 0 vyl 0L 000°182 8.,'9v 0 0 0 0 JauIN
€ov'GlL 0 0 0 €0v'Gl 0 0 0 0 SaulwusSpulN
0/z'¢ 0 0 0 0/z'¢ 0 0 0 0 OllIN
L¥G'o8 0 0 099°GS 188'0¢ 0 0 0 0 BN
186'C 0 0 0 186'C 0 0 0 0 PIeIN
889'6 0 0 0 889'6 0 0 0 0 Buuds 1N
€20'C 0 0 0 €20'C 0 0 0 0 PJIOHIN
200°662 0 0 9/8'8lg ozlL'9L 0 0 0 0 Ue|iiN
G¥6°0C 0 0 4 a4 L0g'e 0 0 0 0 UMOISIPPIN
6919 0 0 0 691'9 0 0 0 0 Iweln
98/°96¥'C 0 0 6.7°'¢66°) 10€'€9V 0 0 0 0 OJIXa\
yoz'e 0 0 0 yoz'e 0 0 0 0 Z}IoN
G8/.'ze 0 0 085'22 S502'0l 0 0 0 0 $ EISN
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

€69'ty 0 0 0 06.'6¢ 0 0 0 £v6'c HNOJ poOMION
189'19 0 0 182'Ly 0ov'oe 0 0 0 0 POOMION
186°1L0S 0 0 9/.°182 z62°002 0 0 0 €16'6l SPOOMUHON
€9Z'v9l 0 0 €00°L¥L 09Z'LL 0 0 0 0 JOOWYHON
zLz'o 0 0 0 ziz'e 0 0 0 0 [IBPIEA YHON
zez's 0 0 0 zez's 0 0 0 0 uinog|iy yHon
¥G8'6.¥'GlL €96°/€6°01L 0 GBZ'L9E'Y 965'08L 0 0 0 0 Auo sesuey yuoN
8€9'8YE 0 0 zo0‘LolL 66Z'602 0 0 0 Lze'se ApuewuoN
691 %L 0 0 GL0'0v ¥60've 0 0 0 0 8ulJoqIoN
6,0°L1€ 0 0 Gel'eoz r¥6'eS 0 0 0 0 [®ON
802'869'C 0 0 €9€'29¢e'C Sve'see 0 0 0 0 ExIN
166'e€ 0 0 9Ly'slL LrG'8lL 0 0 0 0 enbuelN
9€6'9 0 0 0 9€g'9 0 0 0 0 UumommeN
668 0 0 0 6v6'8 0 0 0 0 EIUOMSN
166'6% 0 0 €68',2 volL'ze 0 0 0 0 BingmeN
oLL'e 0 0 0 oLL'e 0 0 0 0 YIemMaN
66107 0 vev'e zLe'oe £68'9 0 0 0 0 9I3N MaN
8LL'9Ly 0 12662 09Z°'60¢ 166'9€L 0 0 0 0 PUPEN MEN
z61°.51 0 0 ovr'oLlL ov.'ovy 0 0 0 0 uopuo maN
€€9°/¥¢ 0 0 88v'el2 SrL'v. 0 0 0 0 usAneH MeN
8.9'clL 0 0 0 8/9'cl 0 0 0 0 uojdweH meN
Lov'0ZL 0 0 662V, 80l '9v 0 0 0 0 uipjuei4 meN
v.6'v02 0 0 z98°'CcLL ziL'ee 0 0 0 0 80U8sI0|{ MeN
€zeYL 0 0 €0Z'S ozL'e 0 0 0 0 eluqued meN
G6Y'Ly 0 0 rlLg'se 186'LC 0 0 0 0 piaywoolg meN
128'60€'e 0 0 9/2'166°C G¥G'zse 0 0 0 0 EepeAsN
99€'syL'e 0 0 rz8'Lve'e Zvs'eoy 0 0 0 0 OUsoeN
0z0'8 0 0 0 020'8 0 0 0 0 uos|aN
9lLg'/z 0 0 G8'6 129'21 0 0 0 0 CIIWEE]Y]
8Gl's 0 0 0 8GL's 0 0 0 0 Auo o8N
8Z1'v8 0 99/'8lL 0,9'6¢ z69'se 0 0 0 0 JojheN
G90'6 0 0 0 G90'6 0 0 0 0 uosjodeN
680769 0 0 10009 880°'L6 0 0 0 0 M3IA Ulejunojy
LoL'eey'L 0 0 Q'vve'L Lvz'6Ll 0 0 0 0 SA0I9) Ulejunoy
6Go'ees 0 0 00€°G.9 GGE'8SL 0 0 0 0 $ UOUIBA Junopy
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

€66°8 0 0 0 €66'8 0 0 0 0 SepXJed
oLl'66e’) 0 0 228'9/0'L ¥62'22¢ 0 0 0 0 IH ied
622'€SC 0 0 16v'L6L 8€/'19 0 0 0 0 slied
8€/.°/29 0 0 vLLL8Y v20'ovl 0 0 0 0 elhwied
068‘cle 0 0 LGL'6EL 7€6°8G1 0 0 0 §08'Gl s|epabed
69£'6.8 0 0 8¥1 ‘899 vLy00z 0 0 0 10801 oljidoed
867951 °C 0 0 evy'vL8°L 660'282 0 0 0 0 AezQ
82.'180°L 0 0 £70'€86 G89'86 0 0 0 0 S|lIAsusMQO
192°18L 0 0 0 0z6'vLL 0 0 0 JAZ XA puepanQ
9GPy Gy 0 0 8/2'Ge 8/1'0C 0 0 0 0 9[IIABRO
€eL'e 0 0 0 €eL'e 0 0 0 0 pooBsQo
or9'6LL 0 0 0S51°/8 96%'2¢€ 0 0 0 0 B|083s0
Lov'LL 0 0 0 Lov'LlL 0 0 0 0 uiogsQ
966°GGL°L 0 0 091°620°L 9€8'9zL 0 0 0 0 yoesg sbesQ
2€0°'96 0 0 €09°8S 62¥'LE 0 0 0 0 MO0
€16°19 0 0 161°0¢€ 9//'L€ 0 0 0 0 obouoio
Lze'se 0 0 0 |ze'se 0 0 0 0 uoba10
89¢e'LZl 0 0 [4 AN ov9'6Y 0 0 0 0 ueiQ
Lz'ez 0 0 0 Lz'ez 0 0 0 0 abe|iiA ueldwA|iO
98/'798 0 798'€9 61529 ¥91'20¢€ 0 0 0 6.5'0¢ SR|AIO
vee's 0 0 0 vee's 0 0 0 0 ues|o
869°/G 0 0 ¥8G'Ly ¥.0'01 0 0 0 0 S0JUOI\ PIO
loe'e 0 0 0 log'e 0 0 0 0 uoje|ddy piO
0€6°60G°€l 0 0 65969zl LLZ'vve'L 0 0 0 0 uojle4,0
Le8'vizl 0 0 629°L¥0°L zeeell 0 0 0 0 essapO
8vlL'e 0 0 0 8y’ 0 0 0 0 Yled poomxeQ
86€'8 0 0 0 86€'8 0 0 0 0 poomxeQ
9L€'001 0 €92'8C 886°9G G90'Gl 0 0 0 0 M3InYeQ
224" 0 0 0 12424°] 0 0 0 0 s¥eQ
989091 0 0 8€0°06 29Z'v9 0 0 0 98€'9 puepeQ
6.2'8 0 0 0 6.2'8 0 0 0 0 abpiy Yeo
88091 0 0 0 88091 0 0 0 0 abe|lIA enoi9 YeQo
79°08G°1 0 0 oev'vLe’l vlg'e0z 0 0 0 0 SA0IO XeQ
650°CZ 0 0 0 650'22 0 0 0 0 JaBuiroN
G6E'S 0 0 0 G6E'S 0 0 0 0 AyenoN
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200z ‘0€ INNC A3AN3 ¥VIA HOA4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

189've 0 0 €L0LL 899'/L1 0 0 0 0 Xnolg seQ abepod
1Ze'vle'e 0 0 (YN ANC] 065'989 0 0 0 0 4n|g Jejdod
6/8'16 0 0 756'89 §26'2C 0 0 0 0 ojod
996'¢ 0 0 0 996'¢ 0 0 0 0 X90]j0d
29L's 0 0 0 2oL's 0 0 0 0 Sejuoyedod
€11°28s 0 0 6€.'8GY vle'eTl 0 0 0 0 Ks|leA yueses|d
8/0'8 0 28S'c §60'29 Lov'8l 0 0 0 0 adoH jueses|d
916061 ‘) 0 0 120°000°} 688'061 0 0 0 0 II'H jueses|d
Gov‘Lov 0 0 v12',0¢€ 16L'v6 0 0 0 0 Bingsheld
zel'scl 0 0 €66°0L1 6..'81 0 0 0 0 SPOON\ 3HEld
28.'/91°L 0 0 ¥.1'620'L 809'8€L 0 0 0 0 A0 epeld
zLs'9 0 0 ZLs'9 0 0 0 0 0 oleld
LrLoLL 0 ove'sl €ge'el 8LYy'LC 0 0 0 0 Sjjinsuld
12E'0VS 0 0 161'8lL¢€ 18Z'161 0 0 0 6¥2'0¢ umejauld
9e9'ZyL 0 0 zie'ehL ¥Zv'0¢ 0 0 0 0 qouy joiid
695201 0 1zL'vl 0L¥'8S 8eY'62 0 0 0 0 SA0I9 10|Id
€06'79l 0 0 €02'80L 00.'9S 0 0 0 0 Ao sosald
81£°,08 0 0 816°12. 00¥'G8 0 0 0 0 juowpsald
6199 0 0 0 6.9'9 0 0 0 0 Buneold
695°L 0 0 0 695'L 0 0 0 0 Bangsdijiud
188°0v. 0 0 789909 €0z'velL 0 0 0 0 Alonad
v22'89.'C 0 0 9€8°69Y'C 88€'862 0 0 0 0 a|lirkiied
Z80'6EL 0 0 718011 892'8C 0 0 0 0 Kued
8Y'¢ 0 0 0 8Y'¢c 0 0 0 0 uouwlssusd
[ZXAL ] 0 zlS'e Leg'zay 1/8'88 0 0 0 0 Jel|nosd
1€6'C 0 0 0 1€6'C 0 0 0 0 a||lAsauked
106°0% 0 orL'e 19.'vz 000't) 0 0 0 0 Bingsuoped
6€9'L 0 0 0 6€9'L 0 0 0 0 Jlessed
192'G 0 0 0 192'G 0 0 0 0 ejoosed
GES'ZS 0 0 0862 0,602 0 0 0 680'C Yied euspesed
8v6'zZl 0 0LS'Y 0€€'99 66€°LY 0 0 0 60L'v S|IIH euspesed
oLe'L 0 0 0 oLe'L 0 0 0 0 lIsused
886'79 0 950°) GZ6'GT 100'8¢€ 0 0 0 0 euljed
8L¥'9z 0 0 100°GL Liv'LL 0 0 0 0 Remxied
L12'Le6 0 0 129908 ¥8G'0€L 0 0 0 0 $ 3lliAed
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

zLr'e 0 0 0 2Ly 0 0 0 0 Ajebpry
11€8G6'V 0 0 80€°0LY'Y 108'LLY 0 0 0 202'9. "S16H puowyory
¥61°062°) 0 0 889°200°) 9062tz 0 0 0 0 puowyory
161'¢eee 0 0 286'vST G18'8. 0 0 0 0 pueyory
leL'y 0 0 0 LEL'Y 0 0 0 0 spJeyory
919621 0 0 Sv8'2. 111'9G 0 0 0 0 IIIH Uiy
€089 0 0 0 €08'9 0 0 0 0 pueBuiyy
8Le's 0 0 0 8Lz's 0 0 0 0 SlaAsYy
009°806°} 0 0 Zr1'609°L 867’662 0 0 0 0 oliqnday
e’y 0 0 0 42874 0 0 0 0 19e[essusy
9678 0 0 0 967'8 0 0 0 0 Aolusy
vIL'8LL 0 0 282’001l z68'LL 0 0 0 0 Buuds speay
L8’y 0 0 0 Lev'y 0 0 0 0 spasy
69€'Cl 0 0 188't 88"/, 0 0 0 0 N sBuipay
T4 4 0 0 0 e rA 4 0 0 0 0 ey
129°L 0 0 0 129'L 0 0 0 0 ajiney
£v.'88.'y 0 0 089°8€G°e €90°062'L 0 0 0 0 umoley
796°1G.'¢ 0 0 yS0‘GLY'e 0L6'9ee 0 0 0 0 alowAhey
8vLLL 0 0 0 8v.L'LL 0 0 0 0 a|linpuowihey
6LGLL 0 0 0 61G'LL 0 0 0 0 PooMuUBAEY
Gz8'vL 0 0 8192 102' 0 0 0 0 ydiopuey
22595 0 0 v.1'6€ 8ve' Ll 0 0 0 0 ulinp
106'L 0 0 0 106'L 0 0 0 0 uewynp
€06°95 0 0 6262 v16'/2 0 0 0 0 A9 usenp
rov'erl 0 0 v1G'€0L 068'6€ 0 0 0 0 0dIXnd
929'88 0 0 ovl'or 98Y'ZY 0 0 0 0 Apind
0106 0 0 0 0L0'6 0 0 0 0 ulpind
GOl 0 0 0 GOVl 0 0 0 0 [I82ind
z06'zylL 0 0 Z6S°00L 0se'zy 0 0 0 0 uojadulld
8zL'e 0 0 0 8zL's 0 0 0 0 uoisald
096t 0 0 0 096't 0 0 0 0 9||IAsiaLjeld
6068 0 0 0 606'8 0 0 0 0 SWOH suleld
Gee'e 0 0 0 Gee'e 0 0 0 0 8J|iAsiamod
1€2°G99 0 0 089°GGS 165'601 0 0 0 0 1S0}0d
€62'09G 0 0 8lL6'zzy gee'/el 0 0 0 0 $ 8||inebenod
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

96/°L.¢€ 0 0 069°G6Z 90128 0 0 0 0 edsussg
evL'0cEl 0 0 [AAN) 120'.L9 0 0 0 0 Yieusg
£€86'VEL 0 0 L2150l zL8'62 0 0 0 0 uewbijeg
008'9 0 0 0 008'9 0 0 0 0 ainyoimebpas
091°906'6 0 0 G61 ‘7898 G96'LZ8 0 0 0 0 ellepag
LzziozL 0 0 €16'8€G 80.'L8L 0 0 0 0 A9 poog
LeL'zt 0 0 ye9'e 16¥'8 0 0 0 0 3[epsjoos
168 L1 0 0 0 168'L1L 0 0 0 0 K40 1eyos
v12'80L 0 0 ¥56°12G 0ze'98l 0 0 0 0 yeuuenes
LeL'eze 0 0 GG1'891 9/6'vS 0 0 0 0 SIxodJies
8/6°CeT 0 0 678G 1 180'v. 0 0 0 0 Aingsiies
98/'6GY°L 0 0 88/.'892°1 866'061 0 0 0 0 wsjes
968'0€ 0 0 [ATAVA vr9'cl 0 0 0 0 meuibeg
89/ 'Vl 0 0 09%'01 80¢'y 0 0 0 0 abpapny
69¢°L8 0 0 oz6 LY cop'ee 0 0 0 0 SNBSSy
1€0°CL 0 0 0 1€0'C1 0 0 0 0 SllIAysny
YEL'S 0 0 0 YEL'S 0 0 0 0
6LL'Y 0 0 0 6LL'Y 0 0 0 0 S[lIAYiod
106°L 0 0 0 10S'L 0 0 0 0 Slepussoy
LEV'VS 0 0 €/1'6¢ 92'Gl 0 0 0 0 pngssoy
Lee'y 0 0 0 Lee'y 0 0 0 0 800S0y
850'8G.'8 0 0 Liv'oel'e 1¥9'L29 0 0 0 0 Ejloy
192'vee 0 0 1€6°€8C 0€.'0S 0 0 0 0 a||iAsteboy
90.'GlL 0 0 16€'8 60€'L 0 0 0 0 S|IAN00Y
9/£'68 0 0 8ve'zL 8zl Ll 0 0 0 0 yoeag Aemesooy
0,9°zG¢e 0 eee’/e 1¥2'992 960'65 0 0 0 0 Hod o0y
205666 0 0 LY9*LLL ¥50°602 0 0 0 L08'ze IIIH 90y
62¥'6¢€ 0 0 68862 0vs'6 0 0 0 0 Hodayooy
829'¢ 0 0 0 829'¢c 0 0 0 0 SaAY
118'8¢€¢€ 0 12v'Th 0/8°281 €090l 0 0 0 11621 MBINIBALY
0L1°200°L 686°L/8'G 90zl 060°268 G9/.'2ZL 0 0 0 0 SpISIBATY
Gog'LL 0 0 969'91 699 0 0 0 0 pusg JaAly
€18 0 0 0 €18'C 0 0 0 0 Ksyoiy
zev'ee 0 0 6579l €16'9l 0 0 0 0 0osly
18€°2S 0 0 Gze'ee zov'el 0 0 0 0 $ Kemabpry
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed jxau uo panujjuod)

096°/L 0 0 8696 206', 0 0 0 0 puepnois
226'6 0 0 0 226'6 0 0 0 0 K40 spois
LrL'L 0 0 0 LvL'L 0 0 0 0 Aingsejolg
€66'6.L7 0 €/zZ'6l GL9'88e soL'z. 0 0 0 0 uopools
Lle'Gee’L 0 89609 29.'280°L L¥0'28L 0 0 0 0 SASIABURY '8)S
188°'c8 0 0 9Ge'es 6zs'oe 0 0 0 0 9||IAspeMelS
986°8 0 0 ¥89°C 20€'9 0 0 0 0 ej#s
008°29¢ 0 0 GG '80¢ GrE'6S 0 0 0 0 CIIGEEN
€0v'8.2 0 0 €088l 009'66 0 0 0 0 EERN
89/'G 0 0 0 89/'S 0 0 0 0 A0 el
GL8'eolL 0 0 vZr'Ls 1BE'ZS 0 0 0 0 Kusquess
9L0°/18°€S 0 ¥.6'896°C GZ8'v.8'vy L12'€16'S 0 0 0 0 pleybulds
ove'glL 0 0 z6l's srL'el 0 0 0 0 paeoldg
128801 0 0 6zZr'oL Zov'ee 0 0 0 0 epedg
0LL'6LL 0 689°'LE vy6e'LLL 1€6'62 0 0 0 0 A0 1semyinog
18G'L 0 0 0 186l 0 0 0 0 9||iAsuI] yinos
960°s 0 0 0 960's 0 0 0 0 pieyusals yinos
08G'S 0 0 0 08G'S 0 0 0 0 ulog yinog
81T 0 0 0 8/.'c 0 0 0 0 pioyio yinos
G/0'sve'L 0 668'€S 1/8'620'L soe'Lol 0 0 0 0 SlllAYHWS
v,0°',€ 0 0 169Gl 11€'12 0 0 0 0 uojpiug
YRS A 0 0 L8'vLe 966'/8 0 0 0 0 J8je|s
9Ge'sL 0 0 0 9G€e'Sl 0 0 0 0 aJowpMs
ELY'Ly 0 0 S¥S've 898'2Z 0 0 0 0 3881 JaA|IS
L8v'6e 0 9zs'e 90.'/2 6vZ'8 0 0 0 0 x9|IS
G91°090°9 0 0 6ZL'6¥E'S 9er'oL. 0 0 0 0 uojsayis
rGo'vlL 0 0 0 ¥G9'vlL 0 0 0 0 Rejais
¥G0'96¢°L 0 0 ZLE'LED"L ¥8€°192 0 0 0 862'/6 Kingsmalys
gzr'lL 0 0 0 szl 0 0 0 0 s8jejs3 3gal) [eoys
€GLS1L 0 0 0 €GL'SL 0 0 0 0 8Al(Q ¥881) [eoys
Sve'L 0 0 0 Sve'L 0 0 0 0 uepusys
L8v'oy 0 0 €0z°'02 8/2'02 0 0 0 0 uop|ays
9zz'ss 0 0 €EV'6C €6.'GZ 0 0 0 0 allinkqieus
gze'sse 0 0 9v.'0/l2 6.G'v8 0 0 0 0 eulgleys
zzLiee 0 0 0€8°09L 268'0. 0 0 0 0 $ JInowAeg
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

G08'vey 0 0 zzo'eee €8.'G8 0 0 0 0 Jekey
888°/¥C 0 0 1€6°191 166'G8 0 0 0 0 opje ]
v '9s 0 0 §9z'ze 68L've 0 0 0 0 soe|
¥G0'eC 0 0 890°0L 986'CL 0 0 0 0 a|linlsue
€LL') 0 0 0 €LL', 0 0 0 0 esoode|ie
€069l 0 0 Zv6'6 196'9 0 0 0 0 300y d|qeL
oee’L 0 0 0 oee'L 0 0 0 0 asnoelAg
vzz'Le 0 0 0 v0ov'8 0 0 0 0z8'c S|IIH eiowedkg
866952 0 0 9v6'061 Z10'99 0 0 0 0 sbuudg jeamg
GzZe'L0s‘L 0 0 8L6'LeL’L 6.5°0¢ee 0 0 0 8z8'ze S|lIH 18sung
9z9's/L 0 6€0°LL Zrs'lvl Sr0'LL 0 0 0 0 yoeag esuung
111'S 0 0 0 111'S 0 0 0 0 Jsuwng
zzl'6L 0 0 £¥Z'95 6.8'ce 0 0 0 0 9||iAsiswwing
165'822° 0 0 061°€86°L Lov'sye 0 0 0 0 ueAl|ing
vzL'les 0 960°Le gez'oee 0€r'09L 0 0 0 0 o819 Jebng
6zz'le 0 0 786'6 SvzZ'LlL 0 0 0 0 sewoyl s
relLLov'e 0 0 zrzoe'z 288'06 0 0 0 0 Haqoy 1S
796'9€8°61 0 0 ¥95°296°L1L 00v'v.8'L 0 0 0 0 slejed 1S
656'GS 0 0 0 656'GS 0 0 0 0 Ined 1S
98G'6Y 0 0 Lze'ee SoZ'LL 0 0 0 0 Kep 18
962°'0. 0 0 G/6'vE lze'se 0 0 0 0 suep 1S
€2€'8€6'ELL 1¥9'608°S zes'ssy'el viz'eclzel 999°/68°Gl ¥8€',€S 9vs'L9 veE'LS 0 sInoT 1S
6v.L'cLv'ET 0€8°€09°L 0 6952888l 0G€'986'C 0 0 0 0 ydssor s
61196/ 0 0 GES'LLY ¥€2'662 0 0 0 0s€'62 uyor 1S
veL'18. 0 0 166'v¥9 LEL'ZPL 0 0 0 0 sswer i
1z.'6S 0 0 0 zzZEeYs 0 0 0 66€'S abuoe9 18
Gz8'8e 0 0 9LG'/L 60€'LL 0 0 0 0 yieqezi|3 1S
089116 0 0 8lL1°zo8 Z95'69L 0 0 0 0 Ire|d s
891°96¥'GZ €98'651°6 0 LLL'ee0' vl reL'e9Z'e 0 0 0 0 sapeyd 1S
Zro'eov'e 0 0 1€6'0LL° 898°G/S 0 0 0 1€2'18 uuy 1S
0vG'eol 0 0 8€lL'/9 Zov'oe 0 0 0 0 uosBimg
GlLe's 0 0 0 Gle's 0 0 0 0 Bingsens
166'6EE 0 0 €€0'6.2 8G6'09 0 0 0 0 ploygens
€8Z'GLL 0 0 G69'sEL 88G'6¢ 0 0 0 0 LI
Gly'L 0 0 0 SLy'L 0 0 0 0 $ 9||iAsinols
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A

200z ‘0€ INNC A3AN3 ¥VIA HOA4



(sbed yxau uo panujjuod)

0LL'vEL 0 0 80L'0L ¥€.'65 0 0 0 8Z6'v slIiH abejliA eplaA
8€G'9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8€G'9 Yied episA
z95°'LvL 0 0 Zv6'L6 029'sS 0 0 0 0 K40 eploA
990'6 0 0 0 990'6 0 0 0 0 Jssnpuep
¥66°'06 0 0 G9/°/8 6zz'e 0 0 0 0 JaApuep
£¥Z'G98 0 0 LGV'6YY 98/'SLL 0 0 0 0 ellepuep
erL'0Le 0 0 080°G/L 699'Ge 0 0 0 0 uaing uep
Z16'506 0 0 162199 ove'ole 0 0 0 Siv'Le sied As|leA
0LL°LL 0 0 0 0LL°LL 0 0 0 0 eann
G89'v0L 0 0 GGZ'v8 0€v'0Z 0 0 0 0 youn
L7695 0 0 L6V'LY 0S¥'SlL 0 0 0 0 eueqin
60Z°LS 0 €/8°L €89'/2 G69°6L 0 0 0 866'L Sied spuejdn
160'682Z'v 0 G8E'LSL 0,0'v8€‘C LLy'L6G L 0 0 0 G8L'8sl Ao Aysienun
§69'G 0 0 0 §69'G 0 0 0 0 abeyiA Apun
L9l'esT 0 0 6€9°0LL 8z6'z8 0 0 0 0 9|jiauoiun
6zL'LL 0 0 0 Gzl 0 0 0 0 Jejs uolun
€6G6'605°C 0 0 125'822° 920182 0 0 0 0 uolun
eVl 0 0 0 evL'l 0 0 0 0 siybloH MmaIA Jaquin
6G1°292 0 0 ozy'Lve ov6'LL 0 0 0 182'L S¥eQ uml
GoL'L 0 0 0 G9/'L 0 0 0 0 sebpug ump
06%'8lL 0 0 190°LL ezv'L 0 0 0 0 elquinosn |
€6€'9 0 0 0 €6€'9 0 0 0 0 Ksuiny
G08'c 0 0 0 G08'c 0 0 0 0 uoxni|
89689 0 0 GLL'GS €68'el 0 0 0 0 slepsan.
L,0'0L6°C 0 0 ozl'lsl'e G¥6'zle 0 0 0 0 Koup.
€6V 0 0 0 €61'C 0 0 0 0 Bejdu L
glLe'se 0 0 128°. L6v'LL 0 0 0 0 s|quiul
105'662°L 0 0 rL9'or0‘L 188'252 0 0 0 0 uojual
GzsLL 0 0 16L°L 8ze'ol 0 0 0 0 Koeu)
£69'G90°c 0 0 609'e/S‘C 819'/¥y 0 0 0 0L¥'vy Aunog pue umo|
9/0°€62 0 0 180081 686'90L 0 0 0 0 uoydi]
vsz'e 0 0 0 ¥sz'e 0 0 0 0 llepul L
0v0'8 0 0 0 0v0'8 0 0 0 0 eull
L0€'C 0 0 0 L0€'g 0 0 0 0 pemuybl |
98165 0 0 LGV'6Y 62ZL'6 0 0 0 0 elsoposay |
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

L18'6LL 0 0 gee’lzl £1¥'8S 0 0 0 0 EISEIN
89¢£'81LE 0 0 Lyl 08l 969°6Z1 0 0 0 625l uojs| o
G20'ze 0 0 0 Gz0'ze 0 0 0 0 uoybul|jopA
929'¢ 0 0 0 9z9'e 0 0 0 0 'si6H Buldg uopjopn
£98°262 0 0 £8Z'8L1 085'vLL 0 0 0 0 Buldg uopjopn
L11°1GE'E 0 0 851'0LE'Z £56'0V6 0 0 0 990'v6 SOA0ID) JB)SIOM
100°655'C 0 0 6v6'502'C z50'€5€ 0 0 0 0 A0 qgam
gel'sy 0 0 £19'6Z 097'61 0 0 0 0 nesjqnesp\
zsLLL 0 0 0 zsL'LL 0 0 0 0 aye Aqieyiespy
0Se'y 0 0 0 0S€'y 0 0 0 0 Aqleyrespy
9ee’/e8 0 0 11000 6GZ'LEL 0 0 0 0 a||lAsauAep
6697 0 0 88e'/l L'zl 0 0 0 0 puelkepy
£58°26 0 0 0S1°6G £0.'eE 0 0 0 0 Aonepy
G0e's 0 0 0 Goe's 0 0 0 0 uosyep
LL9E0L'Y 0 ve9'v6 L 112900t 992'20S 0 0 0 0 uoybulysep
67905 0 0 vyl ve G0S'9l 0 0 0 0 uinqysep
z60°CLE 0 0 Gl11ze 66928 0 0 0 gle'e SPOOA\ UOSJEA
G99'0/0°) 0 0 006°€66 G9/'9/ 0 0 0 0 MeSIEM
289'252'2 0 0 9L2'%90'C 996'/81 0 0 0 0 uojuaLIep
686880t 0 8e€£°202 cLo'ore'e 8€0'9¥9 0 0 0 0 Bingsusiiepy
LE1°SG 0 0 zel'se G00'0€ 0 0 0 0 3|[IASpIEA
610'sZ 0 0 999°C1L 60v'ZL 0 0 0 0 [SIETT
L1E'6G 0 0 Ghz'se 2L0've 0 0 0 0 8A0ID JNUBAN
vyl 0 0 0 vov'LL 0 0 0 0 BENTIETV
Gzs'e 0 0 0 Gzs'e 0 0 0 0 sel=TV
oL’z 0 0 0 L'z 0 0 0 0 SRV
G¥S'ze 0 0 G62'8lL 19621 0 0 0 682'L soela] eNUIA
90£'€GE 0 0L6'6l 118'v¥T 81508 0 0 0 100'8 Mied BUUIA
156'C 0 0 0 166'C 0 0 0 0 Oje|d jo abejIin
¥50°C 0 0 0 7602 0 0 0 0 sooyuld jo abejiiA
zee'e 0 0 0 zee'e 0 0 0 0 3|lININY Jo abeliiA
£99°191 0 6s2'L 9e0'62 ) zle'se 0 0 0 0 BUUBIA
0.9'56 0 0 129'€9 £v0'2¢ 0 0 0 0 wnuNqIA
£V9'L¥6 0 0 ve8‘ors 608'001 0 0 0 0 SEI[IESIEN
GlLETS 0 0 6,992 9€9'sZ 0 0 0 0 $ BUOJBA
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(Aluo (r1°B) (F'u‘b) (r'e4y) (B*9) (6°p) (B%e) Ao
wnpuelowsaly) S99 ¥ saxe] Xe] asn Xe] sajes 294 pue Xe] "jsuj xej]
|ejol Bujwen uondQ [e207 |esoT] Xe] [on4 |eloueul 10} dsueinsuj le) ajeAlld apasebin

JeOQIaALY

papneun

32038 Aunon

200z ‘0€ INNC A3AN3 ¥VIA HOA4

S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



(sbed yxau uo panuijuod)

G6S'E 0 0 0 G6S'e 0 0 0 0 ewlez
LLEYT 0 0 6EL'6 8/1'Gl 0 0 0 0 neAm
#0002 0 0 005'9 v0S'€l 0 0 0 0 epuodeAp
995'6£€ 0 0 698282 102'95 0 0 0 0 A4 WbUA
8v9'c 0 0 0 8v9'e 0 0 0 0 uoyBUIYHOAN
L¥0'y 0 0 0 L¥0'y 0 0 0 0 YHOM
1102 0 0 0 1102 0 0 0 0 aBpup|oopn
Lyy'6€S 0 G299l lzl'0ge zel'vl) 0 0 0 €9¢'Ll 80B.1I9] UOSPOOMN
z51°29 0 998y 609'/2 119'62 0 0 0 0 sybleH spoop
oLz'ol 0 0 0 0lz'ol 0 0 0 0 UOISUIN
vz L8l 0 0 Gze'zel 6se'sy 0 0 0 0 BUOUIAA
9e0°LLL 0 0 60528 1€5'8 0 0 0 0 PIRYUIM
£v6'lEY 0 0 67£'90€ ¥65'sZl 0 0 0 0 JospUIp
88/°11 0 0 0 ¥S.'0L 0 0 0 ¥€0'L J8}SayOUIM
vel'L 0 0 0 vel'L 0 0 0 0 AyD uosjip
896Vt 0 0 92e'65¢ Zr9's8 0 0 0 0 sbudg mojiIp
STANC 14 0 0 £ee'62 £6.1'Sl 0 0 0 0 IASW
¥£6°259 0 6LV LL G25'9ZS 0£6'801 0 0 0 0 paeliip
192'82v'C 0 0 vel'zee'l 196'166 0 0 0 0.5'86 POOMPIIAA
£ee'lG 0 0 718'82 £8¥°0C 0 0 0 90 Sied Ingiipn
Gly'y 0 0 0 Sly'y 0 0 0 0 JajemaliuM
G00'€ 0 0 0 G00'e 0 0 0 0 apISSHUM
62E L1 0 0 0 6ze'LL 0 0 0 0 Buteaym
06£°0L 0 0 €592k 1€1'12 0 0 0 0 uoyesypn
lzl'ee 0 0 v9e'8lL £9g'Gl 0 0 0 0 puepeaypn
8€6°CL 0 0 0 69L°}1 0 0 0 6911 poomisap
152'9 0 GE6'9 616'9¢ £0v'2l 0 0 0 0 elleydisspy
125'90€ 0 0z¥'0Z vev'Lze £29'79 0 0 0 0 Uoysap
160°L 0 0 0 1602 0 0 0 0 0IOqISB
168 0 0 9G¥'y Ge6'e 0 0 0 0 UBAJ|ING }SOMN
Z66°L£0'Y 0 0 zle'ezo'e 089'60% 0 0 0 0 sule|d IS
990y 0 0 0 990'% 0 0 0 0 aul IseM
05L've 0 05l 've Uoyy IS8
9.1'828't 0 A WA L1e'188'¢ lz6e'eee 0 0 0 0 3|[IAZJUB\A
vLL'S 0 0 0 riL's 0 0 0 0 $ YHOMJUBAA
(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)
(Aluo (r°B) (F'u‘b) (r'e4y) (B*9) (6°p) (6*0) (6°q) (B%e) Ao
wnpuelowsaly) S99 ¥ saxe] Xe] asn Xe] sajes 294 pue Xe] "jsuj s|inoT 1S xej] xej]
|ejol Bujwen uondQ [e207 |esoT] Xe] [on4 |eloueul 10} dsueinsuj le) ajeAlld apasebin
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

papneun

200z ‘0€ INNC A3AN3 ¥VIA HOA4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1
INN3IATY 40 LNJNLHVH3A



‘e6 abed uo Bujuuibaqg sjnpayds ,sauUN0) - Alewwng uoinqguisig
984 pue xe|,, 8y} Uo papn|oul ae Ajuno9 sINoT 1S 0} paiNguUIsip sjunowe ay] “Ajunog sINOT ‘IS UIYNIM S8lI0 8y} 0} sjunowe ay} Bunnguisip Jo} a|qisuodsal si Aiunod sino 1S (M)
's99} Uoissiwpe pue xej Jdisoal ssolb Bujweb jeoqianu jo uoljduosap e Joj gg| pue gg abed aag (1)
"xe} asn uojjdo [eoo) jo uonduossp e Joj gg abed aag (y)
‘J€L NIY} pEL pue ‘zel ‘Lgl sebed uo umoys aie suoj}os||0d
99} 9S8y 'S8|NPaYDS SUONDS||0D XE} S} Ul PAPN|OU JOU SJE Jey} S88} [an) JOJOW PUE JSALIP/3[OIYSA pUE ‘©8) UOIOS|[00 Juadiad OM} O} SUO B ‘}Salajul JUsW)SaAUl ‘'suolnquisip jo Be| yjuow
SA|9M} 0} BUO B JO 8snNedaq 98 pue Zg NJy} 08 sebed uo umoys suolos||0d Xe} [enba jou [|Im salJewwns aA}0adsal 8U} U0 UMOUS S3I}O PUB S81UN0d 0} SUORNGLIS|P Xe} Jo [ejo} ayl (B)
'Xe} sa|es [ed0] jo uoiduosap e Joj 98 abed aag (})
'S99} [N} JOJOW PUE JSALIP/3|DIYSA pUE ‘XE} S3|es S|oIysA
‘Xe} [an} Jojow apn[oul pue uoljepodsuel Jo Juswpeda UNOSSI SY} WOoJj paule}qo Sie sJUNOWe 89} pUe Xej [an} 8Y| 98} pue Xe} [any Jo uoliduosap e Joj G| pue ‘Ll ‘zg sebed aag (8)
"xe} 8y} Jo sjuaidioal ajqissod ale sall) Xe} suonnisul [eioueuly jo uoljduosap e oy | g abed 8ag (p)
‘aouelnsu| 320}s Ajunod jo uonduosap e 1o} gG abed aag (9)
"xe} Jed ajeAld Aunod jo uonduosap e Joj gg abed aag (q)
'e6 abed uo Bujuuibag sinpayds ,sailunod - Alewwnsg uonnguisiqg Xe ,, dYj uo papnjou; s| AJuno) sinoT '}S 0} uoinquisip xe} apaiedio |ejo} 8yl ‘s|npayos
S|U} UO papn|oul 8Je suofNquisip 8say “AJunoD sIN0T 1S UIYNM S8IHD 0} Xe} apalebio Ajunog sINoT IS SaINGUISIp 8NUSASY Jo juswpeda UNOSS|Al 8YL 'S|NPayos Sy} UO papnioul
Jou aJe sny} pue Ajunon uosyoer Aq AUNOD UOSHOBL UIYIM SBI}I0 0} paingusip si AunoD uosyoer o} uoingusip Xe} apaleblo ay] xe} apaiebio jo uonduosap e Joj g abed aag (e)

G9S‘06v'8LL L G91°959CL €90°€€6'0S £9.'08'GY8 GLs'ogy syl v8e°LES 9¥5'19 ¥ee'LS 16.'520'E $ SIvV1OL

(ebed snoinaid woly panuiuod)

(fluo ("'B) (F'u'B) (re’y) (B6%) (6°p) (6) (6°q) (6°) [STE
wnpuelowsy) S99 @ S9Xe] xe] asM) xe] sales 294 pue xe] ‘Jsu| sinoT 1§ xe] xe]
lejol Bujwen uondQ |e201] |eso] xe] [an4 |e1oueuly 10} adueinsu| 1eJ ajeAld apalebl)
JeOqIaALY }2038 fjunoy funoj

200Z ‘0€ ANNM AIANT ¥VIA HO4
S3ILIO - AAVININNS NOILNGIRILSIA 334 ANV XV1

JNNIATY 40 LNINLYVd3IA
papneun



e, .
"%“*j/,/ Missouri Department of Revenue
A

§xZ2 Fees Administered

The Fees Administered schedules contain a brief description of the fee and

the amount collected in Fiscal Year 2002 by the Department of Revenue.

The schedules are grouped in the following categories: All-Terrain Vehicle Fees;
Court and County Clerk and Recorder Fees; Drivers License Fees;

Marine Fees; Motor Vehicle Fees; and Other Fees.




Unaudited Fees Administered

SUMMARY OF
FEES ADMINISTERED

Percent

FY 02 Amount FY 01 Amount Increase/

Collected Collected Decrease

All-Terrain Vehicle Fees $991,497 758,849 30.7 %

Court and County Clerk

and Recorder Fees 40,958,045 35,003,256 17.0
Drivers License Fees 24,970,607 24,395,879 2.4
Marine Fees 4,870,176 4,742,899 2.7
Motor Vehicle Fees* 251,070,278 277,379,976 -9.5
Other Fees 125,890,803 115,643,608 8.9

Total Collections $448,751,406 457,924,467 -2.0 %

Percentage of Fiscal Year 2002 Collections

0.2% 9.1%

B All-Terrain Vehicle Fees
B Court and County Clerk
O Drivers License Fees

B Marine Fees

B Motor Vehicle Fees

@ Other Fees

55.9%

*Fiscal Year 2001 Motor Vehicle Fees were restated to include Children’s Trust Fund specialty plate fees of $71,957.
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Fees Administered Unaudited
Certificate of Title Fee
Percent

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a FY02 Increase/
certificate of ownership on an all-terrain Amount Decrease
vehicle. .Cltllzens.must obtain a cer_t|f|cate of Fee Type Rate Collected From FY01
ownership/title prior to the registration of an
all-terrain vehicle. The fee is authorized by _ _ .
Section 301.700, RSMo. Disposition of the fee ~ Cert. of Title Variable $223,123 211 %
is to the General Fund.

Grade Cross $0.25 6,826 6.0

Grade Crossing Safety Fee

Reg./Decal 10.00 319,790 11.3
This is a fee imposed on owners of all-terrain
veh.icles.(treated as motor vehicles) upon Misc. Variable 441,758 57.3
registration or renewal of an all-terrain vehicle.
The fee is authorized by Section 389.612, ] o
RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the State Total Collections $991,497 30.7 %
Highways and Transportation Department
Fund Grade Crossing Safety Account.

5 Year History of Collections

Registration/Decal Fee

This is a fee imposed for the registration of all-
terrain vehicles. The registration shall be valid
for a period of three years. The fee is
authorized by Section 301.711, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the General Fund.

Miscellaneous Fees

These are fees imposed for various services
performed by the Division of Motor Vehicle and
Drivers Licensing. Disposition of the fees is to
the General Fund.

Thousands

FYo®8 FY®Q FYO0 FYO1 FYO2

| B Reg/Decal B Cert. of Title IMisc.
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Unaudited

Fees Administered

COURT AND COUNTY CLERK

AND RECORDER FEES

Associate/Probate Court Fee

This is a fee charged by circuit courts for
handling criminal civil cases. The fee is
authorized by Section 483.580, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the General Fund.

Circuit Clerk Fee

This is a fee charged by circuit clerks for the
services provided by the circuit clerk’s office.
The fee is authorized by Section 483.530,
RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the
General Fund.

Court Automation Fee

This is a fee collected by circuit and associate
circuit courts. The fee is authorized by
Section 476.053, RSMo. Disposition of the
fee is to the Statewide Court Automation
Fund.

Crime Victim’s Fee

These are fees assessed as costs in each
court proceeding. Disposition of the fees is to
the State Forensic Laboratory Fund, Services
to Victims’ Fund, and Crime Victims'
Compensation Fund. See Special Revenue
Fund Descriptions, pages 41 and 44, for the
respective authorizations and assessment
amounts.

Domestic Relations Resolution Fee

This is a fee collected by court clerks for
filings of actions for the dissolution of
marriage. The fee is authorized by Section
452.552, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to
the Domestic Relations Resolution Fund.

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.

Percent

FY02 Increase/

Amount Decrease

Fee Type Rate Collected From FY01

Assoc/Probate Variable $6,793,119 0.8 %
Circuit Clerk Variable 5,867,772 -0.4
Court Auto. $7.00 4,341,979 -2.0
Crime Victims Variable 8,826,417 21.6
Domestic 3.00 231,985 12.2
Living Center 0.50 318,608 53.7
Merchant 5.00 10,053 -0.9
Missouri CASA 2.00 56,983 100.0
Motorcycle 2.75t0 20.00 2,154 100.6
Recorders Variable 12,647,575 61.8
School Bldg. Variable 1,442,546 -36.0
Spinal Cord Injury 2.00 144,838 100.0
Pros. Attny. 0.50 274,016 48.3

Total Collections $40,958,045 17.0 %

Independent Living Center Fee

This is a fee collected by the courts from persons
convicted of or who plead guilty to a drug-related
offense or an intoxication-related traffic offense. The

fee is authorized by Section 561.035, RSMo.

Disposition of the fee is to the Independent Living

Center Fund.
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Fees Administered

Unaudited

COURT AND COUNTY CLERK
AND RECORDER FEES (continued)

Merchant License Fee

This is a fee for the issuance of a license to
conduct business as a merchant. The fee is
authorized by Section 150.150, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the General Fund.

Missouri CASA (Court Appointed
Special Advocate) Fee

This is an additional surcharge collected by
associate and circuit courts for each domestic
relations petition filed. The fee is authorized
by Section 488.636, RSMo. Dispostition of
the fee is to the Missouri CASA Fund.

Motorcycle Safety Fee

This is a fee collected by the courts from
violators of Missouri laws or municipal or
county ordinances involving a motorcycle or
motortricycle. The fee is authorized by
Section 302.137, RSMo. Dispostition of the
fee is to the Motorcycle Safety Trust Fund.

Recorders Fees

These are fees collected from county
recorders of deeds throughout the state.
These fees are deposited into the following
funds:

The Children’s Trust Fund receives fees
charged by county recorders of deeds
for the issuance of marriage licenses.
The fee is authorized by Section
451.151, RSMo.

The Local Records Preservation Fund
receives 25 percent of a $4 fee charged
by county recorders of deeds for the
recording of any instrument. The fee

is authorized by Section 59.319, RSMo.

5 Year History of Collections

Millions

cadnBRBBS G

FYos8 FY99 FYO0O FYol Fyoe

B Assc./Prob. B Circuit 0O Court Auto. B Crime Vict.
B Recorders B Al Cthers

The State Land Survey Program Fund receives 25
percent of a $4 fee charged by county recorders of
deeds for the recording of any instrument. The fee
is authorized by Section 59.319, RSMo.

The Missouri Housing Trust Fund receives an
additional $3 fee for the recording of any
instrument. The fee is authorized by Section
59.319, RSMo.

The Statutory County Recorder’s Fund receives $2
of an additional $5 fee charged by county recorders
of deeds for the recording of any instrument. The
fee is authorized by Section 59.800, RSMo.
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Fees Administered

COURT AND COUNTY CLERK
AND RECORDER FEES (continued)

School Building Revolving Forfeitures

As authorized by Section 166.131, RSMo, the
School Building Revolving Fund receives
proceeds from forfeitures of bonds posted for
breach of penal laws. The county treasurers
hold the forfeiture proceeds and annually
transmit them to the Department of Revenue.

Spinal Cord Injury Fee

This is a judgment entered by courts
(including municipal courts) against
defendants for intoxication related offenses.
The fee is authorized by Section 304.027,
RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the Spinal
Cord Injury Fund.

Prosecuting Attorney Fees

This is a $1 surcharge assessed in each
criminal court proceeding filed in the state.
The fee is authorized by Section 56.765,
RSMo. Disposition of the 50 percent state
portion of the fee is to the Missouri Office of
Prosecution Services Fund. The courts pay
the county treasurers the other 50 percent.
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Fees Administered Unaudited
Commercial Drivers License Percent
Road/Written Test Fee Y02 Increasel
This is a fee imposed on applicants for a Amount Decrease
commercial drivers license for administration Fee Type Rate” Collected From FY01
of the road and written tests. The fee is
authorized by Section 302.720, RSMo. CDL $25.00 $237,360 52 %
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund and the Drivers License
increased fee to the State Road Fund (75 Operator 7.50/15.00 13,992,794 23
percent) and the agency fund, Fuel Local Chauffeur  15.00/30.00 2,783,409 13.8
Deposit (FLOYD) Fund (25 percent). The Commercial ~ 20.00/40.00 3,067,005 -0.4
F.L.OYD Fund d|§tr|butes its portion to the Motorcycle 7 50/15.00 1,370 114
cities and counties.
: : ID Card 3.00/6.00 1,103,269 11.9
Drivers License Issuance and
Renewal Fees Instr. Permit ~ Variable 261,178  -19.9
This is a drivers license fee imposed every
three years or six years on operators of motor Organ Donor 1.00 277,415 -26.1
vehicles in the state of Missouri for the , _
issuance of a drivers license. The fee is Reinstatement  Variable 2,987,982 2.4
authorized by Sections 302.177 and 302.735, . .
RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the State Misc. Variable 258,825 31.7
Highways and Transportation Department
Fund and the increased fee to the State Road Total Collections $24,970,607 24 %

Fund (75 percent) and the agency fund,
FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD Fund
distributes its portion to the cities and
counties.

Identification Card Fee

This is a fee charged for the issuance of a
nondrivers identification card containing
essentially the same information on a valid
drivers license. The fee is authorized by
Section 302.181, RSMo. Disposition of the
fee is to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund and the
increased fee to the State Road Fund (75
percent) and the agency fund, FLOYD Fund
(25 percent). The FLOYD Fund distributes its
portion to the cities and counties.

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.

Instruction Permit Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a temporary
instruction permit or a restricted instruction permit.
The fee is authorized by Section 302.130, 302.140,
and 302.720, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the
State Highways and Transportation Department Fund
and Motorcycle Safety Trust Fund and the increased
fee to the State Road Fund (75 percent) and the
agency fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD
Fund distributes its portion to the cities and counties.

*Effective July 1, 2000, six-year drivers/non-drivers
licenses are available for specific age groups. The
Department of Revenue will phase in the six-year
license over a period of several years. Six-year rates
are double the three-year rates.
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Unaudited Fees Administered

DRIVERS LICENSE FEES (continued)

Organ Donor Contribution

This is a voluntary contribution to promote an
organ donor program. Applicants for a 5 Year History of Collections
license are given the opportunity to make a
donation of $1 at the time of issuance or
renewal. The donation is authorized by
Section 302.171, RSMo. Disposition of the
contribution is to the Organ Donor Program
Fund.

Reinstatement Fee

Millions

This is a fee imposed to have a license or 101
privilege to operate a motor vehicle reinstated
once it has been suspended or revoked. The
fee is authorized by Section 302.304, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the State Road
Fund and the increased fee to the State Road 0
Fund (75 percent) and the agency fund, FYs8 FYs9 FY00 FYOl FYGe
FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD Fund B Driver's License @ Reinstatement DAl Gthers
distributes its portion to the cities and counties.

5,

Miscellaneous Fees

These are fees imposed for various services
performed by the Division of Motor Vehicle and
Drivers Licensing. Disposition of the fees is to
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund and the increased fee to the
State Road Fund (75 percent) and the agency
fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD
Fund distributes its portion to the cities and
counties.
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Fees Administered Unaudited
Certificate of Title Fee
Percent
This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a FY02 Increase/
certificate of ownership on a watercraft or Amount Decrease
outt?qard motor. sz.en§ mus.t obtain a Fee Type Rate Collected From FYO1
certificate of ownership/title prior to the
registration of a watercraft or outboard motor. , : .
A certificate of title application must be made Cert. of Title Variable $627,562 34 %
within sixty days after the vessel or outboard .
motor is acquired or brought into the state. Reg./Decal Variable 3,992,497 2.4
The fee is authorized by Sections 306.015 and
306.535, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to Misc. Variable 250,117 5.4
the General Fund.
Total Collections $4,870,176 2.7 %
Registration/Decal Fee
This is a fee imposed every third year on an
owner of a watercraft to obtain its registration.
There is a one time fee per owner of an 5 History of Collections

outboard motor to obtain an outboard motor
decal. The Division of Motor Vehicle and
Drivers Licensing confirms the registration of a
watercraft or outboard motor by issuing a
decal. The fee is authorized by Section
306.030 and 306.535, RSMo. Disposition of
the fee is to the General Fund.

Miscellaneous Fees

These are fees imposed for various services
performed by the Division of Motor Vehicle and
Drivers Licensing. Disposition of the fees is to
the General Fund.

Millions

FYs8 FY®9 FY00  FYO1

FYo2

| BReg./Decal MCertof Title 0 Misc.
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Unaudited

Fees Administered

MOTOR VEHICLE FEES

Alternative Fuel Decal Fee

This is an annual fee imposed for the issuance of
a decal, in lieu of tax, for motor vehicles that are
passenger cars or commercial motor vehicles that
are powered by liquefied petroleum gas, natural
gas, or electricity. The fee is authorized by
Section 142.869, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is
to the State Road Fund (75 percent) and the
agency fund, Fuel Local Deposit (FLOYD) Fund
(25 percent). The FLOYD Fund distributes its
portion to the cities and counties.

Apportioned Fee

This is a fee imposed on owners and operators of
motor vehicles and trailers operated in interstate
or combined interstate and intrastate commerce.
The fee is on an apportionment basis that is
determined by the miles traveled on and the use
made of Missouri highways. The fee is authorized
by Section 301.277, RSMo. Disposition of the
original fee is to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund and the
increased fee to the State Road Fund (75 percent)
and the agency fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent).
The FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to the
cities and counties.

Blindness Education, Screening, and
Treatment Contribution

This is a voluntary contribution to promote a
blindness education, screening, and treatment
program. Applicants registering a motor vehicle or
trailer, or obtaining a drivers license may contribute
$1 at the time of issuance or renewal. The
donation is authorized by Sections 301.020 and
302.171, RSMo. Disposition of the contribution is
to the Blindness Education, Screening, and
Treatment Program Fund established in Section
192.935, RSMo.

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.

Cab Card Fee

This is a fee imposed on commercial motor vehicle
operators for the registration cab card that must
accompany the apportioned interstate license
plate. The fee is authorized by the Missouri Code
of Regulations 12 CSR 20-3.010 (29). Disposition
of the fee is to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund.

Certificate of Title Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a
certificate of ownership on any motor vehicle or
trailer. Citizens must obtain a certificate of
ownership/title prior to the registration of a vehicle
or trailer. The fee is authorized by Section
301.190, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to the
State Highways and Transportation Department
Fund and the increased fee to the State Road
Fund (75 percent) and the agency, FLOYD Fund
(25 percent). The FLOYD Fund distributes its
portion to the cities and counties.

Children’s Trust Contribution

This is a fee imposed by the Children’s Trust Fund
Board to vehicle owners applying for a Children’s
Trust Fund specialty plate. The fee is authorized
by Section 301.463, RSMo. Disposition of the fee
is to the Children’s Trust Fund.

Duplicate Plate Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a
duplicate number plate in the event of the loss or
destruction of such a plate. The fee is authorized
by Section 301.300, RSMo. Disposition of the
original fee is to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund and the
increased fee to the State Road Fund (75 percent)
and the agency, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The
FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to the cities
and counties.
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Fees Administered Unaudited
MOTOR VEHICLE FEES (continued)
Grade Crossing Safety Fee Percent
This is a fee imposed on owners of motor FY02 Increase/
vehicles upon registration or renewal of a Amount Decrease
motor vehicle and annually upon owners of Fee Type Rate Collected From FY01
railroad rolling stock and flanged wheel
equipment or private cars. The collection Alt. Fuel Decal Variable $198,189 116 %
amount includes $1,188,651 collected by the
Division of Motor Vehicle and Drivers : :
; . Apport d Variabl 61,850,530 5.0
Licensing and $10,825 collected by the bportione anabie
Highway Reciprocity Commission. The fee is _
authorized by Section 389.612, RSMo. Blindness Ed. $1.00 218,405 92.6
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund Grade Cab Card 2.00 124,948 9.2
Crossing Safety Account.
Cert. of Title 8.50 17,812,531 49
Hunters Permit Fee
Children's Trust 25.00 111,686 55.2
This fee, in lieu of the registration fee, is
imposed on the owner of a motor vehicle who Dup. Plate 8.50 649,350 0.6
is duly and legally proportionally registered in
Missouri but cannot legally operate the vehicle Grade Cross 025 1,199,476 -16.4
because of a lease cancellation. The fee is
agthon_z_ed by Sectlon_301 .266, RSMo: Hunter Permit 25 00 925 4292
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund. Motor Fuel 10.00 87262 8.4
Motor Fuel Permit Fee MV Trip Permit Variable 4,510,191 7.8
This is a fee imposed on an interstate motor
vehicle operator in lieu of being a licensed fuel Pro. Cab Card 2.00 11,422 -1.4
user. The fee is authorized by Section . .
142.830, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to Recip. Trip 10.00 139,530 12.8
the State Road Fund (75 percent) and the
agency fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The Registration Variable 135,765,595 -17.8
FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to the
cities and counties. Revenue Trsf.  Variable 11,431 -3.1
72 Hr. License 5.00 1,510 106.8
World War Il 10.00 11,683 11.4
Misc. Variable 28,365,614 -2.8
Total Collections $251,070,278 -9.5 %

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.
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Unaudited

Fees Administered

MOTOR VEHICLE FEES (continued)

Motor Vehicle Trip Permit Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a
temporary permit allowing a citizen to operate
a vehicle for a specific period of time or for a
specific purpose. Types of temporary permits
include nonresident, maintenance, driveway,
and intransit. The fee is authorized by
Sections 301.170-301.177, RSMo.

Disposition of the original fee is to the State
Highways and Transportation Department
Fund and the increased fee to the State Road
Fund (75 percent) and the agency fund,
FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The FLOYD Fund
distributes its portion to the cities and
counties.

Prorate Cab Card Transfer Fee

This is a fee imposed on an interstate motor
vehicle licensee who transfers a license plate
that also necessitates issuance of a new cab
card. The fee is authorized by the Missouri
Code of Regulations 12 CSR 20-3.010(29).
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund.

Reciprocity Trip Permit Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a
permit authorizing the operation of any motor
vehicle on Missouri state highways that is
legally registered in some other jurisdiction.
The permit is for a period not to exceed 72
hours. The fee is authorized by Section
301.265, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund.

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.

5 Year History of Collections

300+

250
E

150

100+

50,

O,

FY98

FY99 FY00 FYO1 FYo2
B Apportioned B Cert.of Title O Registration @Misc. B All Others

Registration Fee

This is a one or two year fee imposed for the
registration of motor vehicles. The fee is variable
based upon the gross weight of property carrying
commercial vehicles, horsepower of motor vehicles
other than commercial, or seating capacity for
passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicles. The
fee is authorized by Sections 301.040-301.090, RSMo.
Disposition of the original fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund and the
increased fee to the State Road Fund (75 percent) and
the agency fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The
FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to the cities and
counties.

Registration Transfer Fee

This is a fee imposed for the transfer of a license plate
from one vehicle to another by the same individual.
The fee is authorized by Section 301.140, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways and
Transportation Department Fund.
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Fees Administered

MOTOR VEHICLE FEES (continued)

Seventy-Two Hour License Permit Fee

This is a fee imposed for the issuance of a
permit authorizing the operation of a motor
vehicle on Missouri state highways for up to
72 hours. The fee is authorized by Section
390.136, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund.

World War Il Memorial Contribution

This is a voluntary contribution to promote the
World War Il Memorial Trust Fund. Applicants
for a military license plate are given the
opportunity to make a donation of $10 at the
time of issuance or renewal. The donation is
authorized by Section 301.3031, RSMo.
Disposition of the contribution is to the World
War Il Memorial Trust Fund.

Miscellaneous Fees

These are fees imposed for various services
performed by the Division of Motor Vehicle and
Drivers Licensing. Disposition of the fees is to
the State Highways and Transportation
Department Fund and any increased fees to
the State Road Fund (75 percent) and the
agency fund, FLOYD Fund (25 percent). The
FLOYD Fund distributes its portion to the cities
and counties.

Unaudited
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Unaudited

Fees Administered

OTHER FEES

Boll Weevil Eradication Fee

This is an assessment on cotton growers by
the Missouri Department of Agriculture. The
fee is authorized by Section 263.537, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is 99 percent to the
Missouri Cotton Growers Organization and 1
percent to the Boll Weevil Suppression and
Eradication Fund.

Gaming Admission Fee

This is a fee charged to excursion boat
licensees for each person embarking on an
excursion gambling boat. The fee is
authorized by Section 313.820, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is 50 percent to the
Gaming Commission Fund and 50 percent to
the home dock cities and counties.

IFTA Penalties

This is interest imposed on all delinquent
special fuel (primarily diesel fuel) taxes due in
accordance with the International Fuel Tax
Agreement (IFTA). All accounts accrue
interest at a rate of 1 percent per month. The
penalty is authorized by Section 142.929,
RSMo. Disposition of the interest is to the
Motor Fuel Tax Fund.

IRP Late Filer Penalty

This is a penalty imposed on registered
commercial vehicles if the Highway
Reciprocity Commission receives the renewal
application after October 1. The penalty is
authorized by Section 301.041, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is to the State Highways
and Transportation Department Fund.

See next page for additional fee types and collection
amounts.

Percent

FY02 Increase/

Amount Decrease

Fee Type Rate Collected From FY01

Boll Weeuvil Variable $3,967,117 100.0 %
Gaming $2.00 97,215,054 3.5
IFTA Penalties Variable 111,980 7.5
IRP Late Filer 100.00 130,408 -7.6
IRP Late Pymt. Variable 102,890 -19.0
MV Comm. Variable 988,446 0.5
Petroleum Variable 2,415,488 0.6
Publication Variable 1,995,746 1.5
Rural Electric 10.00 470 0.0
Storage Tank 100.00 16,834,815 21.6
Tire 0.50 2,101,089 0.8
Tobacco 100.00 27,300 14.2

Total Collections $125,890,803 8.9 %

IRP Late Payment Penalty

This is a penalty imposed on registered commercial
vehicles if the motor vehicle operator does not pay the
renewal application fees by December 1. The penalty
is authorized by Section 301.041, RSMo. Disposition
of the fee is to the State Highways and Transportation

Department Fund.
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Fees Administered

Unaudited

OTHER FEES (continued)

Motor Vehicle Commission Fee

This is a fee for the issuance of a license to
manufacturers, motor vehicle dealers, and
boat dealers. The fee is authorized by
Section 301.553, RSMo. Disposition of the
fee is to the Motor Vehicle Commission Fund.

Petroleum Inspection Fee

This is a fee imposed on all fuel imported into
this state or removed from terminals in this
state. The funds are used for the inspection
of motor fuels. The fee is authorized by
Section 414.082, RSMo. Disposition of the
fee is to the Petroleum Inspection Fund.

Publication/Record Search Fee

This is a fee and applicable sales tax charged
for the issuance of state publications or
providing access to or furnishing copies of a
public record. The collection amount includes
$289,054 collected by the Division of
Administration, $27,068 collected by the
Division of Taxation and Collection,
$1,656,092 collected by the Division of Motor
Vehicle and Drivers Licensing, and $23,532
collected by the Highway Reciprocity
Commission. The fee is authorized by
Section 181.100, RSMo. Disposition of the
fee is to the Department of Revenue
Information Fund.

Rural Electric Cooperative Fee

This is an annual fee imposed on rural electric
cooperatives for transacting business in this
state. The fee is authorized by Section
394.260, RSMo. Disposition of the fee is to
the General Fund.

5 Year History of Collections

Millions

FYo8 FY®o FYoo FYO1 FY02

BGaming OPetrdeum BMV Comm OTire
OPublication @Storage O Boll Weevil OAll Others

Storage Tank Fee

This is a surcharge on all petroleum products. The fee
is authorized by Section 319.129, RSMo. Disposition
of the fee is to the Petroleum Storage Tank Insurance
Fund.

Tire Fee

This is a fee charged for the purchase of each new

tire. The fee is authorized by Section 260.273, RSMo.
Disposition of the fee is 96 percent to the Solid Waste
Management Fund and 4 percent to the General Fund.

Tobacco License Fee

This is an annual license fee collected from
wholesalers of cigarettes or tobacco products as a
condition of operating such business. The fee is
authorized by Section 149.035, RSMo. Disposition of
the fee is to the State School Money Fund.
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Licenses Issued
Operator
Chauffeur
Commercial
Motorcycle

Identification Cards

Instruction Permits

Organ Donor

Record Searches

Reinstatements

Miscellaneous
License Applications
School Bus Permits
Certified Records
Address Changes
Other

Total Drivers License

Transactions

Percent Increase/Decrease
From Prior Year

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
DRIVERS LICENSE TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS (1998 - 2002)

Unaudited

Fiscal Year

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
1,362,131 1,328,095 1,277,300 1,311,832 1,318,528
130,077 112,152 115,628 123,585 105,141
98,371 98,015 87,056 90,565 90,186
106 99 88 59 110
214,149 190,232 175,551 162,227 140,919
164,100 196,888 177,635 169,355 164,040
277,288 376,293 468,628 373,458 367,465
926,717 1,033,363 1,096,144 1,456,825 1,722,445
76,276 74,771 76,857 74,000 67,280
70,685 79,200 85,489 79,382 65,134
7,909 15,271 4470 4,280 4476
4072 4,198 4,551 3,990 5,057
16,619 15,525 12,723 8,667 4,798
320,845 253,270 142,663 130,817 114,207
3,669,345 3,777,372 3,724,783 3,989,042 4,169,786
-2.86% 1.41% -6.62% -4.33% -10.99%




Vehicle Registration
Passenger

Trucks

Buses

Motorcycles

Trailers

Recreational Vehicles
Replacement Plates/Tabs
Miscellaneous

Titles

Original
Lienholder
Duplicate
Salvage
Repossessed
Quick Title Fee
Miscellaneous

Temporary Permits

Miscellaneous
License Transfers
Code L

Plate Reservations
Dealer Plates
Record Searches
Penalty Fees
Disabled Placards
Other

Total Motor Vehicle
Transactions

Percent Increase/Decrease
From Prior Year

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
MOTOR VEHICLE TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS (1998 - 2002)

Unaudited

Fiscal Year

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
3,199,623 4,002,183 3,061,191 3,030,693 3,010,056
1,370,637 1,650,894 1,301,773 1,276,624 1,252,507
12,260 13,022 12,812 11,512 11,263
83,171 92,873 61,953 56,459 53,874
317,677 334,023 350,833 324,797 345,548
33,322 27,699 21,972 21,776 22,188
90,196 86,825 74,701 110,647 37,745
20,963 20,761 21,104 19,881 20,717
1,705,611 1,642,182 1,614,142 1,194,723 1,176,653
312,172 300,593 394,288 541,651 523,011
92,478 88,150 86,965 79,743 74,254
61,572 60,776 29,686 52,272 49,722
35,691 34,523 54,973 28,274 29,170
286,388 259,585 250,198 218,076 193,819
22,511 19,654 15,219 13,693 13,613
617,405 545,761 496,523 461,318 427 467
400,815 361,177 390,908 392,899 375,471
4. 449 5,802 169,206 526,900 510,308
173,451 225,020 168,652 166,847 168,451
79,737 78,867 76,480 73,889 70,787
51,479 365 115,109 146,939 83,599
633,884 736,836 752,477 730,434 626,241
358,718 323,917 307,293 280,380 279,863
53,930 57,661 67,373 68,356 74,228
10,018,140 10,969,149 9,895,831 9,828,783 9,430,555
-8.67% 10.85% 0.68% 4.22% 1.14%




Marine Titles
Watercraft Original Title
Watercraft Duplicate Title

Outboard Motor Original Title
Outboard Motor Duplicate Title

Other

Marine Registrations

Watercraft/Motorboat Decals

Outboard Motor Decals
Documented Vessels

Miscellaneous
Replacement Decals
Dealer Registrations
Watercraft Numbers
Title Penalties
Boat Identification Plates
Other

Total Marine Transactions

Percent Increase/Decrease
From Prior Year

Titles
Registration/Decals
Miscellaneous

Total All-Terrain
Vehicle Transactions

Percent Increase/Decrease
From Prior Year

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Unaudited

MARINE TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS (1998 - 2002)
Fiscal Year
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
50,309 50,047 56,571 54,784 55,247
2,867 2,671 2,629 2,338 2,263
32,035 30,774 35,400 46,371 57,566
1,348 1,317 1,392 1,503 1,576
4,581 4240 1,275 1,304 1,149
110,776 112,429 119,405 113,504 116,500
27,348 26,999 31,304 41,223 52,010
4,994 4,759 5,090 4,800 4,066
801 746 1,279 1,718 2,600
3,675 3,626 4125 4,230 3,962
17,548 17,366 20,235 19,591 20,351
5,348 4,968 5,471 5,839 5,844
756 686 750 814 946
764 1,750 4,426 4,264 4275
263,150 262,378 289,352 302,283 328,355
0.29% -9.32% -4.28% -7.94% 0.98%
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLE TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS (1998 - 2002)
Fiscal Year
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
25,386 21,236 20,693 20,175 16,868
29,498 26,778 23,862 20,217 19,353
6,910 5,076 4476 3,840 3,237
61,794 53,090 49,031 44 232 39,458
16.39% 8.28% 10.85% 12.10% 27.04%




Missouri Department of Revenue

Non-Appropriated Funds

This schedule provides fiscal year data on receipts, expenditures,
balances, and asset valuation of other state agencies’
funds not deposited in the State Treasury.
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Missouri Department of Revenue

State Treasurer’s Report

These schedules provide data on fiscal year-end
balances in various state funds and depositories that
state funds are located, including the type of deposit.




Unaudited
TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI
AVERAGE FUND BALANCES AND INVESTED BALANCES
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Average
Average Average Daily Percentage
Daily Balance Daily Invested of State Funds
Month of State Funds Balance (a) Invested
July 2001 $ 2,974,588,684 3,059,681,360 102.86 %
August 2,800,106,548 2,875,884,380 102.71
September 2,705,349,426 2,755,642,970 101.86
October 2,770,575,619 2,813,767,811 101.56
November 2,908,888,766 2,962,682,991 101.85
December 2,737,384,975 2,779,342,784 101.53
January 2002 2,984,405,232 3,030,534,306 101.55
February 2,905,229,552 3,021,155,104 103.99
March 2,688,426,858 2,769,680,338 103.02
April 2,834,149,793 2,853,376,759 100.68
May 3,118,564,451 3,127,346,035 100.28
June 2,975,912,956 3,068,110,917 103.10
Daily Average (b) $ 2,866,965,238 2,926,433,813 102.07 %

Average Return on State
Funds Invested (c)

3.12%

(a) The Average Daily Invested Balances column does not include compensating balances as the
interest on these balances is used to pay for bank service costs and not distributed to state

funds as interest earnings.

(b) Year-to-Date Weighted Average

(c) Represents Year-to-Date



TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

TIME DEPOSITS
BALANCE IN VARIOUS BANKS
June 30, 2002

Unaudited

Location Bank Balance
Alton Alton Bank 2,712,000
Appleton City Community First Bank 2,674,300
Archie Winterset State Bank 3,000,000
Ash Grove Bank of Ash Grove 2,040,000
Auxvasse United Security Bank 200,000
Belle Belle State Bank 2,917,000
Bernie 1st Community Bank, Missouri 1,540,000
Bethany BTC Bank 130,800
Bloomsdale Bank of Bloomsdale 6,012,000
Blythedale Citizens Bank 61,200
Bolivar Bank of Bolivar 4,500,000
Bowling Green Community State Bank 2,970,000
Branson Ozark Mountain Bank 2,000,000
Buffalo O'Bannon Banking Company 750,000
Buffalo The Bank of Urbana 689,156
Bunceton Mainstreet Bank 50,877
Butler BC National Banks 600,000
Cabool Cabool State Bank 246,635
Cameron Horizon State Bank 121,319
Canton Canton State Bank 64,000
Cape Girardeau Bank of America, N.A. 202,168
Carthage Hometown Bank, N.A. 100,000
Carthage Southwest Missouri Bank 1,350,000
Caruthersville First State Bank and Trust Company, Inc. 1,489,000
Cassville Freedom Bank of Southern Missouri 140,000
Chamois United Bank of Chamois 206,166
Charleston First Security State Bank 1,450,000
Chesterfield Founders Bank 2,000,000
Chillicothe Chillicothe State Bank 855,000
Chillicothe Citizens Bank & Trust Company 194,336
Claycomo CSB Bank 3,000,000
Clayton First National Bank of St. Louis 1,370,354
Clayton Truman Bank 1,000,000
Cole Camp The Citizens-Farmers Bank of Cole Camp 175,500
Columbia Boone County National Bank 205,000

(continued on next page)



Unaudited
TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

TIME DEPOSITS
BALANCE IN VARIOUS BANKS
June 30, 2002

Location Bank Balance

(continued from previous page)

Concordia Concordia Bank $ 848,344
Crane Stone County National Bank 340,000
Crocker Bank of Crocker 4,937,946
Cuba Peoples Bank 3,000,000
De Soto State Bank of Jefferson County 750,000
Des Peres Reliance Bank 6,000,000
Doniphan Peoples Community State Bank 100,000
Drexel BANK 10 347,460
Earth City Frontenac Bank 5,000,000
Edina The Citizens Bank of Edina 2,053,634
El Dorado Springs Community Bank of El Dorado Springs 500,000
Eldon Citizens Bank of Eldon 1,734,101
Fairport The Bank of Fairport 135,000
Farmington First State Community Bank 6,236,345
Fayette Commercial Trust Company 100,000
Freeburg Bank of Freeburg 85,000
Fulton Bank Star One 38,000
Fulton The Callaway Bank 2,409,146
Glasgow Glasgow Savings Bank 50,985
Glasgow Tri-County Trust Co. 1,869,679
Gower The Farmers Bank of Gower 40,500
Greenfield Citizens Home Bank 900,000
Hale Farmers & Merchants Bank of Hale 1,140,500
Hamilton Bank Northwest 2,415,000
Hamilton The Hamilton Bank 97,000
Hannibal Hannibal National Bank 260,000
Hayti Bank of Hayti 1,000,000
Holden Bank of Holden 751,800
Holden Farmers & Commercial Bank 1,217,200
Hume Hume Bank 465,000
Iberia Bank of Iberia 315,000
Jamestown Peoples Bank of Jamestown 150,000
Jefferson City Central Bank 20,510,125
Jefferson City Jefferson Bank of Missouri 10,746,344
Jefferson City Premier Bank 8,933,768

(continued on next page)



Unaudited
TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

TIME DEPOSITS
BALANCE IN VARIOUS BANKS
June 30, 2002

Location Bank Balance

(continued from previous page)

Jefferson City The Exchange National Bank $ 15,616,200
Joplin Arvest Bank 514,950
Kahoka Exchange Bank of Northeast Missouri 63,024
Kahoka Kahoka State Bank 518,358
Kahoka Peoples Bank 849,134
Kansas City Blue Ridge Bank and Trust Co. 12,000,000
Kansas City Central Bank of Kansas City 2,000,000
Kansas City Commerce Bank, N.A. 3,168,613
Kansas City Douglass National Bank 1,500,000
Kansas City Missouri Bank and Trust Company 200,000
Kansas City NorthStar Bank, N.A. 4,000,000
Kansas City UMB Bank, n.a. 390,698
Kearney Kearney Commercial Bank 2,500,000
Kennett Kennett National Bank 750,000
Kirksville Bank of Kirksville 4,331,210
Knob Noster First Community Bank 6,553,000
La Belle The Bank of La Belle 440,000
La Grange Farmers & Merchants Bank 52,000
La Plata La Plata State Bank 44,142
Lamar Lamar Bank & Trust Company 708,273
Lawson Lawson Bank 215,000
Lee's Summit First National Bank of Missouri 944,750
Lee's Summit Union Bank 10,850,000
Lewistown United State Bank 80,000
Liberty Clay County Savings and Loan Association 1,000,000
Lincoln Farmers Bank of Lincoln 4,875,000
Linn Linn State Bank 4,721,500
Linn Mid America Bank 672,000
Lohman Farmers Bank 100,000
Louisiana The Mercantile Bank 5,000,000
Macon Macon-Atlanta State Bank 270,145
Macon US Bank 8,806,089
Madison Community First Bank of Missouri 805,000
Malden First National Bank 115,000
Mansfield Bank of Mansfield 200,000

(continued on next page)



Unaudited
TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

TIME DEPOSITS
BALANCE IN VARIOUS BANKS
June 30, 2002

Location Bank Balance

(continued from previous page)

Maplewood Citizens National Bank of Greater St. Louis $ 18,000,000
Marshall Community Bank of Marshall 214,000
Marshfield Southern Missouri Bank of Marshfield 3,250,000
Maryville Bank Midwest, N.A. 447,412
Maysville Independent Farmers Bank 1,101,680
Memphis Community Bank of Memphis 41,000
Metz Metz Banking Co. 100,000
Mexico First National Bank of Audrain County 687,000
Moberly Bank of Cairo & Moberly 350,000
Monticello Bank of Monticello 3,433,860
Montrose Montrose Savings Bank 483,970
Mount Vernon First National Bank 200,000
Mountain Grove Sun Security Bank of America 1,833,720
Mountain View First National Bank 67,600
Neosho Community Bank and Trust 344,415
Nevada First National Bank 2,073,393
Nevada Heritage State Bank 215,000
New Haven Citizens Bank 7,300,000
Norborne Citizens Bank of Norborne 300,000
North Kansas City Norbank 1,040,000
Odessa Bank of Odessa 3,100,000
Osage Beach Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 372,500
Osage Beach First Bank of the Lake 500,000
Osceola St. Clair County State Bank 1,310,293
Ozark Ozark Bank 7,500,000
Palmyra Palmyra State Bank 139,513
Paris Paris National Bank 494,744
Park Hills Bank Star of the LeadBelt 1,011,500
Perry Perry State Bank 477,439
Perryville The Bank of Missouri 504,000
Pierce City First State Bank of Purdy 1,201,293
Platte City Platte Valley Bank of Missouri 68,700
Poplar Bluff First Missouri State Bank 15,000
Portageville Farmers Bank of Portageville 2,000,000
Potosi Belgrade State Bank 110,195

(continued on next page)
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Potosi UNICO Bank $ 8,100,000
Princeton Citizens Bank of Princeton 281,461
Republic Countryside Bank 800,000
Rhineland Peoples Savings Bank 3,000,000
Rich Hill Security Bank 850,000
Rock Port Citizens Bank & Trust 575,000
Rolla Phelps County Bank 2,636,000
Salem Town and Country Bank 90,185
Salisbury Regional Missouri Bank 342,774
Savannah Farmers State Bank of Northern Missouri 885,900
Schell City Farmers State Bank, S/B 70,000
Sedalia Central Bank of Missouri 87,786
Sedalia Community Bank of Pettis County 816,945
Sedalia Third National Bank 588,126
Sikeston Montgomery First National Bank 8,900,000
Sparta The Citizens Bank of Sparta 24,000
Springfield Empire Bank 3,757,985
Springfield Liberty Bank 15,286,611
Springfield Mid Missouri Bank 178,665
Springfield Old Missouri National Bank 225,000
Springfield The Bank 591,000
St. Clair The Farmers & Merchants Bank 2,200,000
St. Elizabeth Bank of St. Elizabeth 695,000
St. Louis Allegiant Bank 4,266,800
St. Louis Bremen Bank and Trust Co. 2,400,000
St. Louis Concord Bank 2,500,000
St. Louis Lindell Bank & Trust Company 130,000
St. Louis Southwest Bank of St. Louis 100,000
St. Louis The Private Bank 5,000,000
Stanberry Farmers State Bank 443,569
Ste. Genevieve Bank of Ste. Genevieve 65,000
Steele Bank Star of the BootHeel 800,000
Steelville First Community National Bank 100,000
Sullivan Progress Bank of Missouri 1,750,000
Thayer Bank of Thayer 1,721,929

(continued on next page)
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Union United Bank of Union $ 1,100,000
Unionville Putnam County State Bank 313,406
Viburnum Quad County State Bank 100,000
Vienna Maries County Bank 1,647,500
Warrensburg First Central Bank 900,000
Waynesville Security Bank of Pulaski County 4,000,000
Wellsville Bank of Montgomery County 501,000
West Plains Community First National Bank of West Plains 90,000
Weston Bank of Weston 630,000
TOTAL $_367,178,643
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TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Unaudited

Final
Bond Issue Issue Date Maturity Date Interest Rate Issued Retired Outstanding

Water Pollution Control Bonds: (a)

Series C, 1991 ** November 1, 1991  November 1, 2012 5.25%-7.75% $ 33,575,000 11,700,000 21,875,000

Series A, 1992 August 1, 1992 August 1, 2017 5.0%-7.5% 35,000,000 7,370,000 27,630,000

Series B, 1992 ** August 15, 1992 August 1, 2010 5.0% - 7.5% 50,435,000 13,830,000 36,605,000

Series A, 1993 August 1, 1993 August 1, 2018 4.3% -7.3% 30,000,000 5,805,000 24,195,000

Series B, 1993 ** August 1, 1993 August 1, 2016 43%-7.3% 109,415,000 19,210,000 90,205,000

Series A, 1995 April 1, 1995 April 1, 2020 5.125% - 8.0% 30,000,000 4,770,000 25,230,000

Series A, 1996 August 1, 1996 August 1, 2021 5.2% - 6.25% 35,000,000 4,055,000 30,945,000

Series A, 1998 June 1, 1998 June 1, 2023 4.25% - 6.25% 35,000,000 3,405,000 31,595,000

Series A, 1999 October 1, 1999 October 1, 2024 4.5%-7.5% 20,000,000 905,000 19,095,000

Series A, 2001 June 1, 2001 June 1, 2026 4.0% -7.0% 20,000,000 470,000 19,530,000
Total Water Pollution Control Bonds $ 398,425,000 71,520,000 326,905,000
Third State Building Bonds: (b)

Series B, 1991 ** November 1, 1991  November 1, 2012 5.25%-7.75% $ 71,955,000 24,635,000 47,320,000

Series A, 1992 ** August 15, 1992 August 1, 2010 5.0%-7.5% 273,205,000 74,235,000 198,970,000

Series A, 1993 ** August 1, 1993 August 1, 2012 43%-7.3% 148,480,000 45,465,000 103,015,000
Total Third State Building Bonds $ 493,640,000 144,335,000 349,305,000
Fourth State Building Bonds: (¢)

Series A, 1995 April 1, 1995 April 1, 2020 5125%-8.0% $ 75,000,000 11,930,000 63,070,000

Series A, 1996 August 1, 1996 August 1, 2021 5.2% - 6.25% 125,000,000 14,485,000 110,515,000

Series A, 1998 June 1, 1998 June 1, 2023 4.25% - 6.25% 50,000,000 4,860,000 45,140,000
Total Fourth State Building Bonds $ 250,000,000 31,275,000 218,725,000
Stormwater Control Bonds: (d)

Series A, 1999 October 1, 1999 October 1, 2024 4.5% - 7.5% $ 20,000,000 905,000 19,095,000

Series A, 2001 June 1, 2001 June 1, 2026 4.0% -7.0% 10,000,000 235,000 9,765,000
Total Stormwater Control Bonds $ 30,000,000 1,140,000 28,860,000
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 1,172,065,000 248,270,000 923,795,000

** Refunding Bonds

(a) The Water Pollution Control Bonds are used to provide funds for the protection of the environment through the control of water
pollution. The total amount authorized for issuance is $725,000,000.

(b) Proceeds from the Third State Building Bonds are used to provide funds for improvements of state buildings and property.
The total amount authorized for issuance is $600,000,000.

(c) Proceeds from the Fourth State Building Bonds are used to provide funds for building construction, purchase, and/or improvements
for institutions of higher education, the Department of Corrections, and the Division of Youth Services.

The total amount authorized for issuance is $250,000,000.

(d) Proceeds from Stormwater Control Bonds are used to provide funds for the protection of the environment through the control
of stormwater. The total amount authorized for issuance is $200,000,000.



Unaudited
TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI
FUNDS INVESTED IN U.S. SECURITIES
JUNE 30, 2002

Invested For Investments Amount

Treasury Funds:

General Pool Repurchase Agreements $ 225,323,000
U.S. Government Securities
and Commercial Paper
Maturity Less Than Three Years* 1,830,693,799

General Obligation Bond Pool Repurchase Agreements 95,474,600
U.S. Government Securities
and Commercial Paper

Maturity Less Than Three Years* 309,085,273
MODOT Bond Pool Repurchase Agreements 206,531,700
Non-Expendable Trust Funds**:
State Seminary Fund Government Securities
With Various Maturity Dates 3,898,000
State Public School Fund Government Securities
With Various Maturity Dates 17,475,000
Total $ 2,688,481,372

* Includes prepaid accrued interest not yet received.

** These funds are not invested by the State Treasurer. The State Seminary Fund investments
are made by the University of Missouri-Columbia. The State Public School Fund
investments are made by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. The
securities are held in trust by the State Treasurer in the Treasurer's Federal Reserve
safekeeping account until their maturity. Once these funds are invested, they are not
accounted for as Treasury funds until their maturity.



TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI
INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE TREASURER
JUNE 30, 2002

Investment

Unaudited

Amount

Time Deposits:
General Pool

U.S. Securities:
General Pool Portfolio
General Pool General Repurchase Agreement
General Obligation Bond Pool Portfolio
General Obligation Bond Pool General Repurchase Agreement
MODOT Pool Repurchase Agreement

Commercial Paper:
General Pool

Other Investments:
Central Bank, Jefferson City (Time Deposit Clearing Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (General Deposit Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (DSS Lockbox Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (General Disbursement Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (Investment Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (Electronic Receipt/Payment Account)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (Compensating Balance Repurchase Agreement)
Central Bank, Jefferson City (Conservation Concentration Account)

US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.
US Bank, St.

Louis (Compensating Balance Repurchase Agreement)
Louis (Investment Account)

Louis (Electronic Receipts Account)

Louis (Wire Transfer Receipts Account)

Louis (Electronic Disbursment Account)

Louis (Electronic Tax Receipt Account)

Louis (Corporate Estimated Tax Payment Account)
Louis (DOSS Kids Program Receipts Account)
Louis (DOR Credit Card Receipts Account)

Louis (Lottery Concentration Account)

Louis (Exception Account)

Louis (Collection Concentration Accounts)

Premier Bank, Jefferson City (Conservation Credit Card Receipts Account)
Premier Bank, Jefferson City (Agriculture Credit Card Receipts Account)

Total

$ 367,178,643

1,137,888,228
225,323,000
309,519,668
95,474,600
206,531,700

694,144,370

30,804
(14)
(485)
(210,752,457)
12,274,174
(145,976)
60,000,000
615
7,000,000
(1,735,123)
(6,546)
(163,469)
(2,484,632)
(255)
(33,513)
(35,823)
4,973,585
43,691
103

$,2.005,024.888



TREASURER OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

MISSOURI INVESTMENT TRUST
JUNE 30, 2002

Unaudited

Contributions Market Value

Fund to Date June 30, 2002
Missouri Arts Council - Opened January 19, 1999
S&P Flagship Fund $ 15,793,018 11,956,317
Russell 2000 Fund 2,402,155 2,470,540
MSCI EAFE CTF Fund 1,804,687 1,832,980
Total Missouri Arts Council $ 19,999,860 16,259,837
Missouri Humanities Council - Opened January 3, 2000
S&P Flagship Fund $ 681,107 463,393
Russell 2000 Fund 98,945 95,733
MSCI EAFE CTF Fund 69,948 71,038
Total Missouri Humanities Council $ 850,000 630,164
Pansy Johnson-Travis Memorial Gardens - Opened January 3, 2000
S&P Flagship Fund $ 653,091 444 304
Russell 2000 Fund 94,843 91,789
MSCI EAFE CTF Fund 67,066 68,111
Total Pansy Johnson-Travis Memorial Gardens $ 815,000 604,204
Wolfner Library - Opened July 5, 2000
S&P Flagship Fund $ 574,107 416,389
Russell 2000 Fund 91,028 86,087
MSCI EAFE CTF Fund 62,865 63,844
Total Wolfner Library $ 728,000 566,320
Total Missouri Investment Trust $ 22,392,860 18,060,525






